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LUDLOW TOWN COUNCIL
AGENDA

To: All Members of the Council, Unitary Councillors, Press
Contact: Gina Wilding
Ludlow Town Council, The Guildhall,
Mill Street, Ludlow, SY8 1AZ
01584 871970
townclerk@ludlow.gov.uk
Despatch date: 26! November 2025

COUNCIL
You are summoned to attend the meeting of Ludlow Town Council to be held

at The Guildhall, Mill Street, Ludlow, on
Monday 1%t December 2025 at 7.00pm

Gina Witdling

Gina Wilding
Town Clerk

Key Agenda ltems:

Budget 2026 / 27
Communications Strategy
Projects

Project Support Grant Applications

The public may speak at this meeting

Public Open Session (15 minutes) — Members of the public are invited to make

representations to the Council on any matters relating to the work of the Council or to raise
any issues of concern.
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WELCOME FROM THE MAYOR AND HEALTH & SAFETY INFORMATION
Councillors and members of the public are to note that the fire exits can be found to
the rear of the building and via the front door. The fire assembly point is on the
pavement opposite the Guildhall. For fire safety purposes all Councillors should sign
the attendance book and members of the public should sign the attendance sheet.

RECORDING OF MEETINGS - Under the Openness of Local Government
Regulations 2014, recording and broadcasting including blogging, tweeting and
other social media is permitted during public session of Council meetings.

The act of recording and broadcasting must not interfere with the meeting.

The Council understands that some members of the public may not wish to be
recorded and asks that they make this known immediately.

MEETING PROTOCOL

Members are reminded of the vital importance of mutual respect, professionalism,
and full adherence to the Council’s Code of Conduct, Standing Orders, and Meeting
Protocol.

Councillors and officers have distinct yet complementary roles and work
collaboratively in the best interests of the community. Councillors are responsible
for setting policy and representing the public, while officers provide impartial advice
and are tasked with implementing Council decisions.

During meetings, Members must conduct themselves with decorum, follow the
established rules of debate, and respect the authority of the Chair.

Disruptive behaviour, undue pressure on officers, or prioritising personal
interests above Council objectives undermines good governance and is
contrary to the standards of conduct expected in Council proceedings.

Maintaining integrity, accountability, and a respectful environment is essential to
ensuring effective and transparent decision-making.

APOLOGIES
To receive Councillor’s apologies.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations of interests for:

a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interest
b) Declaration of Conflicts of Interest
c) Declarations of Personal Interest

Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting on
any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should leave
the room prior to the commencement of the debate. (Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests) Regulations 2012 (S1 2012/1464)
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PUBLIC OPEN SESSION (15 MINUTES) — Members of the public are invited to
make representations to the Council on any matters relating to the work of the
Council or to raise any issues of concern. Public Bodies (admissions to meetings)
Act 1960 s 1 extended by the LG Act 972 s 100.

LUDLOW POLICE UPDATE
To receive an update from the Safer Neighbourhood Team.

LUDLOW’S UNITARY COUNCILLORS SESSION
Ludlow’s Unitary Councillors are invited to provide updates on Unitary Council
matters related to Ludlow.

SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL FINANCIAL CRISIS / DEVOLUTION OF SERVICES
To receive a presentation from Alex Wagner, Deputy Leader of Shropshire Council.

SHROPSHIRE GOOD FOOD PARTNERSHIP

a) To receive a presentation from Katy Anderson and Daphne Du Cros,
Shropshire Good Food Partnership.

b) To approve participation by Ludlow councillors in the food resilience 10
blueprinting session in January 2026.

c) To consider supporting the community food resilience lab initiative.

MINUTES
To approve the open and closed session minutes of Council on 20" October 2025
as a correct record of the meetings (LGA 1972 Sch 12 para 41(1)).

ITEMS TO ACTION
To note the items to action from 20t October 2025.

ITEM Attachment

13.

14.

15.

b)

16.

17.

BUDGET TASK & FINISH GROUP UPDATE

To consider a report with recommendations from the Budget Task and 13
Finish group.

COMMUNICATIONS TASK & FINISH GROUP

To consider a report with recommendations from the Communications 14
Task & Finish Group.

PROJECTS

To receive an updated Projects Action List. 15
To review the previous priority projects and set the priority projects for

January — March 2026.

COMMITTEE MEETING CALENDAR

To approve changing the date of the Staffing Committee meeting from No papers

17t December 2025 to 10t December 2025.

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
To note committee and Task & Finish Group membership. 17
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18.

b)

19.

20.

21,

22,

26.

b)

PROJECT SUPPORT GRANT APPLICATIONS

To consider the application for project support funding from Ludlow
Piano Festival.

To reconsider the application for project support funding from Hope
House Hospice.

WHEELER ROAD RECREATION AREA
To note the positive conditional response received from the covenant
holder, and that the matter is being considered by Services Committee.

MAYOR’S SUNDAY
To approve the Mayor’s Sunday service taking place on 28" June 2026.

COUNCILLOR DISPENSATION

To approve a dispensation for Councillor Waite to participate and vote
on all matters relating to the devolution of powers to, and / or delivery of
Shropshire Council services by Ludlow Town Council.

SCAFFOLDING

To consider the assessment by Longmynd Consultants Ltd of the
scaffolding surrounding the electric sub-station and to decide a course
of action.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS
To approve recommendations from:
Policy & Finance Committee on 24" November 2025.

COMMITTEE MINUTES

To receive the minutes of:

Services Committee on 3 September 2025 and 15" October 2025.
Representational Committee on 7" October 2025 and 4" November
2025.

Staffing Committee on 10" October 2025.

Policy & Finance Committee on 13" October 2025.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC: PUBLIC BODIES
(ADMISSION TO MEETINGS) ACT 1960

The Chairman will move that the public be excluded from the meeting
for the following item(s) of business pursuant to section 1 of the Public
Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, on the grounds that publicity
would be prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the confidential
nature of the business to be transacted.

CHURCHYARD WALLS TASK & FINISH GROUP

To approve the revised Terms of Reference for the Churchyard Walls
Task & Finish Group.

To consider recommendations from the Task and Finish group.

18a

18b

19

21

22

23a

24a
24b

24c
24d

No papers

26a

26b
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Membership

Councillors Lyle (Town Mayor), Addis, Childs, Cowell (Deputy Mayor), Gill, Ginger, Harris,
Hepworth, Maxwell-Muller, Owen, Parry, Scott-Bell, Tapley, Taylor and Waite.

The date of the next Council meeting is 19" January 2026
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Helen Jones

From: Daphne Du Cros <daphne@shropshiregoodfood.org>
Sent: 08 November 2025 06:46

To: Gina Wilding; katy@shropshiregoodfood.org

Subject: RE: Shropshire Good Food Partnership

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Hi Gina,

| hope you're well. I'm coming back to you after our zoom call to follow up on how we can work
together on a food strategy with Ludlow. As things move quickly at SGFP, we've put together a
process and wanted to invite Ludlow to be a part of it as one in a first cohort across the County.
Can you please share the following with your council? I'm happy to come and speak on it, and
about our work at SGFP so that they have a better idea of how we work.

Local communities have a vital role to play in creating a more resilient food future, reducing risks of
future food shortages and creating a stronger local community and economy through food. By food
resilience we mean the ability of the food system to withstand shocks and still provide safe and
nutritious food for all - please see the infographic below.

We’d like to invite councillors and community groups in Ludlow to take partin two activities to
increase food resilience, building on what your community already have in place.

“blueprinting” food resilience. A short” exercise to explore what food resilience means in your
community and how to increase it. This would be a 2 - 2.5 hour meeting in January, bringing you
together with other councillors, community groups and representatives. We can run sessions on-
line if that makes it easier. This work is funded by the national organisation Sustainable Food
Places. Possible dates are 5"/6"/7"/8" or 12"/13™ January.

Community food resilience “lab”. The opportunity to act as a “community lab” to understand
food challenges in your community and to develop a community response which addresses
them, such as growing, cooking and food sharing initiatives. We are through to the final round of
Climate Action Funding with The National Lottery. If our bid is successful, the work would startin the
second half of 2026 and run or 3years. The ideais to create a vision for the future of food and test
out ways to create a more resilient food future, with better access to good food increasing health and
wellbeing and more regenerative farming to protect nature. And then sharing all that learning and
making the case for large-scale change.

Please let us know if you need to know more before getting involved.

Katy and Daphne

Katy Anderson and Daphne Du Cros

For more info please contact katy@shropshiregoodfood.org



ltem 11.

MINUTES




FC 20.10.25

& Ludlow

&P Town Council
MINUTES

Minutes of a meeting of the COUNCIL held at The Guildhall, Mill Street, Ludlow on
MONDAY 20™ OCTOBER 2025 at 7.00 PM.

FC/222 PRESENT
Chair: Councillor Cowell

Councillors: Addis; Gill; Ginger; Hepworth; Maxwell-Muller; Owen; Parry;
Scott-Bell; Tapley; Taylor

Officers: Gina Wilding, Town Clerk
Helen Jones, Senior Administrative Assistant

FC/223 ABSENT
Councillors Childs, Harris, Lyle and Waite were absent.

FC/224 HEALTH & SAFETY

The Deputy Mayor, Councillor Cowell, welcomed everyone to the Full Council
meeting and made some health and safety announcements.

FC/225 RECORDING OF MEETINGS

The Deputy Mayor notified those present that under the Openness of Local
Government Regulations 2014, recording and broadcasting is permitted during
public session of Council Meetings. The act of recording and broadcasting must
not interfere with the meeting.

FC/226 MEETING PROTOCOL

The Deputy Mayor reminded Members of the vital importance of mutual respect,
professionalism, and full adherence to the Council’s Code of Conduct, Standing
Orders, and Meeting Protocol.

Councillors and officers have distinct yet complementary roles and work
collaboratively in the best interests of the community. Councillors are responsible
for setting policy and representing the public, while officers provide impartial
advice and are tasked with implementing Council decisions.

During meetings, Members must conduct themselves with decorum, follow the
established rules of debate, and respect the authority of the Chair. Disruptive
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behaviour, undue pressure on officers, or prioritising personal interests above
Council objectives undermines good governance and is contrary to the standards
of conduct expected in Council proceedings.

Maintaining integrity, accountability, and a respectful environment is essential to
ensuring effective and transparent decision-making.

APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillors Childs, Harris, Lyle and Waite.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

None declared.

Conflicts of Interest

Councillor Item | Reason
Addis 24 Knows two of the contractors, is a business contact of
Grange Heating.

Personal Interests

Councillor Iltem | Reason
Owen 26 Knows the Chair of Ludlow Town Walls Trust. Is not
and never have been, or been invited to be, a member,
friend or trustee of either the Ludlow Town Walls Trust
or St Laurence’s PCC.
Cowell 13 | Is a member of the History Group.
26 Is a member of the choir at St Laurence’s Church. Not
a member of St Laurence’s PCC.
Parry 13 Knows the staff at Pentabus Theatre.
26 Knows the Chair of Ludlow Town Walls Trust.
Hepworth 26 Knows the Chair of Ludlow Town Walls Trust. Is not a
member of the Town Walls Trust or St Laurence’s PCC.
Maxwell-Muller | 26 Knows the Chair of Ludlow Town Walls Trust.

PUBLIC OPEN SESSION (15 minutes)

There were three members of the public in attendance.

A resident of Ludford expressed concern that in total over £100,000 of public
funds have been spent on legal and professional fees in recent years, largely in
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relation to the Council’s dispute over responsibility for the collapsed wall near St
Laurence’s Church. It was noted that legal advice in 2015 appeared to confirm
the Council’s ownership and responsibility for the wall. The speaker questioned
the ongoing legal expenditure and urged the Council to consider ending legal
proceedings, instead proposing collaboration with the PCC and Shropshire
Council to progress necessary repairs. The speaker also highlighted that
continued dispute may deter potential external funding from bodies such as
Historic England or the Heritage Lottery Fund, which prefer to support unified
community projects.

A resident of Ludlow expressed concerns about the ongoing disrepair of the
collapsed section of churchyard wall and the Council’s handling of the matter.
The resident highlighted safety risks from falling masonry, delayed access to
engineering reports, and the Council’s recent resolution denying liability. They
stated the situation has caused significant distress and indicated potential legal
action if the issue remains unresolved.

A resident and business owner of Ludlow expressed concern that Ludlow is in
decline compared to other towns, citing reduced footfall, a struggling high street,
and a general lack of vibrancy. They called on the Council to take more visible
action to promote the town and support local businesses. Suggestions included
engaging with landlords on rent levels, improving the town’s appearance with
flower boxes, and reviewing parking charges to encourage more visitors. The
speaker emphasised the need for practical, collective efforts to revitalise the
town and restore its appeal.

LUDLOW POLICE UPDATE

A written update was provided to councillors via email prior to the meeting.

LUDLOW'’S UNITARY COUNCILLORS SESSION

Councillor Parry (Ludlow South) confirmed that the Devolution debate had gone
to Shropshire Council last week and was accepted.

MINUTES

RESOLVED KC/GG (unanimous)

That the open and closed session minutes of the Council meetings held on 3™
September 2025, 8" September 2025 and 24" September 2025 be approved as

a correct record and signed by the Chair.

ITEMS TO ACTION

RESOLVED TG/GG (unanimous)

That the Items to Action be noted.
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SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL DEVOLUTION OF SERVICES

RESOLVED KC/IMM (unanimous)

That the Town Clerk be authorised to sign and return the Memorandum of
Understanding with Shropshire Council.

RESOLVED KC/GG (unanimous)

To inform Shropshire Council that subject to adequate funding from Shropshire
Council, Ludlow Town Council are interested in discussing the following local
services in Ludlow:

Litter picking and street cleaning

Grounds maintenance and verge cutting

Public waste bin management

Graffiti and fly-posting removal

Highway weed control

Support for public events

Maintenance of street furniture

Community clean-up support

Shropshire Council owned play areas in Ludlow (subject to confirmation
from Shropshire Council that they have the legal ability to transfer the play
areas to Ludlow Town Council)

RESOLVED GG/IMM (unanimous)

To inform Shropshire Council that Ludlow Town Council does not at present
consider itself able to support the following services, but is
nonetheless concerned about the provision of the following services:

. Ludlow Library

. Teme Leisure
. Youth Services
. Support for Ludlow Museum

RESOLVED KC/PA (unanimous)

That Ludlow Town Council shares its response to the government Town and
Parish Neighborhood Governance consultation with Shropshire Council.

RESOLVED MT/KC (unanimous)

That a Task & Finish Group is not formed at this point, but the council
contacts Shropshire Council / Claire Braddock to open discussions.
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BUDGET TASK & FINISH GROUP UPDATE

Councillor Taylor gave an update as the Chair of the Budget Task & Finish
Group. The group has met three times to date. The group has drafted terms of
reference and a preliminary budget, highlighting key considerations such as
inflation, interest rate assumptions, and identified risks and opportunities for the
coming financial year. The draft budget aims to support the Council’s ongoing
services, projects, and devolved responsibilities from Shropshire Council.

RESOLVED GG/IMM (10:0:1)

To approve the scope and objectives of this year’s budget-setting process
as the following:
e To support existing services
e To support council projects
e To support Ludlow during devolution of services from Shropshire
Council

To approve the budget setting premise of:
e Inflation: 3.6%
e Interest Rate: 4%

To approve the reorganisation of budget lines as identified in the T&F notes.
To approve the release of a consultation in December that discusses the range of

options open to the council with as much information as is available.

CORE GRANTS

RESOLVED GG/TG (unanimous)

That a grant of £1,000.00 to South Shropshire Youth Forum in 2026/27 be
approved.

RESOLVED GG/TG (unanimous)

That a grant of £1,050.00 to Ludlow Town Concert Band in 2026/27 be approved.

RESOLVED GG/VP (9:0:2)

That the original application from Ludlow Town FC was retrospective and
therefore refused because it was outside of council’s criteria. The council
offered the opportunity for an amended application but were unable to accept
the submitted application for a wholly different project.
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RESOLVED KC/IMM (unanimous)

That the grant of £5,000.00 to Ludlow Visitor Information Centre in 2026/27 be
approved.

RESOLVED TG/GG (8:0:3)

That a grant of £1,000.00 to Pentabus Theatre in 2026/27 be approved.

Councillor Ginger left the meeting at 7.53pm

FC/246

SAFER NEIGHBOURHOOD TEAM POLICING PRIORITIES

RESOLVED KC/MT (unanimous)
That the agreed priorities for October 2025 to March 2026 are:
1. Drugs

2. Antisocial behaviour including driving
3. Commercial and domestic theft

FC/247 Thata comment be added stating that Ludlow Town Council values visible policing

FC/248

across the whole community, not just in the Town Centre.

SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL PARKING CHARGES CONSULTATION

RESOLVED ISB/PA (unanimous)

To object to the proposed increases in parking charges because of the severe
detrimental impact upon Ludlow, which is a small market town with a population
of less than 11,000.

Ludlow’s current parking bandings are disproportionately high for the size of the
town.

No other Shropshire town except the county town of Shrewsbury, with a
population of over 76,000, has band 2 parking charges. There is no
justification for charging band 2 parking charges in a town with a population of
less than 11,000.

That the charges for:
e on street parking charges should be reduced from band 2 to band 3.
e Castle Steet car park charges should be reduced from band 3 to band 4.
e On street (blue zone) charges should be reduced from band 4 to band 5.

To report these concerns to the press and public that the Council is actively
opposing the new charges.
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Clir Gill left the meeting at 8.09pm
Clir Gill rejoined the meeting at 8.11pm

FC/249

FC/250

FC/251

PROJECT UPDATES

RESOLVED KC/MT (9:0:1)

That project updates will be received at each Full Council meeting.

RESOLVED MT/VP (unanimous)

That a follow up letter be sent to Shropshire Council asking for progress on the
Market Square parking issue.

RESOLVED TG/AT (unanimous)

That the updates provided on the project list be noted.

Clir Hepworth left the meeting at 8.31pm.
Clir Hepworth rejoined the meeting at 8.34pm.

FC/252

FC/253

FC/254

EFFICIENCY REVIEW

RESOLVED TG/KC (9:0:1)

That the Council approve the recommendation from the Staffing Committee to
review the duties and objectives of the Council; its management structure; the
adequacy of staffing levels, capabilities, skill sets, and experience; the
effectiveness of the processes by which the Council undertakes its work
(including possible alternative methods); and the ways in which technology
could be used to enhance efficiency - all with a view to ensuring that the
residents of Ludlow receive the best possible value for the money they
contribute via the Precept, and to make recommendations accordingly.

RESOLVED MT/ISB (9:0:1)

That Clirs Addis, Gill, Hepworth, Owen and Scott-Bell are appointed to the
Efficiency Review Task & Finish Group.

RESOLVED MT/JH (unanimous)

That the Efficiency Review Task & Finish Group draft full terms of reference for

approval, consider the timetable of action, assess the offer from LCC and
report back to Full Council.
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PROJECT SUPPORT GRANTS

RESOLVED KC/MT (unanimous)

That a £750 grant to Ludlow Assembly Rooms be approved.

RESOLVED TG/AT (unanimous)
That clarification be sought from Hope House Hospice of specific

instances in which the grant funding would benefit individuals from Ludlow
postcodes.

WHEELER ROAD PLAY AREA COVENANT

RESOLVED TG/IMM (9:0:1)

That a formal request be sent to the covenant holder to allow the

temporary use of the Recreation Area by Ludlow Rugby Club adults’ team on
two evenings per week.

RESOLVED MT/IMM (9:0:1)

That once the Christmas Lights installation is completed, the grass cutting at

Wheeler Road recreation area becomes the top priority for the Direct Labour
Force.

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

RESOLVED KC/MT (unanimous)

That Clir Parry be added to the membership of the Comms Strategy Task &
Finish Group, ClIr Gill be added to the Churchyard Walls Task & Finish Group,
and CllIrs Taylor and Maxwell-Muller be added to the membership of the Town
Planters Working Group.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

RESOLVED KC/MT (9:0:1)

That the recommendations from Policy and Finance Committee on 1t
September 2025 and 13" October 2025 be approved:

AGED DEBTORS

That invoice number 1139 for 30p owed by Craven Arms Memorials be written
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off.

POLICY REVIEW

Information and Data Protection Policy

That the Information and Data Protection Policy, as amended to state that the
policy will be reviewed “annually” instead of “periodically”, be adopted.

Data Transparency Policy

That Data Transparency Policy be amended in include the publication of the
quarterly income and expenditure reports and the earmarked reserves on the
Council’s website.

That the Data Transparency Policy, as amended, be adopted.

Data Breach Policy

That the Data Breach Policy, as amended to state that it replaces the Data Breach
Policy adopted on the 171" June 2019, be adopted.

Freedom of Information Policy

That the Freedom of Information Policy, as amended to state that the policy will
be reviewed annually, be adopted.

RESIDENTIAL RENTAL

That a residential rent remains at £500.00 per month to be increased annually by
inflation from January 2026.

POLICY REVIEW

Recruitment and Selection Policy

That the Recruitment and Selection Policy, be adopted.

Sexual Harassment Policy and Action Plan

That the Sexual Harassment Policy and Action Plan, be adopted.

Hedgerow Policy

That Hedgerow Policy, be adopted.

RESOLVED VP/ISB (unanimous)

That the recommendations from Representational Committee on 9" September
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2025 be approved:

CORONATION AVENUE

To recommend to Full Council that Shropshire Council are given a list of critical
roads in Ludlow, which should not be closed, but if works are required they are
open with 2-way traffic lights especially during the busiest times of year which
are summer, Christmas and the festivals:

Sheet Road

Henley Road

Dinham Bridge

Temeside

Bromfield Road

Coronation Avenue

Galdeford

Overton Road

COMMITTEE MINUTES

RESOLVED TG/IMM (9:0:1)

That the minutes of the Services Committee meeting held on 23 July 2025 be
received.

RESOLVED TG/IMM (9:0:1)

That the minutes of the Representational Committee meeting held on 19t
August 2025 and 9t September 2025 be received.

RESOLVED TG/IMM (9:0:1)

That the minutes of the Staffing Committee held on 22" August 2025 and 18"
September 2025 be received.

RESOLVED TG/IMM (9:0:1)

That the minutes of the Policy & Finance Committee held on 1t September 2025
be received.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC: PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO
MEETINGS) ACT 1960

RESOLVED KC/PA (unanimous)

That that the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) of
business pursuant to section 1 of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act
1960, on the grounds that publicity would be prejudicial to the public interest by
reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted, and the
meeting continue in closed session.
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The meeting closed at 9.08pm.

Town Mayor Date

Closed session minutes will be issued for this meeting.
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CLOSED SESSION MINUTES

Closed Session minutes of a meeting of the COUNCIL held at The Guildhall, Mill Street,
Ludlow, on MONDAY 20™ OCTOBER 2025 at 7:00PM

FC/267

FC/268

FC/269

FC/270

MEETING EXTENSION

RESOLVED TG/PA (unanimous)

That an extension of the meeting until 9.30pm be approved.

GUILDHALL HEATING

RESOLVED KC/TG (unanimous)
That the quotation of £33,273.09 ex. VAT from Grange Heating be accepted, and

the project in a Grade | Listed building progresses to the next stage, which is
detailed sign off by the conservation officer.

CHAMBER AMPLIFICATION SYSTEM

RESOLVED IMM/TG (unanimous)

That the quotation of £6,094.00 ex. VAT from Sound Induction Systems be
accepted.

CHURCHYARD WALL UPDATE

RESOLVED KC/IMM (unanimous)

That the update from the Chair of the Churchyard Walls Task & Finish Group and
the letter to the solicitor acting on behalf of the PCC be received.

The meeting closed at 9.08pm.

Town Mayor Date
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Full Council

Items to Action

ONGOING
FC Meeting
29.07.2019
FC/125 15T FLOOR GUILDHALL
That: -
i) the remaining funds of £1,500 from the Mayor’s
Allowance from 2018-19 be used towards the
refurbishment of the first floor of the Guildhall.
ii) the listed building consent for the Chamber is | Building consent | GW Complete 09/12/19
renewed. application sent.
iii) Quotations for works to the Chamber, and
works to the first floor of the Guildhall, as | Quotations GW Pending
described in the report, are sought and brought | sought.
back to Council for approval.
FC Meeting
26.04.2021
FC/336 STAFFING STRUCTURE REVIEW
To approve: -
i) Creation of workspaces upstairs at the Not being GW Complete 01/07/22
Guildhall to facilitate the proposed progressed.
appointments.
i) Further exploration of a Projects and Assets Pending
role by a Staffing Task & Finish Group.




Full Council

Items to Action

iii) Further exploration of an additional admin Staffing T&F to Pending
apprentice role by a Staffing Task & Finish discuss.
Group
FC Meeting
11.05.2022
FC/50 MARKET PARKING Pending

To escalate the item to action for prompt
consideration in six months.

To follow up with
SC monthly.

GW /HJ

Feb 24 — update:
draft consultation
with legal
department.
April 24 — email
and images sent
to SC to inform
of cars left on
market.

July 2025 —
letters sent to SC
with council
resolution.
August 25 —
letters sent to
Heather Kidd
and Rob Wilson.
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Items to Action

Nov 25 — letter

sent to Rob
Wilson.
FC Meeting
01.08.2022
FC/122 MARKET PARKING
That once the parking order is enacted, its effect
will be monitored by market traders and the Town | To be monitored. | GW Pending
Council.
FC/123 MARKET PARKING
That if after a period of six months, if the Town To be diarised GW Pending
Council deems the parking order to have been when parking
ineffective at its next meeting, Ludlow Town order in force.
Council will approve consultation with the
Conservation Officer for approval of the design of
the bollards to be installed on the Market Square.
FC Meeting
29.07.2024
FC/144 COACHES BIDs and Visit
To secure coach friendly status and liaise with the | To liaise with GW/KP | Shropshire
Chamber about the coach driver welcome pack. BIDs and make approached for
the application. information.
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Items to Action

FC/145 To follow up with Visit Shropshire to promote
Ludlow as a coach destination at tourism shows Made contact
and through other communication channels. with Coach
Friendly Status
organisation.
Application
needs to be
completed.
FC/191 COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS — REP
To approve the recommendations from Put on to GW Pending
Representational Committee on 27t August 2024: | Representational
e That a task and finish group is set up to Committee
explore the stages of creating a agenda for
Neighbourhood Plan and design codes, and | consideration.
that all Councillors are eligible to join.
e To approve the refurbishing of the Mill KA Complete
Street bus shelter in the next financial year,
and quotes are obtained to enable an
appropriate budget to be set.
FC/192 To approve membership of the Neighbourhood Meeting with GW Ongoing
Plan Task and Finish Group as Councillors Ginger, | Shropshire
Harris, Miller, Parry, Tapley and S Waite. Council being




Full Council

Items to Action

organised for
members of
Representational
Committee to
inform this new
council and to
progress item.

FC Meeting
14.04.2025
FC/363 SPRING STATEMENT IMPACT ON HIGH
STREET BUSINESSES AND TOWNS
To note the update on the impact of the To contact Tracy | GW Nov 25 - Still
government’s Spring Statement on the High Street, | Woods, SC. awaiting
and to approach Shropshire Council for the re response.
instatement of the Ludlow Future Partnership.
FC Meeting Ite Action Staff Status / Update | Date
23.06.2025
FC/112 LISTED BUILDINGS CONDITION REPORT
Invite contractors | GW Pending
That three contractors listed in the report are to quote.
invited to submit a quotation.
FC/129 TOWN WALLS




Full Council

Items to Action

To approve, without prejudice to Ludlow Town To liaise with

Council’s position that it is not liable, a contribution | LTWT. GW Ongoing

of £1,500 for hiring an external contractor to

reposition replacement bags of stone at the

collapsed section of the Town Wall as a gesture of

goodwill because of the H&S concerns.
FC Meeting Item Action Staff Status/Update Date
28.07.2025
FC/146 PROJECTS

That there are only two priority projects for the Installation taken

period September to December 2025 and are as place. Update

follows: provided to

Service
e Installation and functioning of CCTV throughout KA Committee.
Ludlow.
» Amplification equipment and live broadcasting HJ Complete Nov 2025
capabilities in the Guildhall chamber

FC Meeting
03.09.2025
FC/187 INSURANCE RENEWAL




Full Council

Items to Action

RESOLVED MT/PA (unanimous)

That the Council’s liability insurance be renewed To renew liability | GW /LJ | Ongoing
with Hiscox at a cost of £16,101.09, and that the insurance.
Task and Finish Group continue to meet to review
the policy and bring any amendments back to
Council for consideration.
FC/191 RESOLVED RO/MT (unanimous)
Alternative GW Pending
That alternative quotes be sought for the revaluation | quotes to be
of the council’s properties. sought.
FC Meeting
20.10.2025
FC/250 PROJECT UPDATES
That a follow up letter be sent to Shropshire To write to GW /HJ | Nov 25 - Letter
Council asking for progress on the Market Square | Shropshire sent to Rob
parking issue. Council again. Wilson.
Response
received. He will
press SC for
update.
FC/254 EFFICIENCY REVIEW

RESOLVED MT/JH (unanimous)




Full Council

Items to Action

That the Efficiency Review Task & Finish Group

draft full terms of reference for approval, consider | Timetable first GW
the timetable of action, assess the offer from LCC | Mmeeting to
and report back to Full Council. PTStab“Sh TOR,
timetable and
assess LCC offer.
FC/257 WHEELER ROAD PLAY AREA COVENANT
RESOLVED TG/IMM (9:0:1)
That a formal request be sent to the covenant To send a formal | GW /HJ | Response
holder to allow the temporary use of the request to received. To go
Recreation Area by Ludlow Rugby Club adults’ covenant holder. to Services
team on two evenings per week. ggmmlttee Nov
FC/268 GUILDHALL HEATING
RESOLVED KC/TG (unanimous) To liaise with HJ Nov 25 — C.O.

That the quotation of £33,273.09 ex. VAT from
Grange Heating be accepted, and the project in a
Grade | Listed building progresses to the next stage,
which is detailed sign off by the conservation officer.

Grange Heating
and Conservation
Officer to
progress the
project.

visit taken place.
To progress to
next stage.

COMPLETED




Full Council

Items to Action

FC Meeting
31.07.2023
FC/133 INSURANCE Questionnaire to | GW Complete
That: be returned to
i) the renewal questionnaire for the Town insurance
Council’s insurance is approved. company.
ii) the civic regalia is revalued. Civic regalia to
revalued. GW Complete July 2025
Specification
delegated
20.01.2025
FC/298 WHEELER ROAD RECREATION AREA
To support in principle the request from Ludlow | To locate and
Rugby Club to use Wheeler Road Recreation Area | write to original GW/HJ KoLyl Nov 2025
as a temporary training ground, subject to approval | grantee.
from a successor of the original grantee.
Oct 2025 — letter
sent with formal
request to
trustee. Syr
consent received.
FC Meeting
14.04.2025




Full Council

Items to Action

GW /HJ EeLedlolEE

FC/375 INTERNATIONAL DAY OF PEACE
To approve in principle the request from Ludlow To contact RBL
Quakers for a service at Ludlow Peace Memorial in | for their
September, subject to the recommendations of the | input/permission
Ludlow Royal British Legion. on behalf of the
Quakers.
FC Meeting Item Action Staff
23.06.2025
FC/106 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE AND ACCOUNTING
RETURN (AGAR) 2024/25
That the Annual Return Governance Statement Send AGAR to GW
2024/25 in accordance with the Accounts and external auditor.
Audit Regulations be approved.
FC/108 That publishing the detailed Annual return Account | On LTC website. | GW
document on the Council’s website be approved.
FC/109 That the dates from Monday 30" June to Friday 8" | On LTC website. | GW
August for the period for the exercise of public
rights be approved.
FC/110 SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL’S NEW APPROACH
TO PARTNERSHIP WITH TOWN AND PARISH
COUNCILS

Status / Update “

Complete 26/06/25

Complete 26/06/25

Complete 26/06/25

10



Full Council

Items to Action

That Councillors will either send their responses to | LTC response to | GW
the survey into the Town Clerk or directly into be submitted.
Shropshire Council.
FC/113 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)
That the Annual Neighbourhood Fund Agreement | Return to GW
be approved. Shropshire
Council.
FC/114 MARKET SQUARE PARKING
That the motion to urge Shropshire Council to To write to
promptly undertake a public consultation on a Shropshire GW/HJ
Traffic Regulation Order under the Road Traffic Council and
Regulation Act 1984 be approved. Portfolio holders.
FCI117 LUDLOW CANCER SUPPORT GROUP
To write to LCSG | GW / HJ
That the request for a statement of support from to confirm
the Town Council be approved. support.
FC/121 INCLUSIVE MEETINGS To approach
specialist HJ/KP

RESOLVED DL/KC (unanimous)

companies to
investigate the
solutions they

Complete

Complete

Complete

Complete —
updates in
Ongoing Iltems
‘Guildhall AV’.

26/06/25

July 2025

July 2025

July 2025

11



Full Council

Items to Action

That an investigation into amplification equipment | might be able to
and live streaming capabilities at the Guildhall be offer.
approved.
FC/122 RESOLVED PA/TG (unanimous) To update project | HJ
list
That the investigation into amplification equipment
and live streaming capabilities in the Guildhall be
added onto the Projects Action List.
FC/123 PROJECTS
To include on the
RESOLVED DL/IMM (unanimous) July agenda. KP
That the top three priority projects for June —
September 2025 be approved as CCTV, VJ Day,
and the Shaping Lives Project.
The next three priorities for October — December
2025 be considered at the July Council meeting. GW
FC/124 COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
RESOLVED DL/KC (unanimous)

Complete

Complete

Complete

12



Full Council

Items to Action

That Councillor Maxwell-Muller be approved onto | To update the HJ / KP
the membership of Services Committee, Policy & | committee matrix
Finance Committee, Staffing Committee, Climate and the website
Action Task & Finish Group and the Town Planters
Working Group.
FC/127 FRIENDS OF LUDLOW MUSEUM To notify the HJ
group
RESOLVED VP/SH (unanimous)
Councillor Parry is appointed the Town Council
representative.
FC/128 LUDLOW SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT BUS
GROUP
That the update from Ludlow Sustainable Refer actions to GW
Transport Bus Group be noted, and actions Rep Cttee for
referred to the Representational committee. July meeting.
FC/130 COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS
RESOLVED RO/IMM (11:0:2)
Write Off Debt
That the Ludlow Pride organisation that incurred the | T¢ ypdate the LJ

debt are no longer in existence and that the debt in

council’s records

Complete

Complete

Complete July 2025

Complete

13



Full Council

Items to Action

the sum of £45.00 plus VAT be written off.

INSURANCE

Insurance Task and Finish Group

That:-

a) an Insurance Task and Finish Group be set
up to review the Council’s insurance requirements;
b) the Insurance Task and Finish Group
membership be made up of Councillors Hepworth,
Owen and Taylor.

POLICY REVIEW
Financial Regulations

Safequarding — Children and Vulnerable Adults
Protection Policy

Task and Finish Group Recommendations — 5th
June 2025

To progress the
Council’s
insurance
renewal for
approval by Full
Council

To update the
policies and
distribute to staff /
on website

To action and
progress the
recommendations

GW

LJ

KA/GW

Complete

Complete

Complete

14



Full Council

Items to Action

to committee and

FC as
appropriate
FC Meeting Item Action Staff “
28.07.2025
FC/141 LUDLOW POLICE UPDATE To complete GW Complete August
survey and return 2025

To submit the Police Crime Commissioner (PCC) to PCC.
survey as drafted by the Town Clerk.

FC/145 VISIT SHROPSHIRE To renew GW Complete July 2025
membership.

To renew the Town Council’'s annual standard
level membership at a cost of £1,500.00.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

FC/149 To allow public filming unless disruptive. To update GW Complete Aug 2025
Standing Orders.

FC/150 To provide guidance on how to give notice and To update GW Complete August
speak at meetings on the Council’s website. website. 2025

FC/152 GW Complete

15



Full Council

Items to Action

That Members of the public who are not residents
of Ludlow may speak during public open session at
the discretion of the Chair, particularly where the
matter directly relates to the town or Council
responsibilities.

To update
Standing Orders.

FC/154 ADOPTION OF CLUSTER MODEL FOR
OUTDOOR SPACES PARTNERSHIP IN
SHROPSHIRE
To book a space | HJ
To note the cluster model and to approve Clir lan | at the
Maxwell-Muller to attend the Nature Recovery conference.
Conference on 3™ October.
FC/156 CORE GRANTS
To approve the amendment of the criteria to read: | To update criteria | GW
Organisations must be prepared to attend
Ludlow's Annual Town Residents Meeting to
showcase their work and publicly recognise the
To update GW

support received from Ludlow Town Council, and
to approve the release of the application form for
core grant applications in 2026/ 27.

application form

Complete

Complete

Complete

Aug 2025

July 2025

July 2025

16



Full Council

Items to Action

GW Complete July 2025

GW /KA EeLodyldl:= 06 July 2025

GW Complete

FC/160 TOWN CRIER
To update Town
Ludlow Town Council does not approve any Crier.
sponsorship opportunities or hosting a competition
in Ludlow.
FC/162 TOWN WALLS
To arrange single
To note the correspondence and to change the agenda item
Full Council meeting on 8" Sept to have thisasa | meeting.
single agenda item.
FC/164 SCAFFOLDING INSPECTION
To defer consideration until the requested Bring to next
information is received from Longmynd meeting.
Consultants Ltd.
FC/165 COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
To update matrix
To approve the amendment of the membership of | and website.
Policy & Finance Committee to reflect the
resignation of Councillor Harris from the
committee.

HJ Complete Aug 2025

17



Full Council

Items to Action

FC/166

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

To approve the following recommendations from
Policy & Finance Committee on 215t July 2025:

POLICY REVIEW

a) Investment policy
That the Council maintain a balance of
£150,000.00 in the current account and all other
funds to be vested in the CCLA Public Sector
Deposit Fund.

b) Communications Policies

a) A Communication Strategy Task and Finish
Working Group be set up to review the Press
Protocol, Social Media Policy,
Communications Protocol and Community
Engagement Policy and the terms of reference
be approved.

b) The Communications Policy Task and Finish
Working Group membership is Councillors
Childs, Cowell, Lyle, Maxwell-Muller, Owen
and Scott-Bell

CLIMATE ACTION TASK & FINISH GROUP

To update P & F
Committee
Officer.

GW

Complete

18



Full Council

Items to Action

That:-

a)

b)

The minutes of the Climate Action Task and
Finish Group meeting held on the 11" July
2025 be received.

The Climate Action Task and Finish Group
recommendations from the 11t July 2025
be approved as follows:

That a meeting of the Ludlow Town Centre
Task and Finish Group be organised in
Sept and put together a seasonal planting
and tub maintenance strategy for 2025/26
This forum will allow us to begin pulling
ideas together for the provision and
maintenance of planting throughout Ludlow.
That a volunteer group named St Johns
Guardians should be set up. Once up and
running all updates and information to go
via Services Committee. The first volunteer
day to take place on a weekday in
September, DLF to all be available to assist
with removal of rubbish etc, spades forks
and trowels to be brought by the person or
loaned by the DLF.

That the updates made to the Climate
Action Plan as listed above be approved.

Complete

19



Full Council

Items to Action

FCM73 WORK EXPERIENCE
To update HJ Complete, to Sept
To approve the request from a local college. college and make commence Oct 2025
arrangements 2025.
03.09.2025
FC/188 RESOLVED MT/IMM (unanimous)
That the Council’s listed buildings and civic regalia
insurance be renewed with Ecclesiastical at a cost | To renew listed GW/LJ EefdyldlE=HGE
of £9,642.79, and that the Task and Finish Group | buildings and
continue to meet to review the policy and bring any | civic regalia
amendments back to Council for consideration. insurance.
FC/189 RESOLVED MT/KC (unanimous)
To approve cyber insurance up to £1 million cover
for a premium of £981.00 and a £2,500 excess for | To arrange cyber | GW /LJ [EKo{ely]lf:1
one year, and that the Task and Finish Group insurance.
continue to meet to review the policy and bring any
proposed amendments back to Council for
consideration.
FC/190 RESOLVED MT/IMM (unanimous)
That the Council’'s motor insurance be renewed for GW/LJ KefeJlo G

20



Full Council

Items to Action

HJ Complete

GW /HJ EeedulodEE Oct 2025

one year, and that the Task and Finish Group To renew motor
continue to meet to review the policy and bring any | insurance.
proposed amendments back to Council for
consideration.

FC/193 COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
RESOLVED DL/KC (unanimous)

To amend and

That the membership of the Representational | update committee
Committee be amended to reflect the resignation of | membership.
Councillor Lyle, and that Councillor Parry be
appointed to the Communications Strategy Task
and Finish Working Group.

FC/194 SCAFFOLD ASSESSMENT
RESOLVED DL/TG (unanimous)

Instruct

That the £540.00 quotation from Longmynd Longmynd
Consultants Ltd to assess the scaffolding Consultants.
surrounding the substation be approved.

FC Meeting

08.09.2025

FC/204 LEGAL ADVICE

21



Full Council

Items to Action

The council received advice from their barrister and
solicitor relating to the collapsed section of wall at
St Laurence’s church, and agreed that a second
meeting would be required to discuss the matter
further.

To hold further
extraordinary

council meeting.

GW Complete

FC Meeting
24.09.2025

FC/218

CHURCHYARD AT ST LAURENCE CHURCH

RESOLVED DL/KC (12:0:1)

That a Task & Finish Group be formed to facilitate
the progression of discussions and defer all
decision making to Full Council.

To arrange first
meeting and
formulate terms
of reference.

GW Complete

FC/219

RESOLVED MT/KC (unanimous)

That as a matter of urgency the solicitor be
instructed to issue a response, including the
council’s willingness to enter into discussions, to the
letter received on 6" September 2025.

GW Complete

FC/220

RESOLVED DL/KC (unanimous)

GW Complete

22



Full Council

Items to Action

That membership of the Task & Finish Group is
Councillors Childs, Ginger, Hepworth, Lyle, Owen,
Scott-Bell. Tapley, and Taylor.

FC/221 RESOLVED PA/KC (unanimous)
That a public statement outlining the decisions GW
made at the meeting be issued.
FC Meeting Item Action Staff
28.07.2025
FC/174 GUILDHALL HEATING
To approach Shropshire Council’s Conservation Contact SC HJ
Officer asking for their recommendations for Conservation
heating to be installed in a Grade | listed building. | Officer.
FC/175 GUILDHALL AV
To ask prospective suppliers to provide a Contact HJ
demonstration in the Guildhall of how the suppliers.

equipment would work in the chamber before
quotes are considered, or arrange for members to

Complete Sept
2025

Status/Update “

Complete Oct 2025

Complete Oct 2025
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Full Council

Items to Action

visit a comparable site to experience working

equipment.
FC Meeting Ite Action Staff Status/Update
20.10.2025
FC/234 SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL DEVOLUTION OF

SERVICES

RESOLVED KC/IMM (unanimous)

That the Town Clerk be authorised to sign and | To sign and GW Complete Oct 2025
return the Memorandum of Understanding with | return the MOU.
Shropshire Council.

FC/235 RESOLVED KC/GG (unanimous)
To inform Shropshire Council that subject to
adequate funding from Shropshire Council, Ludlow | To contact GW Complete Nov 2025
Town Council are interested in discussing the Shropshire

following local services in Ludlow: Council

. Litter picking and street

cleaning
. Grounds maintenance and
verge cutting
. Public waste bin management
. Graffiti and fly-posting removal

24



Full Council

Items to Action

Highway weed control

Support for public events
Maintenance of street furniture
Community clean-up support

. Shropshire Council owned
play areas in Ludlow (subject to
confirmation from Shropshire
Council that they have the legal
ability to transfer the play areas
to Ludlow Town Council)

FC/236

RESOLVED GG/IMM (unanimous)

To inform Shropshire Council that Ludlow Town
Council does not at present consider itself able to
support the following services, but is nonetheless
concerned about the provision of the following
services:

. Ludlow Library

. Teme Leisure

. Youth Services

. Support for Ludlow Museum

To contact
Shropshire
Council

GW

FC/237

RESOLVED KC/PA (unanimous)

GW

Complete

Complete

Nov 2025

Nov 2025
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Full Council

Items to Action

That Ludlow Town Council shares its response to
the government Town and Parish Neighborhood
Governance consultation with Shropshire Council.

To share
document with
SC.

FC/238

RESOLVED MT/KC (unanimous)

That a Task & Finish Group is not formed at this
point, but the council contacts Shropshire Council /
Claire Braddock to open discussions.

To contact
Shropshire
Council.

GW

FC/240

RESOLVED GG/IMM (10:0:1)

To approve the scope and objectives of this year’s
budget-setting process as the following:

e To support existing services
e To support council projects
e To support Ludlow during
devolution of services from
Shropshire Council
To approve the budget setting premise of:

e Inflation: 3.6%
e Interest Rate: 4%

LJ

Complete

Complete

Complete

Nov 2025

Nov 2025

Nov 2025
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Full Council

Items to Action

To approve the reorganisation of budget lines as
identified in the T&F notes.

To approve the release of a consultation in
December that discusses the range of options
open to the council with as much information as is
available.

GW

FC/241

CORE GRANTS

RESOLVED GG/TG (unanimous)

That a grant of £1,000.00 to South Shropshire
Youth Forum in 2026/27 be approved.

To write to SSYF.

HJ

FC/242

RESOLVED GG/TG (unanimous)

That a grant of £1,050.00 to Ludlow Town Concert
Band in 2026/27 be approved.

To write to
Ludlow Town
Concert Band.

HJ

FC/243

RESOLVED GG/VP (9:0:2)

That the original application from Ludlow Town FC
was retrospective and therefore refused because it
was outside of council’s criteria. The council

offered the opportunity for an amended application

To write to

Ludlow Town FC.

HJ

Complete —
Report to go to
Full Council
Dec 2025.

Complete

Complete

Complete

Nov 2025

Nov 2025

Nov 2025

Nov 2025

27



Full Council

Items to Action

Complete Nov 2025

Complete

Complete

but were unable to accept the submitted
application for a wholly different project.
FC/244 RESOLVED KC/IMM (unanimous)
That the grant of £5,000.00 to Ludlow Visitor | To write to
Information Centre in 2026/27 be approved. Ludlow VIC. HJ
FC/245 RESOLVED TG/GG (8:0:3)
That a grant of £1,000.00 to Pentabus Theatre in | To write to
2026/27 be approved. Pentabus HJ
Theatre.
FC/246 SAFER NEIGHBOURHOOD TEAM POLICING
PRIORITIES
RESOLVED KC/MT (unanimous) To return HJ
priorities to SNT.
That the agreed priorities for October 2025 to March
2026 are:
1. Drugs
2. Antisocial behaviour including driving
3. Commercial and domestic theft
FC/248 SHROPSHIRE _COUNCIL PARKING CHARGES
CONSULTATION
RESOLVED ISB/PA (unanimous)

Nov 2025

Nov 2025
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Full Council

Items to Action

To object to the proposed increases in parking
charges because of the severe detrimental impact
upon Ludlow, which is a small market town with a
population of less than 11,000.

To report these concerns to the press and public
that the Council is actively opposing the new
charges.

To contact
Shropshire
Council with LTC
objection.

To share
objection with
press and public.

GW Oct 2025

GW /KP Koyl Oct 2025

HJ Complete Nov 2025

FC/255 PROJECT SUPPORT GRANTS
RESOLVED KC/MT (unanimous) To write to LAR.
That a £750 grant to Ludlow Assembly Rooms be
approved.

FC/256 RESOLVED TG/AT (unanimous)

That clarification be sought from Hope House
Hospice of specific instances in which the grant
funding would benefit individuals from Ludlow
postcodes.

To write to Hope
House for
additional
information.

To return to Dec
FC.

HJ Complete Nov 2025
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Full Council

Items to Action

FC/258

RESOLVED MT/IMM (9:0:1)

That once the Christmas Lights installation is
completed, the grass cutting at Wheeler Road
recreation area becomes the top priority for the
Direct Labour Force.

To add to DLF
work schedule.

KA/ MH [ofelqq]o] [ Nov 2025

FC/260

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

RESOLVED KC/MT (9:0:1)

That the recommendations from Policy and
Finance Committee on 15t September 2025 and
13t October 2025 be approved:

AGED DEBTORS

That invoice number 1139 for 30p owed by Craven
Arms Memorials be written off.

POLICY REVIEW

Information and Data Protection Policy
That the Information and Data Protection Policy, as

To update Policy
& Finance
Committee
Officer.

P&F Committee
Officer to update

Complete Nov 2025
HJ

LJ Complete Nov 2025
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Full Council

Items to Action

amended to state that the policy will be reviewed
“annually” instead of “periodically”, be adopted.

Data Transparency Policy
That Data Transparency Policy be amended in

include the publication of the quarterly income and
expenditure reports and the earmarked reserves on
the Council’s website.

That the Data Transparency Policy, as amended, be
adopted.

Data Breach Policy
That the Data Breach Policy, as amended to state

that it replaces the Data Breach Policy adopted on
the 17t June 2019, be adopted.

Freedom of Information Policy
That the Freedom of Information Policy, as

amended to state that the policy will be reviewed
annually, be adopted.

RESIDENTIAL RENTAL

policies folder
and
Communications
Officer to update
website.

To communicate
the agreed
policies to staff in
writing.

KP

LJ

LJ

Nov 2025

Nov 2025
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Full Council

Items to Action

That a residential rent remains at £500.00 per
month to be increased annually by inflation from
January 2026.

POLICY REVIEW

Recruitment and Selection Policy
That the Recruitment and Selection Policy, be

adopted.

Sexual Harassment Policy and Action Plan

That the Sexual Harassment Policy and Action
Plan, be adopted.

Hedgerow Policy
That the Hedgerow Policy, be adopted.

For P&F
Committee
Officer.

FC/261

RESOLVED VP/ISB (unanimous)

That the recommendations from Representational
Committee on 9" September 2025 be approved:

CORONATION AVENUE

To write to SC.

HJ

Complete Nov 2025
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Full Council

Items to Action

To recommend to Full Council that Shropshire
Council are given a list of critical roads in Ludlow,
which should not be closed, but if works are
required they are open with 2-way traffic lights
especially during the busiest times of year which
are summer, Christmas and the festivals:

Sheet Road
Henley Road
Dinham Bridge
Temeside
Bromfield Road
Coronation Avenue
Galdeford

e Overton Road

FC/269

CHAMBER AMPLIFICATION SYSTEM

RESOLVED IMM/TG (unanimous)

That the quotation of £6,094.00 ex. VAT from Sound
Induction Systems be accepted.

To progress the
project with SIS.

HJ

Complete

Nov 2025
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BUDGET SETTING FOR 2026 / 27
Report No. FC/25/26

Full Council
1st December 2025

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report provides an update on the progress of budget setting for the
financial year 2026 / 27.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 To approve the recommendations of the Budget Task and Finish group as
listed in their notes for the meeting on 20" November 2025.

2.2 To approve the budget consultation statement and survey for release.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The council received a report in October 2025, and approved the

following:

That the scope and objectives of this year’s budget-setting process as the

following:

o] To support existing services

o] To support council projects

o] To support Ludlow during devolution of services from Shropshire
Council

That the budget setting premise of inflation of 3.6%, and interest rates of
4%

The reorganization of identified budget lines.

The release of a budget consultation in December.
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4.2

4.3

4.4

CURRENT SITUATION

Whilst the economic context for budget setting in 2026 / 27 remains
uncertain, Ludlow Town Council has signed a Memorandum of
Understanding Shropshire Council to set out the principles and areas of
cooperation between the two councils to explore more effective service
provision, avoid duplication, and explore opportunities for local service
devolution where appropriate.

The Town Council has previously successfully delivered new services
including public toilets and street trading in 2011 and hosted the Arts
Council Accredited Ludlow Musuem at the Buttercross, working under a
MOU with Shropshire Council, from 2016.

Most recently, the Town Council has met with Shropshire Council to talk
about Ludlow Library, whilst the council would probably not seek to take
on the full running of the library, it is looking at options for supporting
Ludlow’s library.

The Budget Task and Finish Group met on 20" November and considered
the General Reserves and Earmarked Reserves — the notes of the
meeting are ATTACHED to this report.

The Council should note that an inflationary fee increase across most
services is being considered by Services Committee on 26" November.

The draft budget Consultation and survey questions are ATTACHED to
this report.

Town Clerk
November 2025

Implications

Wards Affected (All)

Financial (As stated in the report)

Health & Safety (Unstated)

Law & Order (Unstated)

Environmental Implications (Unstated)



Notes from Budget-Setting T&F Group Meeting
at The Guildhall, Mill Street Ludlow
on Thursday 20" November 2025, at 9:30 am
Attended by: Clirs Cowell, Lyle, Owen, Taylor (Chair), Scott-Bell, Town Clerk, Gina

Wilding and Finance Assistant, Lucy Jones.

Apologies from: Clirs Gill, Ginger, and Hepworth.

NOTES

Earmarked Reserves and Projects:

To make the following recommendations to Full Council:

EMR No. | Name Balance Action
321 Capital Reserve Henley £2,213.34 Unallocated capital fund —
Orchard move to EMR Neighbourhood
Fund (323)

322 EMR Public Toilets £26,478.00 | Set up site specific EMRs
and allocate this EMR
between them

325 EMR Play Areas Fund £51,072.00 | Set up site specific EMRs
and allocate this EMR
between them

327 EMR Skatepark £997.00 Move to EMR Play Areas
Fund (325)

334 EMR Wheeler Play Area £2,000.00 Move to EMR Play Areas

Resurface Fund (325)

341 EMR Signage £7,117.00 Move to EMR Play Areas
Fund (325)

353 EMR Contingency Fund £55,004.00 | Rename Town Walls Legal
Costs

359 EMR Large Project Fund £292,641.10 | Rename Devolution Fund

362 EMR Grant Match Funding | £20,000.00 | Move to EMR Neighbourhood
Plan (363)

365 EMR Staffing Contingencies | £50,000.00 | Move to EMR Devolution
Fund (359)

366 EMR Legal and Reg £30,000.00 | Move to EMR Town Wall

Compliance Legal Costs (353)




Increase EMR to
£200,000.00 from General

Fund
368 EMR Mem Bench/Plaque £195.00 Move to EMR Street
Maintenance Furniture (342)

Fee Setting: It was noted that a 3.6% fee increase would be considered by Services
Committee on the 26" November 2025.

Draft Budget: Remove budget 4011/119 Buttercross Rates.

Draft Budget Consultation: To draw on the statement approach of Bridgnorth Town
Council and to consider a simple survey on existing services and potential additional
services to be provided by Ludlow Town Council.

Next meeting: 9:30 am on Tuesday 16" December 2025.

To work towards finalising the budget and precept report.



fTown Council

Statement from Ludlow Town Council

Shropshire Council's worsening financial situation, and its need to consider devolving as yet
unidentified services, has the potential to affect communities across the county. In response,
Ludlow Town Council is launching a community engagement plan to help inform its approach to
Shropshire Council's financial difficulties and to understand our residents' longer-term
expectations of their town council.

Following the signing of a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Shropshire Council, Town
Councillors have agreed to develop an operational plan focused on delivering improved services
and creating an improved environment for residents, visitors, and other stakeholders.

The MoU outlines the principles and areas of cooperation between the two councils, including
opportunities to strengthen service delivery and, where appropriate, consider the local
devolution of services. Our shared aim is to provide the best possible services in a cost-effective
way for our residents.

We have already begun discussions with Shropshire Council to identify areas where Ludlow
Town Council may be able to offer additional support. However, residents should be aware that
any extra responsibilities taken on by the town council are likely to result in additional costs,
which would potentially need to be reflected in the council tax householders pay. It is too early
to provide an estimate of costs.

This comes at a challenging time as we prepare the budget for 2026/2027. We are acutely
aware of the impact this may have on council tax levels, but we must also consider the wider
implications of changes, and a potential reduction in services at the county level, and act in the
best interests of our community.

It is therefore essential that we hear from residents about what they want their Town Council to
prioritise in the coming years. We will be strengthening our communication through a range of
channels, including surveys and community meetings, to ensure everyone can share their
views.

Ludlow Town Council's achievements this year reflect our commitment to safety, community
support, and continual improvement. We hope residents feel proud of the progress made,
including:

¢ More than doubling Ludlow's CCTV coverage, adding number plate recognition cameras
on key routes and extending surveillance far beyond the town centre.

¢ Refurbishing the Mill Street bus shelter.

e Working in partnership with Hands Together, Ludlow and Shropshire Council to deliver a
food resilience project.

e Supporting market traders by improving the infrastructure of Ludlow market; and
launching an improved website — www.ludlowmarket.co.uk

¢ Installing a new audio system to improve sound quality at Town Council meetings.



o Encouraging volunteers to improve the ecology and environment at Henley Road
Cemetery and St. John’s Gardens

o Working with local children and community groups to create the beautiful poppy
waterfall, symbolising respect, and remembrance.

We will continue to keep residents informed as our discussions with Shropshire Council
develop.

We invite you to share your ideas about what matters most to you, your opinion matters.
Please complete our survey: [link]
Paper copies available from The Guildhall, Mil Street, Ludlow SY8 1AZ. T: 01584 871 970

Open for comments until 2 January 2026.



Ludlow

Town Council

Ludlow Town Council is developing plans to protect and improve local services, the environment, and community
wellbeing. As we prepare for the year ahead, we want to hear from residents about what matters most and where
the Town Council should focus its efforts

* 1. Please select the Town Council Services you value most (please select up to 5).

|| Allotments | | Floral displays | | Parks and green spaces
D Bus shelters and benches D Henley Road Cemetery I:] Play areas
|:| Cameras and CCTV D Ludlow Market street lighting D Public toilets
maintenance
D Ludlow Market and street D Support for community groups
D Christmas Lights trading and charities
|:| Civic and Community events D Ludlow Museum at the
Buttercross

* 2. Thinking about all services, how would you rate your satisfaction with Ludlow Town
Council?

Very dissatisfied Very satisfied

O [

* 3. Overall, how confident are you that the Town Council is acting in line with community
interests?

Not at all confident Very Confident


https://createweb-export.shipyard.prod.us-west-2.momentive.internal/create/survey/view?sm=LgH3sUmToiXN6bPZWxTq5gzgyzQltEDIhzZDCP49UqGsdJtJhOH67r8Xp048pkRh&include_border=False&include_images=True&include_survey_title=True&exclude_page_breaks=True&no_theme=True&print_orientation=Portrait&page_size=Letter#
https://createweb-export.shipyard.prod.us-west-2.momentive.internal/create/survey/view?sm=LgH3sUmToiXN6bPZWxTq5gzgyzQltEDIhzZDCP49UqGsdJtJhOH67r8Xp048pkRh&include_border=False&include_images=True&include_survey_title=True&exclude_page_breaks=True&no_theme=True&print_orientation=Portrait&page_size=Letter#

* 4. How important is it to enhance the following services?

Not very
Very Important Important Neutral Not Important Important

Public planting and
floral features

Flytipping removal
and Graffitti

Paths and verge
maintenance

Street Cleaning

Henley Road
Cemetery

Ludlow Museum

Ludlow Market

5. What should be the Town Council’s top priority over the next five years?

6. Would you like to share any additional thoughts about local services or the future of
Ludlow?

* 7. Please indicate which areas should be prioritised if additional funding was made
available.

Improving parks and green spaces

Increasing youth and community services

Investing in cultural areas such as Library and Museum
Keeping streets clean and tidy

Keeping people safe

Town centre upkeep

Other (please specify)



8. How well informed do you feel about the work of Ludlow Town Council?

Extremely well informed
Very well informed
Somewhat informed

Not so well informed

Not at all well informed

9. What communication channels do you use to access information about the Town Council?

Magazines
(print/online
i.e. Local to
Social Social Ludlow,
Media: Media: Local Printed Visit

Website Facebook Instagram Noticeboards Press/radio Leaflets/posters Shropshire)

Ludlow Town
Council

Ludlow Market

Ludlow Museum
at the Buttercross
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Communications Task & Finish Group
Update

Report No. FC/25/27

Full Council
15t December 2025

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report sets up the work and recommendations of the Communications
Task and Finish Group for the period July to November 2025.

2, RECOMMENDATION

2.1 To adopt the improved Community Engagement Strategy that supersedes
the existing strategy from point 4 onwards.

2.2  To approve the strapline Looking After Ludlow’s Future and that the T&F
group develop an ambitious action plan to support this aspiration. The
plan would be subject to approval by Full Council.

2.3  That the Communications T&F group refocuses on the original remit
to review council’s communications policies and protocols to create a
user-friendly suite of policies that strengthen the council’s engagement
with the community.

2.3  That the T&F reports back to Full Council in April 2026.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 InJuly 2025, a Communications Task and Finish Group was set up by Full

Council. Communications and Marketing Officer Kim Pickford, working in
collaboration with the Task and Finish Group and the Town Clerk, has
taken the lead on developing the desired improvements.




4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The remit of the group was to review the policies and protocols of the
Council relating to the use of, and interaction with, the media (including
press, broadcasting and social media) and to consider the Council’s
relationship and communications with the local community, review the
relevant strategy and prepare an action plan for strengthening
engagement with the community.

The Task and Finish Group set a target date to report back to Full Council
in December 2025.

CURRENT SITUATION

The Communications T&F group has worked with a strong sense of the
imminent change that is underpinned by the new term of the council and
the unfolding financial crisis in Shropshire Council.

To date the group has met four times on 28" August, 25" September, 24t
October and 215t November. The notes from these meetings are
APPENDED to this report.

The T&F group looked at the council’s communications policies and
agreed that they require additional reviews to simplify and unify the
content, ensuring a more user-friendly suite of policies. The detail of this
work is yet to be undertaken.

The T&F group has reviewed the existing Community Engagement
Strategy, and draft an improved communication strategy, which
supersedes the existing Community Engagement Strategy from point 4
onwards — and is APPENDED to the report. The T&F group has also
worked on a new strap line including preliminary consultation, which is
feedback in the relevant meeting notes.

The T&F has also collaborated with the Budget T&F to develop their initial
ideas for the budget consultation into the final draft document.

Town Clerk
November 2025

Implications

Wards Affected (All)

Financial (Unstated)

Health & Safety (Unstated)



Law & Order (Unstated)

Environmental Implications (Unstated)



Notes from Communications Strategy Task and Finish Group

On Thursday 28™ August, The Guildhall, Mill Street at 10am

Attendees: Clirs, Cowell, Lyle, Maxwell-Muller, Owen, and Parry (to be added to
the membership at the next Full Council meeting), Kim Pickford,
Marketing and Communications Officer, and Gina Wilding, Town Clerk.

Apologies: Clirs Childs, and Scott Bell.

e ClIr lan Maxwell-Muller was unanimously elected Chair - nominated by Clir
Lyle and seconded by Clir Owen.

e Marketing and Communications Officer, Kim Pickford presented the social
media and website insights - attached for further information.

e Kim talked the group through a review paper detailing Council audiences,
relevant communication channels (both currently used and suggestions to be
used), opportunity areas, and metrics for measuring success — the paper is
attached for information.

e Exploring and planning Councillor Surgeries was identified as a topic for the
next meeting. Specific points of interest included locations for surgeries
throughout the parish (wards), open air ‘Chat and Sip’ gazebo surgeries on
the Events Square, perhaps online surgeries (Facebook), groups of Clirs
holding surgeries as well as one-to-one sessions.

e Engaging with young people (college students or school students) through an
interactive TikTok video project was also put forward for further discussion at
the next meeting as a way for the Council to develop of a TikTok channel.

e The next meeting was agreed for 2:30 pm on Thursday 25" September 2025
at the Guildhall.

e There is the option for the group to agree to invite an external consultant
when relevant topics are considered at future meetings.



Notes:

The T&F group reviewed the TOR - key points identified below:

Purpose: To review the policies and protocols of the Council relating to the use of, and
interaction with, the media (including press, broadcasting and social media) and to
consider the Council’s relationship and communications with the local community,

review the relevant strategy and prepare an action plan for strengthening engagement
with the community."

Target date of completion: December 2025
It was suggested that:
e Policies should be streamlined / simplified.

e The strategy needed more substance, and the protocols should remain distinct
from the strategy.

e There should be a separate action / marketing plan to identify / quantify
deliverables from the strategy.

There was a brainstorming session for key messaging to drive across socials, with action
for KP to weave into reviewed comms strategy linking to segments. Additional columns
could also identify the relevant service areas.
Key Messaging Notes: (grouped)
Governance & Community Values

e Prudent Financial Management

e Transparent & Accountable

e InTouch with Communities

e Active Listening & Approachability

e Collaborative & Conduit for Partnership
Local Economy & Identity

e Supporting Local Economy

e Tourism & Museum Engagement

e Proud of Ludlow

e Market Presence & Sighage

Wellbeing & Environment



e Environmentally Aware
e Health Through Open Spaces
e Looking After & Caring
e Supporting Youth
o ASafer Town
Social Impact
e Engage with Charities

¢ Inclusive & Caring Culture

Discussion around developing strap line to accompany logo.

Strapline ideas: Love Ludlow (adopted by Chambers of Trade), Looking After Ludlow



Comms Task and Finish Group — Meeting Notes (Friday 24th October)

Attendees: Cllrs, Cowell, Lyle, Maxwell-Muller, Owen, Scott-Bell and Parry, Kim
Pickford, Marketing and Communications Officer, and Gina Wilding, Town Clerk.

Apologies: Cllrs Childs

Next Meeting: Friday 21st November, 10:30am

Strap Line Development

Reviewed the pre-read document: Key Messaging / Strap Line Concept, Proposal
and Plan.

Initial strap line: ‘Looking After Ludlow’.
Further brainstorming led to alternative ideas:
o Working Hard for Ludlow
o Looking Forward for Ludlow
o Evolved concept: ‘Looking After Ludlow’s Future’.

Discussed conducting a small sampling of the strap line across a cross-section
of the community before the next meeting.

Action: GW to provide a list of organisations for KP to contact for sampling.

Community Engagement

Ideas shared around engaging local schools in a future competition exploring
what the strap line means to them.

Reviewed the Community Engagement Strategy document.

Noted that ‘Key Messaging’ and ‘Services Provided’ had been added by KP to the
proposed amendment document based on ‘Looking After Ludlow’ and will need
to be slightly adapted with adoption of ‘Looking After Ludlow’s Future’.

Action: KP to revisit the document to reflect the updated strap line.

Monitoring & Evaluation

Query raised regarding Section 5: Measuring Success—clarification needed on
where success metrics will be reported.

Discussion around Visit Shropshire’s insight reports and dashboard trends.

Action: KP to raise questions in upcoming meeting with Visit Shropshire.



Comms Task and Finish Group — Meeting Notes (Friday 215t November)

Attendees: Cllrs, Cowell, Maxwell-Muller, Owen, Scott-Bell and Parry, Kim Pickford,
Marketing and Communications Officer, and Gina Wilding, Town Clerk.

Apologies: Cllrs Childs, Lyle

Next Meeting: Friday 9™ Jan 2026, 10:30am
Updates on Previous Actions (KP)

1. Visit Shropshire insights — available, but meeting with VS still to be scheduled
(rollover action).

2. Documents updated - strapline incorporated into previous documents.

3. Feedback outreach - contacted 12 organisations; responses received from 2
(Chambers of Trade and Ludlow Youth Club).

o Strapline feedback and recommendations document circulated as
pre-read.

o Group welcomed youth input; feedback was reasonably favourable.
Task considered complete, strapline agreed.
VP requested list of organisations contacted and copy of outreach email.

Discussion Points
¢ Community education & sentiment feedback

o Need to show residents what LTC has achieved and capture ongoing
sentiment.

o Agreed to explore periodic, multi-channel consultations (digital
platforms plus print options such as inserts in Local Ludlow magazine).

o Emphasis on fostering a two-way conversation to ease tensions at future
Town Residents meetings.

e Understanding LTC’s role

o How to better explain what LTC does and does not do.

o Example noted: Shrewsbury’s updated “honeycomb” infographic.
e Budget/ Devolution survey

o To be developed for the December Full Council.

o Transparency around budget and communication methods discussed to
be followed up in subsequent T&F meetings.



AOB
e 1 Dec-Alex Wagner attending Full Council to provide an update on devolution.

e Group will continue into next year, but strategy update to be delivered to Full
Councilin December.

Actions

1. GW to write report for FC to consider and approve of the T&F group
recommendations - including the budget consultation / survey

2. KP towork with ISB to create Budget Devolution Survey (for December FC).
3. KP to provide list of organisations contacted and copy of outreach email.

4. KP towork with ISB on Sentiment Consultation - to go live end of January.
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Ludlow Town Council

Community Engagement Strategy

1. Introduction

Ludlow Town Council has developed a community engagement strategy with the
aim of constructing a standard for engagement with its residents and partners. It
recognises that the services it provides must reflect the needs of its parishioners
and the locality.

Ludlow Town Council strongly believes that its residents should be involved in
decisions affecting them and their neighbourhood and in shaping the future of
their town.

2. Aims

The aim of the strategy is to improve the way in which the Council engages and
consults its residents and partners on important issues by:

¢ Informing, consulting and involving, being inclusive and engaging with all of
its residents and partners;

e Ensuring views are listened to and used to develop, enhance and improve
services, the environment and the quality of life for residents.

3. Objectives

e To improve, plan and shape the future of the town according to local needs
and priorities.

e To improve the quality and delivery of services

e To use engagement to inform decision making, ensuring decisions are fit for
purpose and meet the needs of the town

e To enhance the wellbeing of the town

e To be stronger, more active and cohesive town

4. How this will be achieved

Community engagement will be achieved by Ludlow Town Council by
communicating, consulting, supporting and working together with its residents.
The Council will be open and accountable in its dealings with residents and the
community. It will make information on its policies and procedures freely
available.

4.1 Communication
Communicating with members of the town will be achieved in many ways to
ensure all sections of the community are reached.



The Buttercross Bulletin, which is available from outlets in the Town, the local
Library and the Town Council website, informs residents on important issues and
is a medium for consultation and include articles on topical issues.

The Town Council’s Website has a wealth of local information and is updated
regularly. Special events and important notices will continue to be added, along
with public consultations. All agendas are advertised as required under the Local
Government Act 1972, including on the website, and minutes of the meetings are
included on the website within 10 working days of approval at the meeting.

Facebook and Twitter
Special events and important notices will continue to be added.

Information leaflets are available from the Council’s office and can also be
downloaded from the website. New leaflets will be added as necessary.

Meetings of the Council are open to the public and include an opportunity for
members of the town to engage with Councillors. All meetings include an
adjournment for public participation and start at 7:00pm.

Council’s Noticeboards will be used to convey information to residents, dates of
meetings and agendas.

Town Council Office is required to play a neutral role so that residents can be
fully involved and be confident that they are receiving unbiased information and
support. This neutral involvement allows more flexibility in the service and the
personal element of the contact hopefully encourages more involvement from the
hard to reach members of the community.

4.2 Consultation

Consulting all parishioners on important issues will be key to the strategy. It will
ensure those most affected are able to put forward an opinion and given the
opportunity to make a difference.

The aim of all consultations is to include all members of the town by identifying
the hard to reach groups such as youths, the elderly, the housebound, the
disabled, ethnic minorities etc. This will be done via social media, the Town
Council website, Newsletter and local press.

4.3 Support
Supporting local organisations engaging with them to assist them in meeting their
own aims and objectives, where appropriate and if possible.

Supporting local projects and participating in local events will raise the awareness
of the Council and its aims and objectives.

Supporting members of the town in shaping the future of their town will bring
about a more cohesive community.

The Council will be receptive to requests from residents or communities and will
attempt to be flexible in order to ensure their opinions are known not only to the
Town Council but also to other organisations. This may be by including an item
for discussion on an agenda, allowing a group to put their opinions into an official



report undertaken by the Town Council or by meeting young people at a local
playground.

4.4 Acting Together
Acting together with residents and partners in finding solutions to local problems
will ensure they will be accepted and fit for purpose.

Acting together to carry out agreed action plans, will engage the community in
working with the Council to enhance the environments and the quality of their
lives.

Acting together in decision making and policy drafting will ensure they have a
voice and can make a difference.

5. Measuring Success

Success will be measured by predefined targets, including an annual review,
consultation outcomes, monitoring residents’ participation in consultation
processes and increase involvement in local projects and events.

6. Strategy Reviews

Annual reviews of the consultation processes and results will be used as a
continual improvement process for changes or amendments to the strategy.



Ludlow Town Council Community Engagement Strategy (proposed amendments)

Section 4.1: COMMUNICATION

‘Communicating with members of the town will be achieved in many ways to ensure all

sections of the community are reached’

Audience Segmentation & Tailored Messaging

Sesment Needs & Messaging | Key Preferred |Services Provided
g Interests Style Messaging Channels
Youth consultations,
school visits,
museum workshops,
creative challenges,
“Looking After play area
Identity, s . maintenance, grant
. Playful, Ludlow’s TikTok, .
Youth creativity, . funding SYA youth
) visual, Future -Your |Instagram,
(11-16) voice, . . . club and SSYF
" interactive |voice matters ||X o
opportunities in Ludlow” activities,
encouraging young
people to explore
business with low set
up costs on the
market.
Playground,
recreation area, skate
park provision, with
benches, litter bins,
Warm, « . and public toilets,
. Events, ) _ Looking After||Facebook, ‘p _
Families informative s . family-friendly
safety, Ludlow’s Website, )
& . , events, wellbeing
education, _ ||[Future - Safe, |[Newsletter,|| = |
Parents . community . initiatives, local
local services supportive, Instagram
-focused safety updates, bus
and full of
. ’ shelters, Christmas
family fun

lights. Town Centre
shopping at Ludlow
market.




S t Needs & Messaging | Key Preferred |Services Provided
egmen
g Interests Style Messaging Channels
“Looking After Museum exhibitions,
Ludlow’s printed info,
Future - Local cemetery care, civic
Adult/ Heritage, Respectful,||Preserving press, updates, Senior’s
u
Reti accessibility, |nostalgic, |[Ludlow’s printed Christmas party,
etiree
civic pride clear charm, flyers, Christmas lights,
together” Facebook |Town Centre
shopping at Ludlow
market.
Town Centre trading
y . position, dedicated
Looking After )
market website
Ludlow’s ) )
. promoting their
Profession ||Future - }
Local ) . Instagram, |business, Market
Promotion, al, Supporting i
Traders & ) . , Website, management, trader
collaboration, ||supportive, ||[Ludlow’s ) ] )
SMEs . Email promotion, signage
data-driven|/local
. support,
economy )
collaborative
campaigns, specialist
market booking
Local Museum,
access, town centre
) “Looking After
. . Visual, s market events, town
Visitors ||Attractions, o Ludlow’s Instagram, || .
inviting, signage, seasonal
& events, local . Future - Facebook, .
. experience || _. . promotions,
Tourists |[charm Discover Website .
-led , amenities, green
Ludlow’s
. spaces, benches,
heart i ]
litter bines.
Public meetings and
Transparency, Website, ; ;
Civic IO‘ Yy Formal, “Looking After : consultations, social
strategic . Council media. websites
Stakehol l ) concise, Ludlow’s . ’ !
anning, . ) meetings, ; ;
ders P & informative| |, ture - ) 8 |strategic planning
updates - LinkedIn updates, meeting
Investing in

minutes,




Needs & Messaging | Key Preferred |Services Provided

Segment .
Interests Style Messaging Channels
Ludlow’s collaborative project
future” facilitation

Multi-Channel Communications Framework

Digital Channels:

LTC website: Central hub for agendas, minutes, consultations, news articles,
documents, link to new Market website, point of contact, (opportunity: youth
hub).

Museum website: Advertise events and exhibitions, opening times, map and
points of interest, artifacts.

Market website: Market info, Specialist market booking, advertise trader
profiles, documents.

Social Media:

LTC Facebook: Community updates, Civic updates, Town Crier proclamations,
relative segment focussed content, events promotion, collaborative project
support, community engagement for consultations etc.

LTC Instagram: Visual civic/community updates, event promotion.

Market Facebook: Regular Market promotion, event reminders, longer form
posts trader profiles.

Market Instagram: Daily Market promotion through video, Hashtag campaigns,
user generated content.

Museum Facebook: Event and exhibition announcements, practical
information.

Museum Instagram: Exhibition info, hashtag strategy.
(Future opportunity areas)

X¢Interviews with Market traders/staff/councillors, behind-the-scenes/day in the
life of Mayor, civic explainers (appropriate for Market, LTC & Museum channels).

TikTok¢ Youth-led content, challenges, local history snippets (appropriate for
Market, LTC & Museum channels).




Linkedln¢ Ludlow Town Council opportunity to highlight policy good-news
stories, networking, promote collaborative opportunities.

Traditional Channels:
e Council noticeboards: Event posters, marketing.
e Local Press & Radio: Press releases sent to traditional print and online papers.

e Printed Leaflets/posters: Available at Council office, library, GP surgeries,
schools (such as calendar of events)

e Magazines(print/online): Local to Ludlow, Visit Shropshire (incl. use of events
space) various travel and coach magazine inserts, local business publications ie
Assembly Rooms what’s on.

e Buttercross Bulletin: Quarterly printed newsletter with civic updates and
consultations.

In-Person & Community Engagement:
e Public Meetings: Open forums with public participation slots

e Pop-Up Consultations: Market stalls, playground visits, school/college
assemblies.

e Town Council Office: Neutral, welcoming space to liaise with knowledgeable
staff about queries and feedback.

Section 4.2: CONSULTATION

‘Consulting all parishioners on important issues will be key to the strategy. It will ensure
those most affected are able to put forward an opinion and given the opportunity to make
a difference.

The aim of all consultations is to include all members of the town by identifying the
hard-to-reach groups such as youths, the elderly, the housebound, the disabled, ethnic
minorities etc’

Consultation & Feedback Mechanisms:
e Surveys: Online/web link shared to relevant digital channels.
¢ Community Panels: Thematic focus groups (e.g. transport, environment, youth).

e Feedback Loops: “Before and after” updates in newsletters and online.



e Councillor direct engagement with youth segments.

Section 4.3: SUPPORT

‘Supporting local organisations engaging with them to assist them in meeting their own
aims and objectives, where appropriate and if possible.

Supporting local projects and participating in local events will raise the awareness of the
Council and its aims and objectives.

Supporting members of the town in shaping the future of their town will bring about a more
cohesive community.

The Council will be receptive to requests from residents or communities and will attempt
to be flexible to ensure their opinions are known not only to the Town Council but also to
other organisations. This may be by including an item for discussion on an agenda,
allowing a group to put their opinions into an official report undertaken by the Town Council
or by meeting young people at a local playground.’

Collaboration & Support:
e Partner with charities, schools, youth clubs, traders, and cultural groups.
e Support local events and initiatives with promotional assets and presence.
o Offer co-branded campaigns with community organisations.
Brand Voice & Identity:
e Tone: Warm, inclusive, professional with humanised touches.

e Visuals: Use emojis, bold imagery, and accessible design.

e Consistency: Align across all platforms with Ludlow’s values, developed
strapline and branding

Section 5: MEASURING SUCCESS

‘Success will be measured by predefined targets, including an annual review, consultation
outcomes, monitoring residents’ participation in consultation processes and increase
involvement in local projects and events.’

Measurement & Evaluation

Reportable to Services Committee.



Metric Method Frequency

Website traffic & engagement |Google Analytics Quarterly

Social media reach & sentiment||Platform insights + comment analysis||Monthly

Consultation participation Survey response, event attendance ||Ongoing
Community feedback Quality input from SM, meetings Ongoing
Strategy impact Annual review Annually

Section 6: STRATEGY REVIEWS

‘Annual reviews of the consultation processes and results will be used as a continual
improvement process for changes or amendments to the strategy.’

Continuous Improvement

o Dataled annual strategy review, feedback, and evolving community needs
e Regular review to refine messaging and outreach

¢ Pilot new channels and formats (e.g. podcasts)



Key messaging/ strap line concept, proposal and plan

This document presents the outcomes of the key messaging and strapline
brainstorming session held by the Comms Strategy Task & Finish Group on 25/9/2025. It
includes the proposed adoption of Looking After Ludlow as a central strapline for
Ludlow Town Council, along with a social media rollout plan scheduled for
implementation in early 2026.

1) Key messaging ideas brainstormed (grouped):
Governance & Community Values

e Prudent Financial Management

e Transparent & Accountable

¢ InTouch with Communities

e Active Listening & Approachability

e Collaborative & Conduit for Partnership
Local Economy & Identity

e Supporting Local Economy

e Tourism & Museum Engagement

e Proud of Ludlow

e Market Presence & Sighage
Wellbeing & Environment

¢ Environmentally Aware

e Health Through Open Spaces

e Looking After & Caring

e Supporting Youth

o ASafer Town
Social Impact

e Engage with Charities

e Inclusive & Caring Culture



2) Strap line ideas discussed during meeting:

Love Ludlow is actively used by Ludlow Chamber of Trade and other local businesses
to promote the town, especially in tourism, retail, and events.

Alternatives:

e [ludlow Together

e [udlow Cares

e [udlow Listens

e [udlow Spirit

e [udlow Life

e Heartof Ludlow

e [udlow Supports

e [ocal Loyalty, Ludlow Love

e Caring, Connecting, Committed
e Pride, Purpose, People

e Transparent, Trusted, Together

e Serving, Supporting, Strengthening Ludlow

Looking After Ludlow is warm, clear, and quietly powerful. Speaks to all ages, all areas
of council work, from playgrounds to cemeteries, markets to wellbeing. Suggests care,
stewardship, and pride without being heavy-handed. Simple enough to stick,
meaningful enough to matter.

Opportunity to add a subtitle or tagline for campaigns:
(examples — dependant on purpose)

e Looking After Ludlow — Every Street, Every Voice
e Looking After Ludlow — From First Steps to Final Rest
e [ooking After Ludlow — With Pride and Purpose

Pair with visuals:
A collage of Ludlow landmarks, community faces, green spaces, and market scenes
would reinforce the message beautifully.

Use in tone-setting intros:
“At Ludlow Town Council, we’re committed to Looking After Ludlow — its people,
places, and future.”

3) Other strap line ideas for consideration:



Warm & Community-Focused

Rooted in Ludlow. Working for You.
Proud of Ludlow. In Touch with You.
Listening, Caring, Leading.
Together for Ludlow.

Your Town, Your Voice, Our Commitment.

Professional & Strategic

Transparent. Accountable. Local.
Strong Values. Clear Direction.
Investing in Ludlow’s Future.
Collaborating for a Safer, Greener Town.

Focused on What Matters.

Forward-Thinking & Inclusive

Caring for Today. Planning for Tomorrow.
Inclusive by Nature. Strategic by Design.
Environmentally Aware. Community Driven.
From Market to Museum — Ludlow Leads.

Open Spaces. Open Conversations.

4) Externalresearch:

4.1) Existing strap lines locally used:

None of the straplines proposed above — such as Rooted in Ludlow. Working for You. or
Listening, Caring, Leading. — appear to be in use by other groups or businesses in
Ludlow based on current public materials and branding.

Most Ludlow-based organisations and businesses tend to use descriptive or location-
based phrases rather than formal straplines. For example:

Ludlow Food Festival often uses phrases like Celebrating Local Flavours or A

Taste of Ludlow in promotional materials.



¢ Ludlow Castle leans into historical identity with terms like Step into History or
Discover Ludlow’s Past.

e Ludlow Assembly Rooms uses practical messaging like Your Venue for Film,
Theatre, Music & More.

e Local shops and markets tend to highlight products or heritage (e.g. Handmade
in Ludlow, Locally Sourced), rather than using fixed straplines.

This means there’s a clear opportunity to introduce a distinctive, values-driven strapline
for Ludlow Town Council — something that reflects role, tone, and connection to the
community.

4.2) Popular Ludlow-related hashtags

o #LudlowMarket - used by traders and the council to promote market days and
stalls

o #Ludlowlife — captures lifestyle, community, and scenic charm

o #VisitLudlow - often used by tourism boards and hospitality venues, incl.
#VisitShropshire

e #ShopLocalLudlow - encourages support forindependent businesses
o #HistoricLudlow — used by heritage sites and cultural groups

o #LudlowCastle — popular with visitors and local history accounts

e #LudlowEvents — used to promote community happenings

o #LudlowFoodFestival —tied to the annual event, but sometimes used year-
round

5) Strapline Proposal: Introducing Looking After Ludlow

Following extensive exploration of council values, community priorities, and local
branding trends, | propose the adoption of Looking After Ludlow as the primary strapline
for Ludlow Town Council’s marketing and communications campaigns.

Rationale

Looking After Ludlow encapsulates the Council’s core commitments: care,
stewardship, inclusivity, and pride in place. It is warm, clear, and quietly powerful -
resonating across generations and sectors. The phrase is simple enough to be
memorable, yet rich enough to carry meaning across diverse areas of council work,
from playgrounds to cemeteries, markets to wellbeing initiatives.



Unlike existing local branding, which tends to focus on tourism or commercial identity
(e.g. Love Ludlow, Visit Ludlow, Shop Local Ludlow), this strapline introduces a values-
driven narrative that reflects the Council’s unique role in civic life. It is not commercially
competitive, but complementary - positioning the Council as a caring, listening, and
proactive presence in the town.

Strategic Use

Looking After Ludlow can be introduced across appropriate Council-led campaigns and
platforms, including:

¢ Print and Digital Collateral: Posters, leaflets, magazine write-ups, and Council
website

e Social media: Paired with hashtags such as #LudlowLife, #LudlowCares, and
#LookingAfterLudlow

e Event Branding: Used in signage and intros for community events, museum
activities, and other specific initiatives

e Tone-Setting Messaging: Featured in opening lines of Council communications
(e.g. “At Ludlow Town Council, we’re committed to Looking After Ludlow — its
people, places, and future.”)

Optional Subtitles for Campaigns

To tailor messaging for specific initiatives, the strapline can be extended with campaign-
specific subtitles. Examples include:

e [ooking After Ludlow — Every Street, Every Voice
e [ooking After Ludlow — From First Steps to Final Rest
e [ooking After Ludlow — With Pride and Purpose

These extensions allow flexibility while maintaining a consistent emotional and
strategic tone.

Visual Integration

Opportunity to pair the strapline with a collage-style visual identity featuring Ludlow
landmarks, community faces, green spaces, and market scenes. This reinforces the
message of collective care and local pride, while offering visual warmth and
recognisability.

Summary

Looking After Ludlow offers a unifying, emotionally resonant identity for Ludlow Town
Council. It reflects the Council’s values, complements existing local branding, and
provides a flexible yet consistent foundation for future campaigns. Its introduction will



strengthen public engagement, reinforce trust, and celebrate the Council’s role in
shaping Ludlow’s wellbeing and future.

6) Social Media Rollout Plan (Jan 2026): Looking After Ludlow
Phase 1: Tease & Introduce (Weeks 1-2)
Objective: Build curiosity and gently introduce the strapline.

e Post Theme: “What does it mean to look after Ludlow?”

o Visuals: Soft-focus images of Ludlow’s green spaces, market scenes, and
community moments.

o Caption Style: Warm, reflective, inviting. Example: “From playgrounds to public
gardens, from market stalls to museum steps — we’re here, looking after Ludlow.

#LookingAfterLudlow”

o Hashtags: #LookingAfterLudlow #LudlowLife #LudlowCares

¢ Engagement Prompt: Ask followers to share what “looking after Ludlow” means

to them.

Phase 2: Embed & Expand (Weeks 3-6)
Objective: Reinforce the strapline across council services and campaigns.

o Weekly Themes:
» Week 3: Looking After Ludlow — Every Street, Every Voice (focus on
community listening and accessibility)

» Week 4: Looking After Ludlow — With Pride and Purpose (highlight council

achievements and local pride)

» Week 5: Looking After Ludlow — From First Steps to Final Rest
(emphasise care, e.g. youth services, cemeteries)

» Week 6: Looking After Ludlow — Through Open Spaces and Open
Conversations (environment and wellbeing)

e Visuals: Collage-style graphics, short video clips, and quote cards from
residents or councillors.

e Cross-Platform Use: Facebook, Instagram, X (Twitter). Include alt text for
accessibility.

e Stories/Reels: Use short clips of Ludlow scenes with voiceover or text overlays

of the strapline.



Phase 3: Community Activation (Weeks 7-10)
Objective: Encourage public ownership and interaction.

e Campaign: “Looking after Ludlow Together”

e Tactics:
» Invite user-generated content (photos, stories, short videos)
» Feature local heroes: traders, volunteers, youth leaders
» Run a hashtag challenge: #MyLudlowCareMoment

e Visuals: Branded templates for community submissions

Phase 4: Long-Term Integration (Ongoing)
Objective: Make the strapline a familiar, trusted part of Council identity.
e Standard Use: Include Looking After Ludlow in:
» Councilannouncements
» Event promotions
» Seasonal campaigns (e.g. winter wellbeing, summer safety)

e Tone Setting: Begin newsletters and press releases with a short intro using the
strapline.

e Visual Consistency: Recurring use with logo to reinforce brand identity.

7) Strapline Evolution Update (T&F Group Meeting 24/10/25)

Following further discussion at the Commes Strategy Task & Finish Group meeting on
24/10/2025, the proposed strapline evolved from Looking After Ludlow to Looking After
Ludlow’s Future. This refinement reflects the Council’s growing emphasis on forward-
thinking stewardship, sustainability, and inclusive planning. While the original phrase
captured warmth and care, the updated version adds a strategic dimension — signalling
the Council’s commitment not only to present wellbeing, but to shaping Ludlow’s long-
term resilience and prosperity. It resonates across generations and sectors, offering a
unifying message that honours Ludlow’s heritage while embracing its potential.

Updated Subtitle Examples and SM Rollout Plan

Updated Subtitle Examples



Replace the original campaign extensions with these future-facing alternatives:
e Looking After Ludlow’s Future — Every Street, Every Voice
e Looking After Ludlow’s Future — With Pride and Purpose
e Looking After Ludlow’s Future — For Generations to Come
e Looking After Ludlow’s Future — Through Open Spaces and Open Conversations
e Looking After Ludlow’s Future — Together We Grow
e Looking After Ludlow’s Future — Safe, Green, and Thriving
e Looking After Ludlow’s Future — From First Steps to Forward Thinking

These maintain emotional resonance while adding a strategic, inclusive tone.

Updated Social Media Rollout Plan
Phase 1: Tease & Introduce (Weeks 1-2)

Objective: Build curiosity and gently introduce the evolved strapline.

Post Theme: “What does it mean to look after Ludlow’s future?”

Visuals: Soft-focus images of Ludlow’s green spaces, market scenes, and
intergenerational moments.

Caption Style: Warm, reflective, forward-looking.

Example:

“From playgrounds to public gardens, from market stalls to museum steps — we’re
here, looking after Ludlow’s future. #LookingAfterLudlowsFuture”

Hashtags: #LookingAfterLudlowsFuture #LudlowLife #LudlowCares
Engagement Prompt: Ask followers to share what “looking after Ludlow’s future”
means to them.

Phase 2: Embed & Expand (Weeks 3-6)

Objective: Reinforce the strapline across council services and campaigns.
Weekly Themes (examples):

o Week 3: Every Street, Every Voice — focus on community listening and
accessibility

o Week 4: With Pride and Purpose — highlight council achievements and local
pride



e Week 5: From First Steps to Forward Thinking — spotlight playgrounds, planning,
and Cemetery

o Week 6: Through Open Spaces and Open Conversations — environment,
wellbeing, and civic dialogue

Visuals: Collage-style graphics, short video clips, and quote cards from residents or
councillors.

Cross-Platform Use: Facebook, Instagram, X (Twitter). Include alt text for accessibility.
Stories/Reels: Ludlow scenes with text overlays of the strapline.

Phase 3: Community Activation (Weeks 7-10)

Objective: Encourage public ownership and interaction.
Campaign: Looking After Ludlow’s Future — Together
Tactics:

e Invite user-generated content (photos, stories, short videos)
o Feature local heroes: traders, volunteers, Civic award winners

¢ Run a hashtag challenge: #MyLudlowFutureMoment

Phase 4: Long-Term Integration (Ongoing)

Objective: Make the strapline a familiar, trusted part of Council identity.
Standard Use: Include Looking After Ludlow’s Future in:

e Councilannouncements
e Event promotions
e Seasonal campaigns (e.g. winter wellbeing, No Mow May)

Tone Setting: Begin newsletters and press releases with a short intro using the strapline.
Visual Consistency: Recurring use with logo to reinforce brand identity.
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Projects Update
November 2025

Report No. FC/25/28

Full Council
15t December 2025

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report provides an update on the progress of priority projects set in
the periods July — September and October — December 2025.

2, RECOMMENDATION

2.1 To note the projects updates.

2.2  To set priority projects for January — March 2026.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The Council’s Project Action Plan is a live document that records all the
projects identified by the council, and records updates on the active
projects.

3.2 Up until October 2025, the action plan was reported quarterly to Full
Council. From October the reporting frequency was increased to monthly.

4. CURRENT SITUATION

4.1  The November Project Action Plan is provided in the document pack for
this meeting with new updates highlighted in red.

4.2  There are not sufficient resources to progress all the projects at the same

time. There are currently seven projects being progressed.




4.3  The council identified two sets of priority projects, firstly in July to
September, the priority projects were:

o VJ day community event — completed on 15" August 2025.
o CCTV phase Il — extended into second quarter.

o Shaping Lives Grant Funded project supporting food
resilience in Ludlow — extended into second quarter.

4.4  Second group of priority projects in October to December were:

o CCTV phase Il — the majority of the project has been
delivered, and plans are in place to deliver the final parts.

o Shaping Lives Grant Funded project supporting food
resilience in Ludlow — final print part of the project has been
ordered and is due to be delivered by the end of November.
Final project report to be provided to FC in January 2026.

o Amplification in the Guildhall chamber — equipment installed
on 18th November 2025.

Town Clerk
November 2025

Implications

Wards Affected (All)
Financial (Unstated)
Health & Safety (Unstated)
Law & Order (Unstated)

Environmental Implications (Unstated)
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Action Plan 2024 / 25 — Updated October 2025

Governance Aims Objectives Actions Budget Completion Date(s)

Minutes Maintain effective communication. | Councillors and public have access to Draft minutes released to Councillors within five working days Ongoing as per meeting

up-to-date information. of completion. Approved minutes appear on website within 102/4000 calendar.
10 working days of approval.
https://www.ludlow.gov.uk/your-
council/council-and-committee-
meetings

Items to Action (ITA) | Maintain adequate monitoring of Timely reporting / monitoring for Council | ITAs are reviewed and progress reported on a quarterly Ongoing for each
items to be actioned. and committee. basis. committee to note item as

102/4000 per meeting calendar.
Full review in March, June,
September, and
December.

Project updates Maintain adequate reporting and Councillors and public have access to To provide quarterly updates on each stage of projects to Reported to Council in
monitoring of the progress of up-to-date information. completion. 102/4000 March, June, September,
projects and December.

Governance | Area Aims Objectives Actions
Policies Improve access to policies. Easy to read and understand polices. Update polices on website 102/4000 Ongoing
Change the format of all 80 polices to the agreed policy Ongoing through P&F
template. Committee

Assets Improve reporting and budget To create an asset register that is easy | Creation of an Asset Disposal Policy and procedure Completed

preparation. to integrate and update with a robust
audit trail; and create an asset register
that supports forward budgeting
planning. . " ——y :
Purchase asset software, train staff, and populate with 501/ 4800 | Existing asset register
existing data, and manage ongoing updates. spreadsheet in use.
£1,500.00 Change to software

pending.

1|Page
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Local Services Aims Objectives Actions Budget Completion Date(s)
Town Council To provide a high standard of To maintain adequate financial, asset, Open spaces, Budget setting
Services service provision and staffing resources to support a high Play areas. Precept commenced in August
standard of service. Life buoys. 2024.

Appropriate annual budgeting process,
staff roles and staff management enable
the town council to provide a range of
services.

Henley Road Cemetery.

The Guildhall customer services,
social media and website.

Public meetings.

Civic events, seasonal events
May Fair.

Allotment provision.

Bus shelters,

Litter bins,

public benches.

Ludlow market,

Street trading

Entertainment Square permits.
Ludlow Museum at the Buttercross.
Christmas lights.

Grants.

Please visit: https://www.ludlow.gov.uk/your-
council/services-we-provide

Shropshire Council

To support a high standard of
service provision in Ludlow and
surrounding area.

To find out what services are at risk and
any options on offer from SC.

Update: June 2025

SC released a Devolution Statement in March
2025 - provided to LTC FC in April 2025.

SC figures for landlord repair and maintenance
costs for Teme Leisure in Ludlow have been
provided to LTC.

LTC is in conversation with SC regarding 11 play
areas.

Received and responded to Shropshire
Council’s new approach to partnership with
town and parish councils survey in June 2025;
and a youth service focused survey in July
2025.

Ongoing.

2|Page
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Projects Aims Objectives Actions Status Budget / EMR
CCTV Increase crime Activate 13 Wi-Fi CCTV | Final stage: Sign off on Faculty from Faculty granted 12 April 2024. EMR 326:

Priority deterrents and cameras Chancellor of Diocese of Hereford to install

project detection. WiFi transmitters in the church tower. £14,796.00
October - Final Stages: Installation of the WI-FI Agreement between LTC and PCC signed — May

December transmitters and activate lines of sight to the | 2024.

2025. CCTV cameras. Initial scoping site visit to the tower undertaken by

ORP

Detailed plan of works being compiled for
approval by PCC.

Electrical install in Church Tower.

Transmitter install in church tower and CCTV
sites set up by ORP.

Completio

Complete

Complete
Complete
Completed

September
2025

Completed

06/10/25
Final install
arranged for
22" and 23
October 2025

As reported to Services Committee on 26t
November 2025 - New CCTV locations
Cameras are installed at the following sites:

. Station Drive near Aldi — 360 degree
camera

. Corve Street at junction with Station Drive
— 360 degree camera

. Carva Straat nagr The Compasses — 360
degree camera

. Whitbread Road at junction with Sandpits
Road (opposite park entrance) — 360
degree camera and anti-vandal spikes

. Bromfield Road near the Coronation
Avenue junction — ANPR camera and
Overview camera

3|Page




Action Plan 2024 / 25 — Updated October 2025

. Henley Road towards Weyman Road
junction — ANPR camera and overview
camera

. Sheet Road by petrol station pedestrian
crossing — ANPR camera and overview
camera

. Lower Broad Street near Ludford bridge
lights — ANPR camera and overview
camera

. Event Square opposite Castle Lodge
Buttery — ANPR camera and overview
camera.

Upcoming CCTV locations:

Cameras will shortly be located at the
following sites:

. Ludlow library (Parkway and entrance side
of building) — PTZ camera.

. Henley Road by the mini roundabout with
Gravel Hill and New Road — Fixed camera
and link.

. Fishmore Road by the mini roundabout

with Raglan Place and Whitbatch Close —
ANPR camera and overview camera.

Churchyard
Wall

To ensure the council
acts in the interests of
the residents of Ludlow

To work with partners
under a no liability
agreement.

To agree a suitable structure for the no
liability partnership group.

At FC on 3 February 2025
FC/320 RESOLVED BW/GG (unanimous)

That Ludlow Town Council agrees to take a full and
active part in joining the partnership on a no liability
basis with the stated aim of pursuing external grant
funding for repairing and reinforcing the collapsed
section of Ludlow Town Wall, bounding the Garden of
Rest adjacent to St. Laurence Church Ludlow.

MP wrote to LTC to cancel partnership group
meetings.

LTC agreed to assist PCC, TWT and SC with works to
supporting structures in March 2025.

Contingencies budget:
Projacks Tree Services
£420.00 — removal of
saplings and vegetation

4|Page
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14™ April 2025

FC/358 RESOLVED BW/TG (10:1:0)

To approve the assertion that Ludlow Town Council
was not responsible for the collapse of the Town Wall
adjacent to St Laurence’s churchyard. With due
consideration to legal advice, Ludlow Town Council
accepts no historical, current, or future liability for
either the repair, upkeep or maintenance of the
churchyard wall.

12t June 2025: Request received from TWT for
further financial assistance. Approved: FC on 23
June. TWT also approached SC to undertake the
works.

£1,500.00

At FC on 24" September 2025, T&F group set up.
Information gathering letter sent to PCC solicitor.

T&F group updates report to FC on 15t December
2025.

The Guildhall

Improve the council’s
meeting facilities

Refurbish and improve

the Guildhall Chamber.

Final stage: To install electrical sockets on
meeting table; install data points; strengthen
Wi-Fi signal in chamber; install adequate
hearing loop.

May / June / July 2025:
Electrical testing works - £3,250.00

EMR 345:
£101,000.00

Remedial works required
Quotation - £3,475.00

To heat the Guildhall
Chamber

To replace the electric
heating system

Preliminary Stage: Inspection

Local electrician made initial visit to confirm that
current heaters are unusable.

Interim stage: Repositioning existing
heaters

Existing Infra-red heaters have been repositioned
to provide more heat than previously. This has
improved the warmth of the room during
meetings, but more heating is needed.

Mid stage: Alternative heating being
researched.

Many of the fixed electric heaters in offices
in corridors are old and need replacing, so
quotations are being sought for a full
replacement of heating at the Guildhall.

No immediate local (Shropshire) solution is
available. Town Clerk to undertake initial

research of HE guidance and suitable companies.

Senior Admin Assistant (commenced work in
January 2025). Arrange site visits in March / April
and follow up visits in June 2025.

Estimated costs: £30-40,000.

Report to July FC meeting.

Project costings to be approved by Full
Council

At FC on 20/10/25, it | was resolved that the
quotation of £33,273.09 ex. VAT from Grange
Heating be accepted, and the project in a Grade |
Listed building progresses to the next stage,

5|Page
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which is detailed sign off by the conservation
officer.

Final Stage: Conservation Officer approval | 25/11/25: Site visit with conservation officer and
required. contractor undertaken. Conversation officer to
review with colleagues and advise if LBC
application is required before works can take
place.
Improve the internal Inspection of wall six Mid-stage: Liaise with SC CO to inspect the | CO officer unable to advise directly and local Deferred until
and external condition | months after initial back wall to assess if it requires re- companies will be approached. condition
of the rear wall. works completed. rendering. report.
Final Stage: undertake works agreed with To be covered in condition report. Deferred until
SC CO. condition
report.
Replacement / Repair | To make safe. Approval for works given by Services 25/11/25: Site visit with conservation officer, who
of kitchen window — Committee — 27" November 2024. advised that paint surface was holding in the
(ground floor). moisture and required remedy. Further details to
follow in email.
Preliminary stage: Seek advice of CO advised that window is not historic and a like
Conservation officer re: repair / replace for like repair / replacement would not require
options. LBC; and that a joiner should assess if repair is
an option.
Mid Stage: Create a specification for either | Initial site inspection by local firm and discussion
repair or replacement (dependant on advice | with neighbour has led to a timeline of Spring
of the joiner) to include a specification fora | 2026 that encompasses other works due to
safe working platform over the neighbouring | difficult access.
extension; and approach three local heritage
quality companies for quotes. Quotations for works to windows and erecting
scaffolding are being sought.
25/11/25: Site visit with conservation officer
undertaken — awaiting proposal from contractor
for further consultation with the conservation
officer.
Final Stage: To bring the quotations to FC December
for approval. 2025.
The Guildhall Condition Report for To create a Approval of the Buildings, Equipment, & Report to FC in June 2025 for approval of seeking | EMR 345 - Guildhall | Pending for
& Buttercross | the Guildhall and comprehensive plan to Facilities Inspection and Maintenance Policy | quotes for the condition reports. Approved: 239 | £101,00.00 2026
Buttercross improve / maintain the in July 2024. June 2025.
grade | listed buildings
Henley Road Create sustainable Bring the final section of | Preliminary Stage: To undertake a ground | Contract awarded. Works undertaken 11t & 12t Completed
Cemetery provision for burials the cemetery into active | water survey. March 2024 EMR 331:

and cremated remains
in Ludlow.

use.

Groundwater Risk Assessment Report received
April 2024 — reported to FC in June 2024.

Cemetery £48,167.00
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Mid stage: Groundwater Risk Assessment
and community needs information to inform
design of layout plan

To seek quotes for appropriate layout plan.

To identify the community needs, and
bring to report to FC in 2026

Quotations for design
work for layout plan
being sought.

Final stages: FC to approve layout plan To be
Engage contractor to undertake ground confirmed
works.
Market Parking | To reduce To ensure that market Mid stage: To work with Shropshire September 2024: Shropshire Council Cabinet No budget Ongoing
unauthorised parking traders are not Council to create a parking order for the has made a commitment to undertake the TRO
on the Market Square. | prevented from trading | market square. consultation, but no timescale agreed. SC unitary
by unauthorised Clirs to chase. Ludlow Future Partnership has
parking. also agreed to chase with highways colleagues.
Due to be continued after the election.
Portfolio Holder: Clir David Vasmer, Highways&
Environment
Assistant Director - Infrastructure: Andy Wilde
June 2025: Agenda item to FC with motion ‘that
as a matter of urgency Shropshire Council
undertakes a public consultation for Traffic
Regulation Order under the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984’ Motion approved, and
letter sent to Shropshire Council.
Following up with SC portfolio holder in
November 2025.
Final stage: SC to implement scheme. TBC
Ludlow Market | Maintain safety of the | Safe, clean, bright, and | Initial Stage: Seek quotes for repair / January 2026
stalls attractive market. maintenance of the market stalls including
ground anchors by a metal fabricator.
Ludlow Winter | To create a To consolidate the To contribute to and facilitate meetings with | LWF meetings have taken place in Jan, Feb & Revenue budget for | 2022 — 2026
Festival sustainable annual existing activities and partner organisations to brand the activities | March 2025. Christmas Lights and | ongoing
festival in November events in the last as Ludlow Winter festival and agree a Event: (111/4158) in
weekend of November | programme of sustainable expansion of the | Social media call out for extra events took place 2025 is £20,000.00
to launch Ludlow’s festival over a three-to-five-year period. prior to the March meeting.
Christmas campaign.
Parking and litter provision need to be considered
in 2025.
Castle To improve the safety | To replace the posts Preliminary Stage: Create a specification | Services Committee received report in November | No allocated budget — | Unspecified.
Gardens and attractiveness of and chains as and tender for the work. 2024 and decided to consult with the Civic no project costings

the gardens outside
Ludlow castle.

necessary ad repair

Society.

established to date.
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damaged sections of the
low retaining wall.

11 | Bus Shelter To improve the To refurbish an existing | To refurbish the Mill Street bus shelter in the 2025 / 26. budget March 2026
provision of bus shelter in the 2025/ 26 | next financial year. agreed - £16,000
shelters in Ludlow. financial year. Quotation for Mill Street approved by Rep in Agreed expenditure
March 2025. Colour to be agreed with CO. £3,661.92.00
Henley Road shelter will be refurbished by a Paint and material March 2026
company for material costs only. costs only.
13 | Wheeler Road | To improve sense of EMR 334 Wheeler
Recreation youth engagement / PlayArea Resurface
Area ownership of facility. To improve the facilities. | Preliminary Stage: Install new teen shelter £13,876.00 February &
and remove old ones / repaint the MUGA March 2023
panels / improve surface of paly area and EMR 325 Play Areas
repair safety gates. Fund £17,713.00
Mid-stage: graffiti artist to repaint the skate | Progress delayed by onsite vandalism and EMR 325 - Play Pending
park / install full size goal posts council has decided that the CCTV cameras need | Areas £51,072.00
to be active before they will proceed with this
project.
Final Stage: install a MUGA play surface / Progress delayed by onsite vandalism and Pending
increase height of surrounding MUGA council has decided that the CCTV cameras need
fences / install additional seating. to be active before they will proceed with this
project.
Henley Helper | To improve community | To improve community | First Monthly Event of 2025 on 15t April 2025 | Social media call out for volunteers. Ongoing from
Volunteer days | cohesion. To improve | cohesion through April to
biodiversity volunteer work and Surveymonkey sign up process created. October
improve biodiversity of 2026.
Henley Road Cemetery Risk assessment and site management plan to be
site through volunteer reviewed prior to first event.
projects.
16 | Ludlow Market | To provide a high To maintain electricity Contractor began works on site on Tuesday | The contractor is only able to work onsite one day | EMR 340 street Commenced
Street lights standard of service supply to the market 11 June. a week because markets take place every day lighting November
provision traders and for the except Tuesday, and no work was possible in £4,970.00 2025 and
Christmas lights. August because of the Tuesday Makers Markets. ongoing.
301/4222 (2023 / 24
Work has progressed well. budget cfwd)
£5,781.00
Update to Services to be made in 2025.
301/4222 (2024 / 25
budget)
£2,000.00
501/4800 (2024 / 25
budget)
£804.00

Total £13,555.00

8|Page
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17

Bathing Water
Status

To comply with
Bathing Water Status
requirements of
Environment Agency
(EA) and Defra.

To develop a good
working relationship with
the EA.

To create and install the required signage Signage has been ordered — awaiting delivery. Grant Funded Installed in
(funded by Defra). 110/ 1123 October
£431.00 2024.

To hold monthly meetings with the EA team. | First meeting took place in August and Ongoing

subsequent monthly meetings timetabled for

Town Clerk and Deputy Town Clerk.

December 2024 - Ludlow received a poor water

status classification — this was expected, and the

EA will develop a plan to identify key sources of

pollution and improve the water quality over time.

February 2025 —New Project to Monitor Water Monthly

Quality at Ludlow Bathing Spot was launched in Teams

February 2025.

The Environment Agency, with funding from the
River Severn Partnership Advanced Wireless
Innovation Region, has installed high-tech
sensors to track bacteria levels, including E.coli,
every day. Initial funding period ends in March
2025. Equipment remains in situ. Further
intensive bacteria testing due in August and
September 2025

Bathing Season commenced on 15" May 2025.
Signage updated to reflect current poor status.

Shropshire Wild Bathing App launched in May
2025.

Additional EA ‘Hello Lamp Post’ signage to help

the public access information to be installed at the

Linney

meetings with
EA.

18

Ludlow Future
Partnership

To bring SC, LTC, and
local orgs together in
support of achieving
common aims to
improve Ludlow.

To improve decide on
short, mid and long
terms projects to
improve Ludlow.

To meet quarterly to progress short, mid and
long terms projects for Ludlow.

Priorities workshop to take place in October 2024

Inaugural meeting of Ludlow Future Partnership
took place in November 2024. A series of
quarterly meeting are now due to take place in
2024 / 25 and beyond.

Contingencies
Revenue.

Ongoing

Group suspended until after 1 May 2025
Elections.

Suspended

19

Shaping Lives
Grant Funding
Priority project

To support local
organisations is the
delivery of initiatives to

To successfully bid with
other local organisations
for a grant of £15,000.

Successful submission of bid

Submission reviewed by Shropshire Council
panel in September 2024 and a grant of £15,000
awarded to Ludlow Town Council.

Grant Funded
£15,000.00

Complete
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June —
September
2025.

help reduce the impact
of food poverty in the
local community.

Signing of grant agreement and raising of
invoice for the grant

Agreement received from SC and signed. Invoice
submitted.

Inaugural project meeting with LTC and
Hands Together Ludlow.

Took place on 21 October 2024

Complete

Complete

Five Phase Project Plan drafted by HTL Initial plan phases agreed. Detailed planning for Completion
each phase is the next step. Date
September
2025
First Phase Recipe Videos for Food Parcels have been New Communications | Completion
created. Recipe card template design has been & Marketing Officer Date
created. Workshops have taken place. Food started work on 8t September
Hygiene Courses supplied to participants. April 2025. 2025
Phase 2 ‘Meals Made Easy’: a mission to demystify Completion
cooking. Healthy meals for one 12th June Date
workshop promoting confidence in cooking while September
creating a ‘1-pot’ mince-based dish that the 2025
« Food parcel cooking attendee can choose whether to finish as
) Spaghetti Bolognese, Cottage pie or Chilli-con-
* Using surplus food carne. The USP of this is that the entire dish is
’ cooked in 1-pot (yes -Spaghetti and Bolognese in
one pot!). Following the workshop the attendees
will leave with a meal for 4 in containers provided
(and hopefully the confidence to try it again at
home).
Videos and Recipe cards are being created.
Phase 3 Meals geared towards type 2 diabetes/ who cook | Expenditure to date Completion
for others with type 2 diabetes. The workshops on project Date
are Monday 23rd June 9:30am - 10:30am, management, room September
Thursday 3rd July 2pm - 3pm and 3:30pm - hire, food for 2025
4:30pm. The link to book is: workshops, online
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/takehometea courses: £3,648.00
Videos and Recipe cards are being created.
Phase 4 Using Surplus Food Completion
Workshops and three videos completed. Date
September
2025
Phase 5 Food Intolerances Completion
Workshops and three videos completed. Date
September
2025
Conclusion of the project will include: To maintain the consistently high standard of the Project final
project, the remaining recipes should be test completion
Digital recipe cards date end of
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Workshops for local people
Videos of cooking the recipes in workshops
Print recipe cards in folders

cooked prior to final sign off — and this has
unfortunately delayed our progress.

We are now due to complete in end of November.

We are proud of the information resource being
created. Please find link to the project on Hands
Together website to see the work on this project
to date:
https://www.handstogetherludlow.org.uk/our-
projects/healthy-eating

200 x Recipe card folders and inserts ordered in
early November for delivery at the end of
November. Folders to be supplied FOC to
residents of Ludlow. Option to have some
available to purchase locally to generated income
to sustain the project.

November
2025.

Project
deliverables
and
expenditure
to be
reported to
January FC

20 | Ludlow Market | To support the To refresh the market Final stage: to add trader content and E-commerce set up. April 2025: New Launched 18
Website continued success of website to support market dates with basket system to enable Communications & August 2025.
Ludlow market, and traders and help the traders to sign up and pay for specialist Trader details partially entered. Marketing Officer
the local economy of public enjoy and engage | markets. started work.
Ludlow. with the market. Market days to be set up in calendar format.
May, June & July:
www.ludlowmarket.co.uk is very successful. Itis | Internal and external
easy to use and an effective promotional resource | meetings undertaken
for the market. to progress project.
21 | EV Charging To support the To lower charging costs | Agreed location of charging points in Henley | Not started. TBC
points at council’s electric vans | and enhance charging Road cemetery.
Henley Road with dedicated convenience.
Depot charging facilities Project plan needs to encompass safety,
protecting dignity of site and facilitating
multiple uses.
22 | Upstairs at To bring the Guildhall | To make full use of the | It was agreed that this project would be Not started. TBC
Guildhall into full use. council’s assets. added to the Project Action List. Further
development of the project details is
required.
23 | Amplification | To improve To improve the electric | It was agreed that this project would be July 2025 - Quotes obtained from two AV Contingencies System
equipment communications in the | socket/power availability | added to the Project Action List. Further companies/providers, with a third pending. Budget. installed in
and live council chamber, make | in the chamber; install development of the project details is November

broadcasting
capabilities in

meetings more
transparent, and

amplification and
conferencing

required.

Report to be considered by Council — 28/07/25

2025 — with

two cordless

the Guildhall | facilitate a wider equipment. Report to FC 20/10/25 - approval of a system mics on back
chamber. audience. from Sound Induction Systems for £6,094.00 ex. order.
Priority project VAT

October-
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October to December Priority Projects: highlighted in red.
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COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP




Committee Membership as at 01.12.2025
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PROJECT SUPPORT GRANT APPLICATIONS




LUDLOW PIANO FESTIVAL




o Ludiow

@F Town Ceuncil

GRANT APPLICATION

CONTACT DETAILS
Name of Group/Organisation

Ludlow Piano Festival CIC

Address
c/o Apartment 2 Dinham Hall, Dinham, Ludlow SY8 1EJ
Email: ewart.carson@btinternet. Tel No: 07816 432445

Contact Person

Title: Dr First Name: Ewart

Surname: Carson Postion held in Group: Secretary

AIMS AND PURPOSE OF YOUR COMMUNITY GROUP

Charity Registration Number
If you are not a registered charity you must enclose
a copy of your constitution.

VAT Registration Number (if applicable)
What does your community group/organisation do and how are you financed?

The aims of Ludlow Piano Festival CIC are to:

i. Advance, improve, develop and maintain public education in, and appreciation of, piano music in all
its aspects, including through the presentation of public concerts, recitals and associated events; and
to provide opportunities for people to participate in music making;

ii. Raise money to support charitable/community initiatives through our musical activities; and

iii. Benefit the rural community of Ludlow and South Shropshire through increased tourism.

In the last two years the Ludlow Piano Festival has become a Community Interest Company (CIC),
which further recognises the charitable/community aims and regulates them. To date the principal
source of finance has been ticket income from Festival events. This will continue to be the prime
source of income, complemented where possible by income secured through grant applications (from
organisations and companies) and by gifts.



How many people are in your group/organisation?

The Board consists of four people, all of whom live in Ludlow. The Board are supported by a large
group of volunteers who act as event stewards and also look after the street pianos, acting as
ambassadors for Ludlow Piano Festival, but also on many occasions for the town itself.

HOW WILL THE FUNDING BE USED?

In 300 words (or less), please explain what the funding will be used for:

Financial support will be used to ensure the ongoing viability of the Ludlow Piano Festival. Whilst the
aim is to ensure that the Festival breaks even financially, any excess income will be used for
charitable purposes, particularly for increasing children’s access to classical music.

The Ludlow Piano Festival is one of only a few such festivals in the country. Moreover, it has a
richness and variety of offering that outstrips other major festivals such as those held in London and
Oxfford. It has already attracted widespread publicity and positive comment. Funding from Ludlow
Town Council will help to ensure that this endeavour maintains Ludlow’s leading place in this artistic
field. After only three years, it has become a major fixture of the Ludlow calendar.

Through his extensive connections the Artistic Director, Alistair McGowan, can attract pianists of the
highest calibre to Ludlow. He is assisted in this role by three consultants all of whom are eminent
musicians: Joanna MacGregor, Lucy Parham and Joel Baldwin. For the first two Festivals very
modest fees were negotiated for the majority of the performers to help get the Festival off the ground.
Whilst it is likely that we shall still be able to attract performers of the highest quality without offering
them their normal commercial fees, it is clear that we are now having to pay slightly higher fees than
was the case earlier on. Hence additional resource will be needed in order to avoid increasing ticket
prices to a level higher than Ludlow residents are accustomed to paying.

Funding will also be used to ensure that children and young people will be able to enjoy piano
playing of the highest quality. This will include ensuring that the children’s concert continues to be
viable (a concert offered to all primary age children in and around Ludlow). The feature of centrally
located community pianos offers a further opportunity for children-orientated participation and activity.

State how many people will benefit from this project. The number of group
members from Ludlow and the number of people from Ludlow directly
benefiting from your project would be most helpful.

The Festival aims to provide benefit to the whole of Ludlow. Overall, based on evidence from the
first three years, the festival has brought new visitors to Ludlow from across the West Midlands and
beyond for the range of prestigious events offered, enhancing Ludlow’s role as a Tourist
destination. [Analysis of ticket sales for the Festivalss to date showed that over 40% were bought by
residents with SY8 postcodes, whilst other sales spanned geographically the length and breadth of
the country.

Beneficiaries will include:

- Ludlow retail businesses: Visitors coming to the Festival from across the country will provide
additional retail trade. Increasingly since the launch of the Festival many shopkeepers have
reported a “buzz” around the town not only during the Festival itself, but also in the days that
followed.



- Hospitality providers: Visitors will take up hotel and B&B accommodation and provide much-needed
additional business for hospitality outlets in the town.

- Children and young people: All primary schools in and around Ludlow will be invited to participate in a
concert in the Assembly Rooms (over 250 participated in the equivalent events in previous years).
Moreover, they can

enjoy playing the community pianos which will continue to be located in the Events Square and
outside the west door of St Laurence’s Church.

[In addition to the main Festival in May 2026, a number of pop-up events will take place between 6
and 8 November 2025. These will include opportunities for young eople to book a 20 minute slot to
pllay the Steinway concert piano.]

- Ludlow residents : Residents of Ludlow and the surrounding district will be given priority booking
for all the Festival events. This, coupled with offering tickets at affordable prices, means that they
can hear and enjoy performances by internationally renowned pianists.

- In addition, the Celebrity concert provides an opportunity for Ludlow ressidents to hear celebrities
from all walks of life indulge in their passion for playing the piano.

FINANCIAL DETAILS

You must include an up-to-date statement of your group’s financial position (a copy of the
latest accounts or a treasurer’s report). If your group holds substantial reserves, you must
provide an explanation as to why this project cannot be supported from your own funds.

Desired grant from Ludlow Town Council* £750
*The maximum per application is £1,000



If a grant is awarded, please provide bank details below:

Name of Account:- Ludlow Piano Festival - Lloyds

Sort Code:- 30-99-50

Bank Account No:- 2277 2360

Funds granted/contributions from other bodies (please give details including whether these
are secured).

To date, no funds have been secured from other bodies

If there is a shortfall in funding, how do you propose to fund the deficiency?

Given the controls put in place in the budgeting, a shortfall is not anticipated. However, should there
be a shortfall, a small number of individuals have indicated that they would be prepared to make an
interest-free loan.

Previous applications

In the last round an Annual Core Grant of £750 was secured. In the round before that an Annual Core
Grant of £500 was secured.

DECLARATION

We confirm we are authorised to submit this application on behalf of the Group and certify that the
information enclosed is correct.

We understand that there is no appeal procedure should this application be rejected.
We undertake on the behalf of the organisation that any financial assistance offered will only be
used for the purpose for which it is granted and will be returned to Ludlow Town Council if it is not

required for that purpose or if duplicate funding is in place.

We understand that we are expected to provide Ludlow Town Council with a progress report and
information on how the money has been spent and will complete and return the Evaluation and



Monitoring Form.

Signature 1 Date: 09.10.25

{/Fw" '/éwm

(Person submitting form)

Signature 2 Date: 09.10.25

XN UWN

(Chairperson or senior representative of the Management Committee)

CHECKLIST

It is essential that you answer every question and send the requested supporting
documentation.

If you do not include all the information requested, your application will be incomplete and ineligible.
Please do not send any documentation other than that requested.

Complete the following checklist.

| have:
\ Answered every question

\ Enclosed a copy of our constitution (if you are not a registered charity)
\ Enclosed a copy of our latest accounts and/or a detailed treasurer’s statement

\ Provided feedback and photographs for all previous grant funding awarded by Ludlow
Town Council

Please answer all sections of the grant form as fully as possible.



If you do not receive an acknowledgement receipt of your application via email within two working
days, please phone 01584 871970 to confirm that it has been received.

PRIVACY NOTICE

Ludlow Town Council collects and manages personal data under the Data Protection Act 1998 and the
General Data Protection Regulations 2018. All applications for public funding must be considered and
approved at a public meeting. The contact details of the organisation must also be transparent. Please do
not include any details on this form that you do not wish to be in the public domain.

Your information will be lawfully processed by the Council within the terms of our privacy policy.

To find out more about our privacy arrangements, please access the Council’s website www.ludlow.gov.uk
where our full Privacy Notice and Privacy Policy can be viewed.




Registered number: 15215138
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Ludlow Piano Festival Cic
Company Information
For the Period 17 October 2023 to 31 October 2024

Directors Dr Joel Baldwin
Dr Ewart Carson
Mr Stephen Catanach
Mrs Lynda Jones
Mr Alistair McGowan

Company Number 15215138

Registered Office Owl Barn House
Overton
Ludlow
Shropshire
SY8 4DY

Accountants TaxAssist Accountants
114b Corve Street
Ludlow
SY8 1DJ
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Ludlow Piano Festival Cic
Accountant's Report
For the Period 17 October 2023 to 31 October 2024

Report to the directors on the preparation of the unaudited statutory accounts of Ludlow Piano Festival Cic for
the period 17 October 2023 to 31 October 2024

To assist you to fulfil your duties under the Companies Act 2006, I have prepared for your approval the accounts of Ludlow
Piano Festival Cic which comprise the Income and Expenditure Account, the Balance Sheet and the related notes, from the
company’s accounting records and from information and explanations you have given us.

As a practising member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, we are subject to its ethical and other
professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.accaglobal.com/en/member/professional-standards/rules-
standards/acca-rulebook.html.

This report is made to the directors of Ludlow Piano Festival Cic, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter dated 10 June 2025. Our work has been undertaken solely to prepare for your approval the accounts of Ludlow Piano
Festival Cic and state those matters that we have agreed to state to the directors of Ludlow Piano Festival Cic, as a body, in
this report in accordance with the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as detailed at
http://www.accaglobal.com/content/dam/ACCA_Global/Technical/fact/technical-factsheet-163.pdf. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Ludlow Piano Festival Cic and its directors
as a body for our work or for this report.

It is your duty to ensure that Ludlow Piano Festival Cic has kept adequate accounting records and to prepare statutory
accounts that give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of Ludlow Piano Festival
Cic. You consider that Ludlow Piano Festival Cic is exempt from the statutory audit requirement for the period.

We have not been instructed to carry out an audit or a review of the accounts of Ludlow Piano Festival Cic. For this reason, we

have not verified the accuracy or completeness of the accounting records or information and explanations you have given to
us and we do not, therefore, express any opinion on the financial statements.

Date

TaxAssist Accountants
114b Corve Street
Ludlow

SY8 1DJ
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Ludlow Piano Festival Cic
Income and Expenditure Account
For the Period 17 October 2023 to 31 October 2024

31 October
2024
£
TURNOVER 36,572
Other income 3,049
Cost of raw materials and consumables (24,219)
Staff costs (4,525)
Other charges (15,191)
NET DEFICIT (4,314)
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Ludlow Piano Festival Cic
Balance Sheet
As At 31 October 2024

31 October
2024
£
Current assets 1,856
Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year (5,000)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (3,144)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES (3,144)
Accruals and deferred income (1,170)
NET LIABILITIES (4,314)

RESERVES (4,314)

Notes

1. General Information

Ludlow Piano Festival Cic is a private company, limited by guarantee, incorporated in England & Wales, registered humber
15215138. The registered office is Owl Barn House, Overton, Ludlow, Shropshire, SY8 4DY.

2. Average Number of Employees

Average number of employees, including directors, during the period was: 5
3. Company limited by guarantee
The company is limited by guarantee and has no share capital.

Every member of the company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company, in the event of a winding up, such an
amount as may be required not exceeding £1.

For the period ending 31 October 2024 the company was entitled to exemption from audit under section 477 of the
Companies Act 2006 relating to small companies.

The members have not required the company to obtain an audit in accordance with section 476 of the Companies Act 2006.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Act with respect to accounting
records and the preparation of accounts.

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the micro-entity provisions.

On behalf of the board

Mrs Lynda Jones

Director
Date
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Ludlow Piano Festival Cic
Detailed Income and Expenditure Account
For the Period 17 October 2023 to 31 October 2024

TURNOVER
Sales

OTHER INCOME
Other operating income

COST OF RAW MATERIALS AND CONSUMABLES
Artist fees

STAFF COSTS
Travel and subsistence expenses

OTHER CHARGES

Premises expenses:

Rent

General administration costs:
Hire and leasing of plant and machinery
Insurance

Printing, postage and stationery
Advertising and marketing costs
Accountancy fees

Professional fees

Royalties and licence fees payable
Bank charges

Charitable donations

Other office costs

Sundry expenses

NET DEFICIT

Page 5

31 October 2024

£ £
36,572
3,049
39,621
24,219
(24,219)
4,525
(4,525)
1,580
7,302
253
363
2,531
1,170
665
1,084
45
50
87
61
13,611
(15,191)
(4,314)



Trailer | Plant | Tool | Van Hire

Motiv Hire Ltd
Stoneacre
Shrewsbury Road
Craven Arms
Shropshire

SY7 8BX

01588 673345

info@motivtrailers.co.uk

www.motivhire.co.uk

Page 1
2615
22/05/2025

Steve Catanach

MISCELHI
H31180

VAT

0.00
0.00
20.00 112.00
20.00 18.00

Service and Repair Tel:
Ludlow Piano Festival Invoice No.
Date:
Order No.
Account No.
Search No.
Quantity Stock Code Details Unit Price
0.00 Show Trailer Hire, Castle Square Ludlow 0.00 0.00
0.00 20/5/2025 , Set up , 5 Day use 0.00 0.00
1.00 EXHIB-7-1 Exhibition Unit Hire , 7 metre Trailer 560.00 560.00
1.00 DELO0-5 Delivery & Collection 90.00 90.00
Delivery Address:
To Help Us Prevent Fraud
If you would like to make a Total Net Amount
payment by BACS, please Carriage Net
contact us prior to doing
this, so we can provide our Total VAT Amount
Bank details by a secure
method Invoice Total
SIENEA: i
Date: .. Company Reg: 14656243 VAT Reg No: 438 9301 76

650.00
0.00
130.00

780.00



The Constitution of the Ludlow Piano Festival

1. Name

The name of the organisation is Ludlow Piano Festival referred to as ‘the organisation’ throughout this
document.

2. Aims/purpose
The aims of the organisation are:

i To advance, improve, develop and maintain public education in, and appreciation of, piano
music in all its aspects, including through the presentation of public concerts, recitals and
associated events. To provide opportunities for people to participate in music making.

ii.  To raise money to support charitable initiatives through our musical activities
iii.  To benefit the rural community of Ludlow and South Shropshire through increased tourism.
3. Formal Membership

1. The committee members of the organisation will be the members of the organisation and have
voting rights.

2. Any committee member who ceases to be a committee member automatically ceases to be a
member of the organisation.

3. Committee membership is not transferable to anyone else.

Every committee member shall have one vote.

5. In addition to formal membership the organisation may, at the discretion of the Management Committee,
form an Associate membership open to individuals who support the aims of the organisation. The terms
of Associate membership would be determined at the time of formation.

e

4, Committee

All aspects of running the organisation will be governed and managed by a committee of no less than three
individuals and no more than nine. The organisation will have at least the following officers:
i Chair
ii. Secretary
iii. Treasurer

5. Appointment and election of the committee

1. The first committee will be the people decided upon at the meeting where this governing document is
adopted. They shall be:

Name

Alistair McGowan Chair and Joint Artistic Director
Joel Baldwin Joint Artistic Director

Ewart Carson Secretary

Lyn Jones Treasurer

Steve Catanach Administrator

Page 1 of 3



2. Anyone can be appointed to the committee if the existing members deem them to be a fit and proper
person for the role with the required skill and experience.

3. Each of the committee members shall hold office until the next Annual General Meeting and be eligible
for reelection.

4. The Committee shall have the power to co-opt up to four extra members as they see fit.

5. Equal Opportunities. No individual shall be excluded on the grounds of sex, race, colour, age, religion,
sexual orientation, disability or political affiliation.

6. Removal of committee members

Committee members can be removed if:
i they resign in writing
ii. they are absent without agreement of the Chair from all committee meetings held within a
12 month period
iii. a two-thirds majority of the committee, acting reasonably and properly, feel it is in the best
interests of the organisation. Any decision made by the committee is final

7. Payments to committee members

1. Whereitisin the best interests of the organisation committee members can be paid for providing goods
and professional services to the organisation.

2. Any payment made will be no higher than the standard market rate.

3. Where a payment for goods and services is made to a committee member, that committee member
must adhere to the conflict of interest and loyalties clause in this document.

4. No committee member will be paid for their role as a committee member of the organisation.

8. Conflicts of interests and conflicts of loyalties

1. Committee members must declare any conflict between their personal interests and the best interests
of the organisation. Conflicts can include but are not limited to:
i. payments to a committee member to provide goods or services
ii. payments to a relative of a committee member to provide goods or services
iii. payments to a business interest of a committee member to provide goods or services
2. Where a conflict of interest has been declared the committee member will take no part in the
organisations decision making process relating to the conflict of interest.

9. Powers and Responsibilities

1. The committee has ultimate legal responsibility for the organisation.
2. The committee can act in any lawful way to fulfill the aims of the organisation.

10. Meetings and proceedings of the committee

1. The committee will meet at least four times a year.

2.  Any committee member can request the Chair call a meeting outside of the minimum four per year. If
requested to do so the Chair must call a meeting within 30 days of the request.

3. Three committee members or a third of all committee members (whichever is the greater) will be
quorum for committee meetings.

4. No decision may be made by a meeting of the committee unless a quorum is present.

5. Decisions shall be made by majority vote of those present at the meeting but in the case of equality of
votes, the Chairman of the meeting shall have a second or ‘casting’ vote.

6. Minutes of all committee meetings will be kept and shared with the committee after the meeting.
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7. The committee may make collective decisions by email outside of committee meetings. Any such
decisions should be reported and minuted at the next committee meeting.

11. Finance

1. The financial year shall end on 30 June

2. A bank account shall be opened in the name of the organisation, with three named signatories, any one of
whom may authorize payments.

3. The Association shall receive donations, grants in aid and financial guarantees. Tickets for any or all of its
concerts and other events shall be offered for sale to the public.

4. The organisation is a not-for-profit organisation and any income and property of the organisation will be
applied solely towards promoting the aims of the organisation as set out in this document.

5. The distribution of profits and assets among its members is expressly prohibited.

6. Payment of legitimate expenses is allowed.

12. Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The AGM will be called within 3 months of the Financial Year end.

Any normal committee meeting can be designated as the AGM.

All normal procedures for a committee meeting will apply to the AGM.

The AGM will include a report on the year’s activities and the last set of finalised accounts.

PwnNRE

13. Accounts
1. The financial accounts will be prepared after each financial year by the treasurer and examined and
scrutinised by a person who is independent of the Committee.
2. The accounts will be presented at the AGM.
14. Alterations to the governing document
The governing document may be amended by a two-thirds majority of the voting members present at an AGM.

15. Dissolution

In the event of the organisation being wound up, any assets remaining after the payment of debts and liabilities
will be donated to a not-for-profit organisation within similar musical objectives to the organisation. This will be
decided by a vote of remaining committee members. No remaining assets will be distributed to members.

Signed: Alistair McGowan

Chair Ludlow Piano Festival

Date
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udlow

Town Council

MONITORING AND EVALUATION FORM
ANNUAL CORE GRANT FUNDING

You are required to provide a written statement of how the Annual Core Grant has been spent

Please complete and return this form, along with the required supporting documentation to
Ludlow Town Council, The Guildhall, Mill Street, Ludlow, Shropshire, SY8 1AZ. By the end of
the financial year in which the Core Grant was awarded

Name of Group/Organisation

Ludlow Piano Festival CIC

Contact Name/Position held in the Group

Dr Ewart Carson - Secretary

Address

c/o Apartment 2 Dinham Hall, Dinham, Ludlow SY8 1EJ

Telephone No: 07816 432445

Email Address: ewart.carson@btinternet.com



mailto:ewart.carson@btinternet.com

DETAILS OF GRANT

Amount of Grant Awarded

£750

Year that the funding was received for

2025/6

Purpose for which grant was made (as stated in the original application)

Support for the Ludlow Piano Festival to ensure its on-going viability. One particular emphasis
was enabling young people to access high quality classical piano music. Means of achieving
this included a concert for primary school children; opportunities for young people to
participate in the community concert and in Open Piano sessions; opportunities for young
people to listen to and play the piano in Events Square; and very heavily discounted ticket
prices for children at all Piano Festival events.

Can you confirm that the whole of the grant was spent on the purpose for which it was given?

YES

Have you enclosed copies of accounts/receipts/invoices to support this monitoring form?
YES [Invoice for the hire of the trailer for Events Square]

If you have answered no to either question above please explain why. (continue on a separate sheet
if needed)




COMMENT AND EVALUATION

Number of beneficiaries supported through the Core Grant.

Children and young people, Ludlow retailers and hospitality providers, Ludlow residents and
visitors to the town

What have been the benefits and effect to the community as a result of the grant?

Children and young people benefiting from the Primary Schools concert, opportunities to
enjoy (playing and listening) the street pianos, and heavily discounted tickets for all events;

Increased income for Ludlow retailers and hospitality providers and a ‘buzz’ around the town
both during and after the festival; and

Ludlow residents enjoying a wide variety of piano events (in their home town) by performers
of the highest calibre

And we loved hearing so many talented Ludlow residents and visitors playing our
two community pianos, seeing people enjoying the town and its cafes, restaurants, delis and
shops - all in the name of the Piano.

If you plan to, how will you continue this work? (indicate financial or other arrangements made)

The Piano Festival will continue with pop-up concerts in November 2025 and the 4th Ludlow
Piano Festival in May 2026.

Tickets sales in 2025 increased significantly, meaning more visitors to boost Ludlow’s tourist
economy. This in turn means greater opportunities for increased marketing and publicity.
Mechanisms are in place to obtain the best possible terms for engaging internationally
famous performers as part of overall cost controls. Consequently we shall be able to ensure
that there are only very small increases in ticket prices for the next year, hence ensuring
accessibility for Ludlow residents and visitors alike. The Ludlow Piano Festival is now firmly
established as a major feature of the Ludlow Calendar.




Did you need to raise additional funds?
YES

If yes, what other funds did you manage to raise and from where?

William Alwyn Foundation £500
Alistair McGowan’s apple sale £275

Please add any other relevant information, highlights or comment:

The opening Celebrity Concert was highly enjoyable, compéred very effectively and
amusingly by Cally Beaton, and showcasing the pianistic talents of individuals from a wide
range of other artistic fields

Many of the events were memorable and amongst these were:
- “Desert Island Piano” with Dame Sheila Hancock

- World-class recitals by Peter Donohoe and Alim Beisembayev

- Joe Thompson with his Sunday afternoon “Jazz Celebration of Cole Porter”

Examples of comments received from audience members:

“What a wonderful way to bring the world to Ludlow. Such variety and talent for all music
lovers of all ages. Thank you Alistair and Steve and all the artists and volunteers.”

“What a wonderful occasion the Ludlow Piano Festival is. We were impressed by the wide
variety of musical styles and the calibre of the pianists. The LPF is now deservedly gathering
return visitors from much further afield, so make sure to put next year’s in your diary”

there is something for everyone. A great festival for everything piano! Thank you for
organising it”

“From Alistair playing Satie to Jazz in the Afternoon and not forgetting Dame Sheila Hancock-

Photograph and Feedback Submission

The Town Council requires and welcomes feedback and photographs from organisations.



Please be aware that photographs submitted to Ludlow Town Council may be publicised
internally and externally for the purpose of news media coverage. Photographs may be used in
the Town Council’s newsletters, website and social media and press releases.

LITick, if you do NOT wish to have your photographs to be used for publicity purposes.
Signed: 7

b émrm
Position: Secretary, Ludlow Piano Festival CIC

Date: 9 October 2025
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CONTACT DETAILS

Name of Group/Organisation

Hope House Children’s Hospice

Address

Nant Lane
Morda
Oswestry

Post Code: SY10 9BX Email: louise.sachdave@hopehouse.org.uk

Fax: n/a Tel No: 01691 671 671

Contact Person

Title: Mrs First Name: Louise

Surname:  Sachdave Position held in Group: Trusts & Grants Administrator

AIMS AND PURPOSE OF YOUR COMMUNITY GROUP

Charity Registration Number

If you are not a registered charity you must
1003859 enclose a copy of your constitution
VAT registration number if applicable 249-4580-74

What does your community group/organisation do and how are you financed?

Hope House Children’s Hospices provides palliative care for children and young people with life- limiting
conditions (LLCs) from the point at which a child is diagnosed through to the end of their life. We journey with
families over many years, enhancing quality to short lives through provision of expert skills and personalised
services (respite care, symptom management, crisis care, end-of-life care and care after death), that enhance
and complement those provided through statutory service models.

The holistic hospice-based and community care we offer helps to maintain the family’s links to the outside
world and our families tell us that they see our family support services as a “lifeline” (Family Voices Survey
2020). One family has said: "These places are essential to families like ours - the whole family not just the
child. They are the ones that keep us from breaking’.

At Hope House, Oswestry, we currently care for 200 children and young people, but, we know that we could
reach many more; the number of children with life-limiting conditions nearly trebled between 2002-2018 and is
predicted to rise by at least another 11% by 2030. We have recently embedded specialist Paediatric
Palliative Care Nurses and Family Support Workers within the Shropshire & Telford and Cheshire Community
Nursing Teams to help us meet our aim to provide professional support for every local child with a life-
threatening condition. As a result, we are seeing increased engagement with hospice services by families
living in these areas as well as new referrals. By being present in the community and attending regular clinics
our nurses have been able to identify and support more families from the point of diagnosis.




With just 19% of our costs met from statutory sources, and the remainder raised through our fundraising
efforts each year, the support of local councils, trusts and foundations is crucial, particularly for capital
projects.

How many people are in your group/organisation

Management Committee: 9
Members/Volunteers: 614
Paid Staff: 264




ABOUT YOUR PROJECT

Project/Grant Title

Application for a grant contribution to help fund a new specialist minibus

Briefly describe your project or reason for applying to enable the Town Council to understand how its
grant will be used:

We have applied to ‘Variety’, the children’s charity, who provide fully accessible, adapted minibuses for SEND
schools and non-profit organisations. If successful, we will be provided with a 13-Seat welfare minibus with
tail-lift. When some seats can be removed this minibus can facilitate a maximum of 3 wheelchairs.

Variety will fund 65% of the costs, and we need to find the remaining 35%. Our contribution will come to a total
of £19,120 and we are in the process of raising this amount.

To summarise, the new minibus will help to ensure we can reach and support every child and family who
needs us. It will:

1. Reduce isolation for children, young people and their families, who, supported by hospice transport
provision and community nurses, will be able to benefit from our services and engage with their communities
to access all the help they need.

2. Enhance physical wellbeing for children and young people; using the minibus to access hospice respite
services, therapies and symptom management will help to keep their complex conditions effectively managed,
and their pain reduced.

3. Improve mental wellbeing for children and young people; a safe and reliable vehicle offers increased
mobility and independence, supporting children to live life to the full despite their diagnosis, through
participation in fun and educational respite trips and activities with friends and family.

With just 19% of our costs met from statutory sources, and the remainder raised through our fundraising
efforts each year, the support of trusts local councils and foundations is crucial, particularly for capital
projects.

Many children and families struggle to get to the hospice where they could benefit further from the skills and
expertise of our team of nurses, therapists and activity leaders and our specialist facilities which include
specialist play and sensory rooms, accessible gardens and a hydrotherapy pool.

Because we operate across a large, rural area that includes Shropshire, parts of Cheshire, north-east and mid-
Wales, there are huge distances to travel. Public transport across the region is patchy, unreliable and difficult
to access with a child in a wheelchair. Many children in our care also require a range of nursing procedures on
a regular basis, including oxygen-therapy, tube feeding and a complex drug regime. For a child with a
compromised airway (tracheostomy) a nurse or carer must be in close proximity while in transit, for suctioning
or oxygen. This makes transport for our children complex.

For many families on a low income, transport costs are also prohibitive. Some parents of the young people we
care for cannot drive or do not have an adapted vehicle and they rely on our support to get to the hospice or
other health/hospital appointments which are vital to keeping their child’s complex symptoms well-managed.
We also organise group outings and activities which improve quality of life for children in our care, providing
opportunities to travel beyond their immediate community and enjoy experiences that others may take for
granted. When a life is short, every moment is precious, and it is crucial that children and families can make
special memories to treasure.

A properly adapted and well-maintained vehicle is crucial to making services both safe and accessible, yet
unfortunately our current minibus is out of use, with a broken rear lift that is too expensive to repair. With your
support we will purchase a replacement minibus to support the needs of children and young people.

How many people will benefit from this project or activities? Details of the number of members of
your group that are from Ludlow and the numbers of people from Ludlow that will directly
benefit from your project would be most helpful.




We are currently supporting 4 families in and around the Ludlow area. One of these families have a child with
complex needs who require respite care within the hospice environment. This often allows a family to spend
time with other siblings who really benefit from time with their parents. It can also allow parents to just have a
reset for a short while, knowing that their child is receiving the best round the clock care in a wonderful, caring
environment. It allows the child to participate in activities such as forest school, that they cannot always access
due to requiring a hoist, piped oxygen or feeding tubes. For the other three families, they are in receipt of
bereavement care from the hospice. This may be in the form of a group that meets up to share their
experiences, counselling sessions and even help arranging funeral details and attendance to memorial events
at the hospice. No two children are the same so our approach is tailor-made to that child, to that family.

Case Study: Dad is a single parent whose 8-year old daughter, M, has a life-threatening condition. M’s
condition means she has compromised airway and airway management (a tracheostomy). Dad is unable to
drive and they live with very complex social circumstances. Our community care team are able to provide
respite care in the community by picking M up from home in a wheelchair adapted vehicle and bringing her
back to Hope House for nursing care, helping her to meet her personal, social and psychological needs. This
also provides dad with important respite - the opportunity to undertake ‘normal’ daily life tasks. Offering him
support with hospital outpatient appointments has meant that M has been seen for review and followed up
when required, so that her treatment has been managed appropriately. This has been a vital support to both
dad and M

Estimated cost of project E19,120 Desired grant from Ludlow Town Council £1,000

Please note that the maximum you can apply for is £1,000.
FINANCIAL DETAILS
You must include an up to date statement of your group’s financial position (a copy of the latest
accounts or a treasurer’s report). If you are holding substantial reserves you must provide an
explanation as to why this project cannot be supported from your own funds

DECLARATION

If a grant is awarded, please complete the section below for BACS payment

Bank: HSBC Branch: Oswestry Postcode: SY11 2SR
Account number: 71328069
Sort code: 40-35-32

We are authorised to submit this application on behalf of the Group and certify that the information
enclosed is correct. We understand that there is no appeal procedure should this application be
rejected. If Ludlow Town Council gives a grant, we agreed to use it only for the purpose given and
according to any conditions specified. We understand that within six months after payment of a grant,
we are expected to provide Ludlow Town Council with a report on the progress of this project and
how the money has been spent.

Signature 1 Date: 15/10/2025
(Person submitting form)
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Signature 2 Date: 15/10/2025




" (Chairperson or senior representative of the Management Committee)

CHECKLIST

It is essential that you fill in every question and send the appropriate supporting documentation.
Complete the following checklist to show what you have done. If you do not include all the information
requested, your application will be incomplete and will take longer to assess or be ineligible. Please
do not send any documentation other than that requested.

N Answered every question

N Enclosed a copy of our constitution (if you are not a registered
charity)

O Enclosed a copy of our latest accounts and/or treasurer’s
statement

ALL APPLICATIONS FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE ARE CONSIDERED ON THEIR INDIVIDUAL
MERITS. APPLICATIONS MUST BE SUBMITTED WELL IN ADVANCE OF YOUR PROJECT
TAKING PLACE IN ORDER TO BE CONSIDERED AT THE APPROPRIATE MEETING

Completed Application Forms should be returned to:
Gina Wilding, Town Clerk, Ludlow Town Council, Guildhall, Mill Street, Ludlow, Shropshire, SY8 1AZ
Tel: 01584 871 970 Email: townclerk@ludlow.gov.uk

PRIVACY NOTICE

Ludlow Town Council collects and manages personal data under the Data Protection Act 1998 and the
General Data Protection Regulations 2018.

Your information will be lawfully processed by the Council within the terms of our privacy policy.

To find out more about our privacy arrangements, please access the Council’s website www.ludlow.gov.uk
where our full Privacy Notice and Privacy Policy can be viewed.

In the public interest details of applicants are in the public domain.



? Outlook

RE: Grant application submission: Hope House Children's Hospice

From Louise Sachdave <louise.sachdave@hopehouse.org.uk>
Date Wed 29/10/2025 2:34 PM
To assistant@ludlow.gov.uk <assistant@ludlow.gov.uk>

Hi Helen,

Thanks so much for your email. Please see below for a little more detail on how the minibus will be
used to help our children and families in Ludlow and beyond:

We anticipate that over the next months and years, more children with life-threatening conditions in
your area will need our help. If a family from Ludlow is without their own transportation, it makes
getting to the hospice that bit more difficult. When a family is going through the most difficult times of
their lives, should getting from A to B to receive the best care for their child really be another thing
that they have to face?

We now have a clinical nursing team raising our awareness in the community. If a child is not able to
access Hope House then as we cover such a vast geographical and largely rural area, it limits their
options for respite care and cuts them off entirely from hospice end of life care. Meaning that they
would not be able to have the time with their child to hold them close in a friendly, supportive
environment and create memories such as hand and feet casts as well as getting the bereavement
care on hand. We are aware of some of the public transport limitations in Shropshire and wouldn’t
ever want transport issues to be the reason why a child and their family are not able to come and
benefit from the excellent support care and facilities that we have here at the hospice.

As discussed in my application, we are currently supporting 4 families in Ludlow. One of these
families have a child with complex needs who require respite care within the hospice environment.
This often allows a family to spend time with other siblings who really benefit from time with their
parents. It can also allow parents to just have a reset for a short while, knowing that their child is
receiving the best round the clock care in a wonderful, caring environment. It allows the child to
participate in activities such as forest school, that they cannot always access due to requiring a hoist,
piped oxygen or feeding tubes. For the other three families, they are in receipt of bereavement care
from the hospice. This may be in the form of a group that meets up to share their experiences,
counselling sessions and even help arranging funeral details and attendance to memorial events at
the hospice. No two children are the same so our approach is tailor-made to that child, to that family.

| do hope that this will be sufficient for further consideration towards our application for funds.
Thank you for your consideration. | look forward to hearing back from you
Kind regards,

Louise

Louise Sachdave
Trusts & Grants Administrator

My normal working days are Monday to Thursday 09:00-17:00

7%: 01691 671671
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Hope House Children's Hospices {A company Emited by guarantee)
LETTER FROM THE CHAIR OF TRUSTEES

Dear Stakeholder,

tam pleased to present our annuat report and accounts for the year ending 31% December 2024, A year that marked a significant
step change and renewed clarity of Purpose for cur Charity.

At the end of 2024, 259 children were registered with us. This represents Just over 10% of the total nurber of children in our
community we believe will be living with a fife-threatening condition. We know that there are more who could benefit from hospice
care. One of the key pillars of our misslon is to reach every child from the polnt of their diagnosis.

In March 2024, the Board approved 2 new Mission for the Charity. Since then, we have worked to align the whale organisation
around this new Purpose, | am immensely proud of our remarkable staff team, who embraced this vision with unwavering focus,
delivering meaningful outcomes for the children and familles we support,

During the year, we provided:

s 2,458 nights of planned respite care; and
¢ 299 nights of emergancy / crisis care,
service which families tell us is the most vital service that we offer.

At year-end, 58% of the children registered with us were resldent in Wales. Foltowlng a strategic decision taken in 2023, nearly 10%
of the chiidren we now support are resident In Cheshire up from 3% the previous year,

Arecent personal highlight for me was attending @ meeting with inspectors from The Healthcare Inspectorate of Wales who had
carried out a routine Inspection at Ty Gobaith, our hospice in Conwy. Hearing the Inspectors share feedback from parents was
deeply moving. One parent’s words have remained with me; "This place Is beyond Improvement”. { am Incredibly proud of the
whole team, working together, listening to the views and seeking to understand the needs of all of our service users, whose
dedication made this possible.

2025 will be a milestone year, marking 30 years since the charity began supporting children with life-threatening conditions. Over
those years, chitdren’s palifative care has evolved significantly. Today children are thankfully living fonges, but often with very
comptex conditions. Ezch month araund ten new referrals are made to our Care Team, on average seven children and their familles
will meet our acceptance criteria and begin accessing our services.

To remaln relevant and deliver professional care and support for the next 30 years and beyond, it is vital that we continue to Invest
in our facillties, our pecple, and the development of services that meet the changing landscape of children's palliative care.

Statutory funding remains a vital, yet limited, source of income for children’s hospices. We are very grateful 1o the UK and Welsh
governments and NHS organisations for their support. Statutory funding represents just 13% of our total income, around half the
proportion recelved by adult hospices. The recent Increase In employer’s National Insurance contributions, announced in the
autumn 2024 budget, has added an additlonal burden of approximately £ 240,000 annually. We will continue to collaborate with
sector partners to advocate for increased funding for all chitdren’s hospices in England and Wales.

Hope House Children’s Hospices enjoys extraordinary public support. { am extremely grateful to everyone who donates thelr time,
energy and creativity to fundralse for us - and to all the donors who support them. It Is truly humbling to witness the Incredible
efforts of Individuals across our community who push themselves to thelr imits to ralse money for our cause, With this support
cormes profound responsibility to steward our resources wisely and ensure our impact and the public benefit of our work Is as
effective as It can be. | am proud to report that 84p of every £1 we spend s spent directly on delivering our charitable purpose.

Despite'challenging trading conditions tn our shops our total Income Increased by 10% on the previous yesr to a staggering £ 13.4m.
Whilst total expenditure reached £ 13.6m, Investrment Income enabled us to achieve 2 smal surplus. Encouragingly, we have seen a
strong performance so far In 2025. Looking ahead, we remaln focused on reaching every child from diagnosls; providing the
professional care and support they need, and ralsing the money required to do so. With your continued help, | am confident that we
can grow and deliver even more care to those who need it.

Ouring the year, we also undertook a comprehensive review of our pay and benefits policy to ensure we remaln competitive and can
attract and retain talented people to our team. We continue to invest In relevant training and development to ensure that pur staff
have the skilts and compatencies required.

Today, we are supported by over 740 active voluateers, a 21% increase on the year in review. Thelr contribution equates to over £
1m/pa In comparative wage value with more than 70,000 hours donated in 2024 alane. Without the support of our volunteers, we
simply could not deliver all of our services, Thank you, to each and every volunteer, for your tireless cormmitment and enthuslasm.

e |4 Trustees' report and consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2024



Hope House Children's Hosplces (A company limited by guarantee}

LETTER FROM THE CHAIR OF TRUSTEES {CONTINUED)

Finalty,  would tike to thank our Board of Trustees; our dedicated staff and our incredible volunteers for their continued
commitment and passionate support for the cause. { also extend heartfelt thanks to everyone who fundraises, donates, visits our
shops, plays our ottery, or supports us in countless other ways. There are far too many to mention Individually, but please know we
are very grateful to you all.

Steve Henly
Chalr of Trustees
26 June 2025
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Hope House Children's Hospices (A company limited by guarantee)

OBIECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Qur vision is a world where every child with a life-threatening condition and thelr family has 2477 access to, expertise, heipan'
understanding from the point of diagnosis.

259 children with a life-threatening condition were registered with us at the end of 2024,
Expenditure refatinig to the delivery of care services In 2024 was £8.7 million which represents 83% of total charitable expenditure.

Approximately 13% of totalincome came from statutory sources.

' C‘hilrn‘ a‘n 'n people with ti .0 serious that
are likely to die before they reach early adulthood.
Famlly bereaved from'the death of a child,
Restdent in Mid and North Wales, Shropshire, Teiford & Wrekin |
“and Cheshire. '

they

| Approximately 58% of the children are resident in Wales-and 42% |
(in England.

Appfo;’;lmatél'f"sai% of children (total including neonatesj have
| lirreversible but non-progressive conditions causing severe
.disability leading to susceptibility to health complications and
likelihood of premature death,

m stal
million
Lottery and Trading income £5.31 milfion
Fundraising Including legaci 1 million

In 2024, we launched our revised our purpose, mission, and values,
ey R : T

| 301 family members received counselling and bereavement

| 169 children stayed with us at Hope House and T Gobaith

d.
As of December 2024, we had open cases with 259 CYPs,

.support.

‘recelving 2,458 nights of planned respite care and 299 nights
of crisis and emergency {unplanned) care; a 10% decrease
from 2023, ‘

Sadly, 33 children who received suppert from us died during the
year.

Fundralsing expenditure £1.65 million
Lottery and Trading: £3.27 million

‘ensuring they truly reflect the needs of the children and families we
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‘Hope House Chikiren's Hospices (A company fimited by guarantee)

OUR MISSION
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Throughout 2024 the charity aligned ‘behind our new purpose putting it foremost when considering investment, activity and service
planning. ‘

Public Benefit Statement

The trustees confirm they have coriiplied with their duty under the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to the Charity Commission’s
guidance on public benefit. and our activities are cartied out to further our charitable purpeses and deliver measurable public benefit, by
providing hospice care, respite, counselling and bereavement: support to children and families. In 2024 we supported almost. 700
individuals.
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Hope House Children's Hospices {A company limited by guzrantee)

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF HOPE HOUSE CHILDREN'S HOSPICES

Governing Documents and Legalities
Hope House Children's Hospices is a registered charity, number 1003859 and a company limited by guarantee, Incorporated under the
Companies Act 1985, number 2588103,

The objects of the Charity are to relleve the need of:

{a} babies, children and young pecple with life-threatening, life limited and terminal conditions and thelr famities, who are residing in and
around Shropshire, Cheshire, North and Mid Wales, in particular, but not exclusively, by providing:

{1} respite care and symptom management;

(11} erisis, palliative and end of life care and support;

(itl) psycho-soclal support, Including counselling and wealibelng support for the children and young people and their families;
(iv) death and bereavement services for their families; and

{b) the famities of babies, children and young people who have died in other circumstances through bereavement support

Appointment of trustees

Our Beard of Trustees Is elected under our governing document. Trustees give their time voluntarily, receive no financial benefits, and bring
a wide range of skills and experience. In 2024, we refreshed our trustee body with new appointments and continued 1o strengthen
governance through annual appraisals and training,

The Members of Association have considered and determined not to set a maximum number of terms of office that a trustee may serve as
it Is felt & mix of experienced and new trustees gives the Board halance, Imposing a maximum number of terms a trustee can serve would
unnecessarily cause the loss of skills, knowledge and experience and risk the loss of Institutional memory, continuity, and abitity to exercise
effective governance,

In 2025 the Board, committee and governance structure will be reviewed as part of the programme to allgn the charity behind the new
purpose. Following that review, a trustee recrultment exercise will be undeniaken 1o bring in new lrustees who share the charity's purpose
and bring complimentary skills and experience,

Trustee induction training and devefopment
New trustees undergo an Inductlon process to ensure that they can undertake thelr dutles. During 2024, trustees completed training in the
following subjects: -

Charttable purpose and goveraing documents Rlsk management
Safeguarding children and vulnerable adults including deprivation  Conflict of Interest and toyalty
of liberties Data protection
Equality and diversity Strategic budgeting and financial management

Trustees undertake an annual appralsal with the Chalir of Trustees to identify areas of concern, interest and development.

Organisational structure and declsion making
The Board of Trustees administers the charity and meets quarterly. The Board has established a speciallst committee structure to provide
an efficlent mechanism for discharging corporate and charitable governance responsibitities. The committees In place during 2024 were:

Clinical Governance Audit and Risk
Income and Ipvastrment HR and Remuneration

A Chief Executive Officer Is appointed by the Trustees to manage the day-to-day operations of the charity. To facilitate effective operations,
the Chief Executive has delegated authority for all operational matters, within the terms approved by the Trustees,

Related Parties

Hope House {Trading) Lid. and Hope House (Lottery) ktd, are wholly owned subsidiaries of Hope House Children’s Hospices and are
consclidated as part of the charity's accounts. Hope House (Trading) Ltd sells merchandise and Hope House (Lottery) 1td runs the weekly
lotiery and regular raffles,

Trustees represent the charity on the subsidiary Board of Hope House {Lottery) Ltd and the Chief Executive and Director of Finance, People
and Resources on the subsidiary Board of Hope House {Trading) Ltd.
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Hope House Children's Hospices (A company fimited by guarantee)

PRINCIPAL RISKS

The trustees have assessed the major risks to which the charity is exposed. Board reassurance is provided by the Audit and Risk committee
which considers the highest ;trate;gic risks annually with continuous monitoring.

Critical and high risks to delivering the charitable purpose that were faced by Hope House Children’s Hospices st the start of 2024

[ The ca‘la ir?.c.tio,= strate
and forward planning.

Our current charitable purpose Is
creating competing priorities.

Trustee body lacks relevant skills or
commitment,

The retirement of a number of trustees has reduced the collective experience of the trustees and |
recruiting trustees with some skills {such-as paediatric nursing or medicine) remains challenging.

itls unknown if the services currently
provided best meet beneficiaries
needs.

There are children with life limiting. conditions who do not access our services and we do not
necessarily know their needs,

There appears to be communitles that are underrepresented as beneficiaries and we do not know
if our services meet thelr needs.

Insufficient income to meet planned

| However, untess long term income can increase in line with increased service costs then services

A deficit budgets was planned for 2024, but current position is resilient due to surplus reserves.

expenditure,

¢ould need to be reduced, impacting families and staff job security.

Significant  reduction or
Vgtartulory‘sectarfunding.

loss of | Statutory'funding accounts for around 13% of annual income and therefore the impact would be
significant if this was lost, potentially leading to reduction in service and staff redundancies, with

fmpact on morale and reputation.

Throughout the year, risks and the effectiveness of mitigation measures are monitored, and any new risks identified. At the end of
2024, the following potential risks were identified as falling above the charity’s risk appetite.

Critical and high organisational risks entering 2025

Trustee body lacks relevant
skills or commitment,

‘ Anenga

ged and diverse board strengthens the
charity's leadership, decision-making, and public
trust by bringing varied perspectives, lived
experiences, and active commitment to its
misslon and governance.

The Chief Executive and Chair of Trustees are reviewing the
Board Governance structures and trustee obligations and
following consultation with existing trustees will report to the
Board on new arrangements in March 2025, including
proposals for trustee recruitment.

Insufficient income to meet
planned expenditure.

A deficit budget has been set for 2025 with costs
subistantially impacted by the change in National
Insurance contributions and the significant
increase in National Living Wage.

Some of the Increased costs have been offset by investment
to increase income and cost savings. Reserves will be used to
meet any short term deficit whilst steps are taken fo increase
income and reduce costs as necessary to ensure a longer
term balanced budget and to avoid depleting reserves to
unsustainable levels.

| Significant reduction or
loss of statutory sector
funding.

In 2024 the charity received over £1.8milliori in
statutory sector funding by way of grants and
service level agreements. Most of these
‘agreements are annual and whether they will
continue, in what form or what value is uncertain,
The impact if this funding was lost or significantly
reduced would be significant, potentially leading
to reduction in service-and staff redundancies,
with impact on morale and reputation.

| We continue, along with Hospice UK -and TFSL to seek to

influence legislators, eivil servants and the NHS e secure the
future of these important funding streams and where
possible uplift the value.

Inappropriate reserves
held (too high).

We will enter 2025 reserves in excess of those
stipulated by the Reserves Policy. Holding
reserves above policy can expose the charity to
reputational risk, reduce fundralsing
effectiveness, and suggest a failure to deploy
resources to deliver the charitable objects.

Some of the risk of holding reserves in excess of policy has
been mitigated by the decision of the Board in December
2023 to designate three additional funds and expenditure
against these funds will continue to deplete reserves in 2025.

Additionally, the current reserves policy is scheduled for
review at the end of 2025 and given the significant increase in
income since 2022, a corresponding increase in the minimum
reserves required is likely. This would further reduce the
surplus.
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Hope House Children's Hospices (A company limited by guarantee)

STRATEGIC REVIEW
Our Staff and Volunteers

Our staff

Our staff are a critical element of the succeéss of Hope House Children’s Hospice. More to the point, what they bring ta work is the
single most important component of our success, however we measure it. You can see, hear, and feel it every day across all areas of
the charity.

In 2024 we held our biannual staff conference where we launched our new mission and gave colleagues an opportunity to connect
with the purpose and each other. 225 staff attended and the feedback was overwhelmingly pasitive.

“This year's Stoff Conference was agoln, omazing. 1t wos Informative, insightful and comical. A great day for connecting with
everyone. Maybe an instonce of Team Building while sat at our tables but all-in-all; a brilliant day.”

“Queraltfabufous day and fucky to work for an employer that cares and shares!”

““What an absolutely brilliant day. it wos a 'Tént Full of Passion’ to the cause.”

Staff numbers in 2024 vs 2023 by department

: _ 2024
Total ﬁermei;:amat-m '
5 e :
Care 151 53% 144 55%
Retail 69 ] 24% 59 22%
Fundraising {inc! Lottery} 31' 1% o 29 N i 1%

Disability Confident Employer
‘Hope House Children's Hospices isa Level 2 Disability Confident Employer registered with the Department of Work and Pensions.
'Disability Confident Employers are recognised as going the extra mile to rake sure disabled people get a fair chance.

Gender Pay Gap _
‘Every year the charity publishes its annual gender pay gap report. The gender pay gap is a measure of the difference between men'’s
and women’s average earnings across-an organisation or the labour -market. The table below shows the gender pay gap: for Hope

The mean gender pay gap for the whole UK economy {according to the Office for National Statistics (ONS) 2024 Annual Survey of
rHours and Earnings (ASHE) figures) was 13.8%. At 5.69% Hope House Children’s Hospices results showed a mean gender pay gap at
less than half than that for the whole economy.

“The ongoing differénce between the mean pay for men and women arises from the roles in which men and women work within the
‘organisation and the salaries that these roles attract. Hope House Children's Hospices is therefore confident that a gender pay gap
as defined by the Equality Act does not exist at Hope House Children’s Hospices and that any gender pay gap does not stem from
‘paying men and women differently for the same or equivalent work.

'Despite men being more likely to be employed in more senior roles commanding higher salaries than women generally in the UK,
this is not the case at Hope House Children’s Hospices with around 50% of the wamen employed by Hope House Children's Hospices
earning within the higher pay quartiles (43% in 2023).

Pay Policy for Senior Staff
How the salaries of Key Management Personnel are determined is set out in policy and determined by the Board of Trustees.
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Hope House Children’s Hospices {A company limited by guarantea}
STRATEGIC REVIEW {CONTINUED)

In order to recruit and retain high calibre staff, the trusteas recognise that the remuneration package offered must be competitive
whilst ref!ec,t:ng the motivation of working for a charity and the values of the organisation. They therefore seek to ensure salaries
are competitive but do not exceed those pald in comparable]ohs in non-charitable organisations.

Volunteers

In addition to: pald staff the charity was supported by volunteers:who are active in many roles across the charity, including the
trustees who give their time valun&artly

The contribution made by our many dedicated volunteers and the cansiderable hours worked canniot be overstated. They help the
charity have a much greater impact than could othefwise be achieved, thruugh governance, raising money, providing care and
support to children and families, and by acting as ambassadors.

Number, hours and ‘salary saving’ given by volunteers

Number of individuals Ahi i = Annualwage ‘saving”

Location ; T— i

2024 } 2023 i Srapan o . 3 12024 ==02023
Ty Gobaith 5 7 684 1538 £0,234 £20,168
Hope House 29 25 2,854 3175 £35,962 £39,223
Shops -359 386 64,031 77,180 '£732,515 £841,260
Fundralslngf 212 18 | 1874 1,495 £26,536 £16,296
Friends ’ S

Trustees 2 1l 651 £105,446 £105,446

EQGQ 6920 | 215022,393

B il S = = 4

Grapd Tetall | -
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Hope House Children's Hospices {A company limited by guarantee)

ACTIVITIES FOR ACHIEVING OUR OBJECTIVES

In 2024, we supported 259 children and young people with life-limiting conditions, along with 301 family members. Behind these
numbers are families who told us that our care and support are a “lifeline”.

Care was provided at Hope House in Morda near Oswestry, Shropshire and T9 Gobaith in Conwy, North Wales, at home and In the
community,

Bereavement support was provided to any family after the death of their child - whether or not we had previously cared for them.

To fund the provision of care the.charlty received funding from statutory sources and raised funds by donations, th rough the sale of
donated goods and by the operation-of the subsidiary trading companies, one that sold new goods for the benefit of the charity and
the other that operated our lottery.

Qur care services andsupport.

How we helped children and their families - In numbers

259 children and young people registered with us

127 new referrals received, 89 accepted

301 family members received counselling and bereavement support

132 brothers and sisters registered for services

169 children received 2,458 nights of planned respite care and 299 nights of emergency/crisis care
33 children known to us died durin,‘g.the vear, 2 at our hospices

206 families received practical support, including home visits

TDher sreas of

Chgshil
Catchment Area bl Englind gndWales

Hope House Children’s Hospices supports children and families’ resident e
in Shropshire, Cheshire, North and Mid Wales. 57% of children registered

were resident In Wales and 43% in England. As in previous years the e S
largest number of children are resident in the Betsi Cadwalader s g
University Health Board area {North Wales) followed closely by the 32% At
resident i the Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin Integrated Care Board
Area. i

el UHB
" s

In 2023, Project Wheatsheaf was established to increase the number of S
children in Cheshire supperted. As a result of this project, the proportion 1.7 =
of registered children has increased from 3% in 2023 to 9.7% by the end

of 2024.

Reach

Based on: the most recent Office for National Statistics data, within our catchment area we support a population of around
2,106,362 with a child population of 431,338, Applying the prevalence data from the most recent research, it would suggest that
there are approximately 2,564 children with LTCs In our catchment.

As'of December 2024, 259 children were registered with us which equatesto an estimated 10.1% of children with LTC's within our

catchment area although this varies up to over 20% in some communities. Not all children identified in the research will need or
~want hospice services however, Understanding need, removing barriers and increasing reach are priorities going forward.
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Hope House Children's Hospices (A comipany limited by guarantee)

ACTIVITIES FOR ACHIEVING OUR OBJECTIVES (CONTINUED)

Age range for support
We support children and young people with life [imiting conditions from 24 weeks gestation untcl their 18t Birthday. Transition

support continues foranother 12 months. [
Overnight stays at the hospices

Hospice Care
Hope House Children’s Hospices operates two hospices; ‘ 1500 200
Hope House in Morda near Oswestry, Shropshire and T j‘;‘ 3000 vy ‘ ‘é"
Gobaith in Conwy, North Wales, I, 150 &
5 2000
a o 100 ©
Families tell us that they rely on the hospice for overnight 45 1500 ©
respite and it is the most important service that we offer, 5 1000 50 6
giving parent carers a break from the intense care that “f:’ ‘560 6
many children with life-limiting conditions require and = 0 - - - 0 ,g
care, experiences and opportunities for children that ‘ N 2048 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
improve their quality of life. ‘ Year
== Number of bed nights ‘Nuinber of children staying

During 2024, the number of children staying at the hospices and the number of overnight stays fell as we discharged young adults
from the service. The average nights per child was 16,3 nights,

Continuing to optimise occupancy of the hospice for respite stays is-a priority in 2025,

Deaths and end-of-life

Over the last 12 months we continued to prioritise end of Jife care, where possible giving choice of where a child died, whether that
be at hore, in the hosplce or in haspital, This included enabling critically 1l babies and children to be transferred out of the
neonatal and critical care units to their preferred place of death (hospice or home).

33 children we provided support for sadly died in 2024 including 2 who died at one of our hospices. Prevalence estimates suggest
these 33 children made up 56% of children with LTCs expected to die in 2024 within our catchment area.

Complex care and symptom control
Our specialist Paediatric Palllative ‘Care Consultant appointed jointly with Betsi Cadwaladr Health University Health Board,
developed our speclallst med[cal support for children in North and Mid Wales, including out of hours and at the hosp]ces

are contmumg to wark with NHS and neighbouring c‘nildren s hospu:e colleagues to'find a way to-deliver thls service.

Parent and family support

In 2024 we provided counselling to parents whase child had died in any circumstance within the last five years through a team of
contracted and directly employed counsellors.

IMPACT ON THE FAMILY

Following: successful trials, in 2024 we rolled out a programme of relaxed happinesy Stress rellevar
family activity and fun days at both hespices throughout the year. o © sapported '
These events brought fun and laughter for the whole family and L togetherriess:
quality moments. They were also an :opportunity for families to o D T
connect and to build informal networks of support. Feedback from

families has been overwhelmingly pasitive and the following positive embraced

impact was achleved. These avents will continue and develop in 2025 Fun times Bt e

in harness with plans to irhprove and enhance the hospice gardens. Spught and gainall adilee

‘In 2024, as part of our work to align our services with our purpose we completed a review of our Sibling Support service and
activities. As a result, in 2025 we will launch a new Family Support service with Family Support Workers providing support for the
‘whole farmly, mums, dads,. brolhers, sisters and grandparents, individually and collectively. They will work with families to identify
the support that they themselves feel they need.
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{Hope House Children’s Hospices (A company fimited by guarantee)

OUR IMPACT

Service users, families and carers offer a vital perspective on the impact of the services offered by the charity. We are therefore

‘committed to engage and involve service users, families and carers in decisions, actions, and activities to ensure they remain at the
‘heart of everything we do.

‘During 2024, we received 171 responses via our complaints, concerns and complimerits system. 96% of the feedback we received
‘was positive. (98% in 2023),

‘Here is 2 small sample of the positive feedback recelved.

_ o ol
Jtare, rdgasrah-ant co-ardinare suppor”.
place guick

Complaints

‘We received 1 complaint and 4 negative comnients: regarding care-during the year. The main reason for concern was the reduction
in the upper age range for our clinical support from 25 to 18. The complaint was partially upheld and action tzken and the negative
feedback was used to review and inform improvements.
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Hope House children's Hospices (A company limited by guarantee)

OUR FUNDRAISING

2024 was our 30™ year of providing care and stipport and throughout that period the charity has relied on our extraordinary
supporters and their unfa!tering support. We are eternally grateful to all these who continued to donate to us and to raise money
sa that we can help'every local child with a life threatening condition live thelr best life,

in 2024 we raised £6.1 million from donations and legacles compared to £5.16 riillien in 2023. The: chart below shows total
fundraising income for the last 5 years. The drop in income in 2020 and 2021 due to the pandemic can be seen, however 2022
shows a dramatic recovery with the growth continuing in 2024,

ET,000000

6108 580

5, 855 691
'l

£6,000,080
5,158,594
£5,000.000 s

£4,000,000

£3,000000

Valug (EM}

£2,000,000

£1000.000

£0

2024 had notable fundraising successes including:

Llangollen Canal Walk saw 500 participants Join the event and over £30,000 raised.

The Annual Track Day event raised the most ever in'its 8 year history at £103,335

Over 100 runners took part In Cardiff Half Marathon thanks to support from Principality Building Society raising a total of £63,443

Raffle mailings raised over £110,000 at Christmas 2024.

Our Quality Moments Matter matched giving campaign raised £496,759: this was generated by 26 matchers, 143 champions and
approximately 2,772 donors. ‘

Retail confribution
During 2024 we operated 15 shops and an online and mail order shop. We relocated our shop in Oswestry In April to a flag ship

new store and we closed our.shop in Denbigh in June.

Hope House Lottery
The Hope House weekly lottery Is run in conjunction with-our partner Sterling Lotteries who draw the winning numbers every Friday

{www.sterlinglotteries.co,uk). The Hope House Lottery belongs to the member group HLA {www.hospicelotteries.co.uk). We adhere
to the Gambling Commission regulations including contributing to begambleaware each year.

During the year we cohtracted with face-to-face canvassing agencies and individuals to recruit new supporters to the lottery through
a comblnation of residential door to door recruitment and at venues.

Our lottery has grown from strength ta strength over the last 10 years and we ended 2024 with a total of 30,525 [ottery playersand a
total of 37,0084 tickets sold in the last draw of the year. Compared to 2023 this is an additional 1,426 active lottery players at year

end.

Our future strategy s to maintain player numbers through recruitment and a focus on player engagement to reduce cancellations and
maintaining profitability. '
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Hope House Children's Hospices {A company limited by guarantee)
OUR FUNDRAISINGT(CONTINUE:D)

Year-end Lottery lines 2014-2024

40,000
7 35,849 35,567 37,084
35,000 34.14‘_13 X i

132,021 31,535
29,604 by it

HO000

24,595
5,000 W
20,000 18,851

B 43353 .-

10,000
5000

9
2044 2015, 2010 2017 2018 201 20zd 2@2[ 2022 2hz3 2024

Yearly icket
changd

+3.310 | ¥2,047 ’ +3,451 l 5,744 | 5,400 J 13,375 ‘ 243 | 35 | 4,314 [ 782 I b7 ‘

Our fundraising standards

Donars, supporters and volunteers can be confident that Hope House Children’s Hospices complies with the regulatory standards
for fundraising. We are registered with the Fundraising Regulator and. are committed to the Fundraising Promise and adherence to
the Code of Fundraising Practice.

Our reputation with those who need our services and to those who kindly donate to us is paramount. We therefore make the
following promises to those who so kindly support us:

“We comply with all relevant law, regulationis and codes of practice and ensure that those who are contracted to work with us
understand and adhere to them in their entirety. We regularly monitor performance and have robust contracts in place to
ensure compliance.

‘\We treat the information-supparters provide with the utmost respect-and use it only for the purposes for which it has been given.
Supporterscan change their preferences at any time, and we aim'to implement those ¢hanges within 2 wcrrklng days.

We have a comprehensive vulnerable people’s policy that is regularly reviewed and updated as required.
We respect and value all contributions to the charity and will never do any fundraising activity that may undermine our core values
or integrity.

‘We sometimes engage the services of third parties to help us deliver the fundraising objectives, particularly where we do not have

‘the expertise in house. We have safeguards in place when working with suppliers to protect our supporters and the reputation of

our charity. We aim to ensure those agencies we employ also observe the highest standards in terms of fundraising practice, We

“manage and monitor the work undertaken an our behalf and have robust contracts in place to ensure that all activities are earried

out to our high standards;

We are signed up to the Fundraising Preference Service to enable Individuals to opt out from receiving fundraising communications
from us,

Listening to supporters and addressing complaints

We take feedha’ck'seribusl\/ ahd although we strive to receive no complaints, when we did, these were prioritised and investigated,
fully, quickly and fairly. Where a complaint was upheld we learnt from our mistake and put in effective measures to limit further
distress or complaints of the same nature. Our website outlines our complalnts polity and clearly explains how an individual can
.complain.

The following complaints were received in 2024 regarding our fundraising activity.

¢  Retail: 8 complaints — 6 upheld and action taken.
s Fundraising including Lottery: 10 complaints = 1 upheld and action taken.

Given the level of activity and volume of transactions, the level of complaints remains very low. We received no complaints or
notifications via the fundraising Regulator.
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Hope House Children's Hospices (A company fimited by guarantee)

OUR PLANS FOR THE FUTURE

During 2025 we wili focus on aligning the charity behind our new purpose and, In particular, delivering the following outcomes,

Providing professional care and support

1. Improved assessment of the needs of children and families and the identification and removal of barriers to service
access.

2. Specifications and operating maodels for Care services aligned to the purpose.
3. Aframework for engaging the views of service users and Incorporating feedback into decision making and change.

4, Safe, Inclusive, and impactful physical environments for the delivery of Care services.

Reaching every child from diagnosis

5. A conflrmed catchment area for both proactive and reactive activity, and a clear understanding of service user need and
the support avallable throughout,

6. Greater influence on clindcal professionals to Integrate hospice support into care pathways from the point of diagnosls.

7.  An Increase in the number of honest, effective, and timely conversations with famifies which lead to informed choice
about accessing support.

8. More timely processing of new referrals and effective communication and support for families during the referral process.

Ralsing the money

8. An integrated Income generation strategy (including statutory income} aligned with service priorities and purpose
messaging.

10. Improved mechanisms for delivering best value, including monlitoring returns on Investment and understanding the
impact of funded roles.

A well-run organisation

11. An engaged and valued workforce with the skills and knowledge to deliver the purpose, and behaviours reflecting the
organisational values.

12. Arobust and fit-for-purpose approach to pay and performance review.

13. Governance structures aligned to purpose including board activity, thange methodology, procurement practices and
information governance,
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Hope House Children's Hospices (A company limited by guarantee)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The charity is financially stable, with strong reserves and a dependable supporter base. Several years of surplus have put the charity
In 2 sound financial position, able to invest n service growth and income generation.

Financlal performance in 2024 significantly exceeded expectations and the receipt of an unbudgeted grant from Welsh Goverament
at the end of the year turned a budget deficit Into a small surplus.

Income
Total income in 2024 was £13.4million {£12.2m 2023},

income from donations and legacles was £6.1million, an Increase 18% from 2023,

Our shops made a lower contribution to the charity during 2024 than In the previous year due to falling turnover, increased costs
and the reduction in value of textlle recycling Income. Despite these difficult trading conditions, our shops made a net contribution
to the charity of over £600K as well as providing an important presence across our catchment area. In 2024 a new interim retail plan
was approved, focussing on stabilising and maximising value before positioning for growth in 2025 and growing in 2026.

The Hope House Lottery rermained a significant and reliable income source in 2024, making a net contribution to the charity of
£1.4mlHion,

Hope House Children’s Hospices malntained strong relatienships with healthcare cornmissioners, who Invested in the services we
defivered to local children and families, During 2024 Hope House Children’s Hospices received £1.8m in funding from statutory
bodies towards service provision and capital expenditure. This represented 13% of income and 22% of charitable expenditure.

Whikst we are grateful to the UK and Welsh Governments and NHS arganisations in England and Wales for the financial support
provide, the funding falls short of the average funding for aduit hospices and we continue to press the case for falr and sustalnable
funding for children's hosplces.

Expenditure

Total expenditure In 2024 was £13.6 million an increase of c.£1 million from 2023 driven by increased salaries, Inflation and
increased services. Significant investment was made In care services, Income generation, people development, and supporting
infrastructure.

Charitable expenditure {exduding Trading and Lottery} was £10.35 milllon. £8.7 million of this was on charitable activities {84%),
with the remalining £1.65 million on ralsing funds.)

Reserves policy

Hope House Chiddren’s Hospices hold financlal reserves to safeguard the future of our care and support for children and families.
Should our income not keep pace with costs over time, we may need to adjust the level of services we provide. f this becomes
necessary, the trustees will plan any ehanges with great care to ensure that children and families continue to recelve the greatest
possible benefit In fine with our charitable purpose,

Reserves are held for the folfowing purposes:

To manage short term Income shortfatls
Each income stream Is assessed as to the likelihood and degree of an income shortfall. Reserves are held a level sufficient to
ensure service continuity for 2 years if income falls short of forecast, whilst steps are taken to reduce costs.

To adjust costs to match income
Reserves are held to restructure costs in the event of income not meeting forecast. The money would primarily be used to
meet the costs of reducing the workforce by up to 25%.

To provide for catastrophic events
Through a risk management process, we seek {o rationalise, quantify and avoid events occurring and insure against those risks
that cannot be removed. However, there is always the potential of an unforeseen catastrophic event occurring, It Is impossible
to quantify such an event but there Is sense In holding reserves to mitigate Impact or ald recovery should one oceur.

Level of Reserves

For the perlod 2023 to 2025, reserves will be held at the levels below. If reserves fall below these levels then action will be taken to
reduce costs within the following 12 months In accordance with agreed priosities, bringing expenditure and income into balance.
The level of reserves and campliance with the policy will be considered by the Board of Trustees quarterly and the policy will be
reviewed by December 2025,
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FINANCIAL REVIEW {CONTINUED)

Purpase for which reservesare held -5 T S T AN o T
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To manage income shortfalis 2,826,000 2,853,000 2,976,125

To adjust costs 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,060

To respond to a catastrophic event 350,000 350,000 350,000

Total 4,176,000 4,203,000 4,326,125

The level of reserves have been determined through a risk based reserves calculation that accounts for high levels of uncertainty
over income offset by a fairly static cost base.

Following three years of significant surplus, reserves during 2023 were substantially above policy and in December 2023 the Board
of Trustees establishment of three designated funds for the financial years 2023 - 2025,

Hospices Modernisation and Enhancement Fund - £1,000,000

Retail Growth & Development Fuad - £500,000

Purpose & Impact Alignment Fund - £4,500,000.

Unlike the contingency designated funds {for which the reserves policy determines the minimum level that must be maintained),

the three additional funds were designated with the specific intent to spend them, Deslgnating funds in this way allowed the
trustees to Invest n pursuit of the charity’s purpose and demonstrate to external funders and stakehelders why these funds are

being held.

Iavestment policy

The investment portfollo Is managed by the Income & Investment committee of the Board of Trustees. In general terms, the aim is
to spread risk across several sectors as follows:

Cash in UK registered current, deposit and overnight bank accounts.

Shares traded on the London Stock Exchange and overseas.

Freehold and feasehold land,

Shares and other investments donated to the charity (after a full financial review of the investment at the next appropriate
investment committee meeting).

Shares in subsidiary companies,

Unlt trusts, open ended Investment companies, trust companies and the like.

The Income and Investments committee is mindful of its key responsibifity of keeplng the finances of the charity secure and have

therefore adopted & medium risk Jnvestment strategy. The committee engaged the services of Investec Wealth and Investment

(subsequently Rathbones) and Parmenion Capital Partrers to manage the charity's equity portfolio and received independent

financial advice from Redbourne Wealth Management.

The performance of the Investment Manager and Portfolio was reviewed regularly by the Income and Investment committee and
performance assessed agalnst the Balanced Asset Benchmark produced by Asset Risk Consultants (ARC).
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TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The trustees (who are also directors of Hope House Children’s Hospices for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the trustees’ report {including the group director’s and strategic repart) and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources and apphication of resources, including the Income and
expenditure, of the charitable company for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the trustees are required to:

select suitable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently;

observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP {FR5102);

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explalned
In the financial statements;

prepare the financial statements on the golng concern basis unless it s Inappropriate to presume that the charitable group wili
continue in operation.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable
company and the group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable
group and enable them to ensure that the financlal statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detectlon of fraud and other irregularities.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the persons who are trustees at the time when this trustees’ report is approved has confirmed that:

so far as that trustee is aware, there is no relevant audit Information of which the charitable group's auditors are unaware, and

that trustee has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a trustee in order to be aware of any relevant audit
information and 1o establish that the charitable group’s auditors are aware of that information.

This report, Incorporating the group strategic report, was approved by the trustees, in their capacity as company directors, on 26th
June 2025 and signed on their behalf by;

Sepleln | -

Stephen Henly
Chalr of Trustees
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS

Opinton

We have audited the financial statements of Hope House Children's Hospices (the 'charitable parent company’)

and its subsidiaries {'the group’) for the year ended 31 December 2024 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies, The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable faw and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the group and the charitable parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2024 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinton

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (iSAs {UK})) and appficable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibiiities for the audit of the financial statements
sectlon of our report. We are independent of the group and the charitable parent company In accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, inctuding the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibiities in accordance with these requirements,
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the

preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not Identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and the charitable parent company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financlal statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibllities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
refevant sectlons of this report.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual

Report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon.

Our oplinion on the financial statements does nat cover the ather information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conciusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information Is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we Identify such materlal inconsistencies or apparent materfal misstatements, we
are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material misstatement of this other informatlon, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companles Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

-the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

-the Strategic Report and the Report of the Trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements,
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS {CONTINUED)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
tn the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the charitable parent company and its environment obtained In the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Trustees, We have
nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, In our opinion:
- adequate Accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified hy law are not made; or
- we have not received afl the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the directors of the group and the
charitable parent company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internat control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the group and the charitable parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the golng concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to kiquidate the group and the charitable parent company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our responsibllities for the audit of the financial statements

Our ohjectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the independent Auditors that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high feve! of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As {UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregufarities, including fraud is detailed below:
- the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to
identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

- we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the company through discussions with directors and other management, and from
our cormercial knowledge and experience of the client's operating sector;

- we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the financial statements or the
operations of the company, including the Companles Act 2006, taxation legislation, employment, environmental and health and safety
legislation;

- we assessed the extent of compliance with the faws and regulations identified above through making enquiries of management; and

- identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained alert to instances of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the company's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining an understanding of
how fraud might accur, by:

- making enquiries of management as to their knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and
- reviewing the client's system notes and Internal controls.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

- performed analytical procedures to identify any unusuat or unexpected relationships;

- tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;
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- assessed whether fudgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in note 3 were indicative of
potential bias;

-investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulfations, we designed procedures which included, but were
not limited to:

- agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;
- enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims
- reviewing correspondence with HMRC,

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The mare removed that laws and regulations are from
financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance. Auditing standards also limit the audit
procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and other management and
the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may involve
defiberate concealment or collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report of the Independent Auditors.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the group and the charitable parent company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the group and the charitable
parent company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the group and the charitable parent
company and the group and the charitable parent company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

A-d

Aled Davies FCCA {Sentor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of D.R.E. & CO (Audit) Limited
7 Lower Brook Street

Oswestry

Shropshire

S$Y112HG

26% june 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM

Donations and legacies

Charltable activities
Charitable activities

Other trading activities

investment Income

Total

EXPENDITURE ON
Ralsing funds
Trading activities

Charitable activities
Charitable activities

Total

Net gains on investiments

NET INCOME/{EXPENDITURE)

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Total funds brought forward
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD

Notes

15

20

31.12.24 31.312.23
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds fund funds funds
£ £ £ £

5,617,783 490,797 6,108,580 5,158,594
9,457 1,794,487 1,803,944 1,648,919
5,310,693 ) 5,310,693 5,268,594
187,367 - 187,367 188,735
11,125,300 2,285,284 13,410,584 12,264,842
1,649,157 - 1,649,157 1,507,485
3,273,187 - 3,273,187 2,954,393
6,743,815 1,994,596 8,738,411 8,172,688
11,666,159 1,994,596 13,660,755 12,634,566
513,547 - 513,547 414,647
{27,312) 290,688 263,376 44,923
15,462,121 229,743 15,691,864 15,646,941
15,434,811 520,431 15,955,242 15,691,864

Al activities relate to continuing operations, The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and tosses recognised in the

year.

The statement of financial activities also complies with the requirements for an income and expenditure account under the

Companles Act 2006,
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

31.12.24 31.12.23
Notes Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds fund funds funds
£ £ £ £
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 14 5,053,875 407,185 5,461,160 4,811,226
Investment property 15 409,999 - 409.959 409,999
fnvestments 16 7,249,536 - 7,249,536 7,712,316
12,713,510 407,185 13,120,635 12,940,541
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks 17 19,814 . 19,814 19,514
Debtors 18 2,647,317 - 2,647,317 1,866,827
Cash at bank and in hand 287,326 113,246 1,000,572 1,663,988
3,554,457 113,246 3,667,703 3,550,329
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year 18 {833,156) . {833,156} {799,006}
NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,721,301 113,246 2,834,547 2,751,323
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABIHTIES 15,434,811 520,431 15,955,242 15,691,864
NET ASSETS 15,434,811 520,431 15,955,242 15,691,864
FUNDS 20
Unrestricted funds 15,434,811 15,462,121
Restricted funds 520,431 229,743
TOTAL FUNDS 15,955,242 15,691,864

The financiat statements were approved by the trustees on 26th June 2025 and signed on their behalf by:

@A@ iy

Stephen R Henly
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CHARITY BALANCE SHEET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
31.12.24 31,12.23
Unrestricted Restricted Total Fotal
funds fund funds funds
£ £ £ £

FIXED ASSETS
Tanglble assets 14 5,053,975 407,185 5,461,160 4,811,226
Investment property 15 409,899 - 409,999 409,939
Investments 16 7,249,540 - 7,249,540 7,719,316

12,713,514 407,185 13,120,699 12,940,541
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks 17 - - . 18,274
Debtors 18 2,647,317 - 2,647,317 2,011,478
Cash at bank and in hand 762,498 113,246 875,744 1,350,151

3,409,815 113,246 3,523,061 3,379,903
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within cne year 19 {694,950} N {694,950) (635,015}
NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,714,865 113,246 2,828,111 2,744,887
TOTAL ASSEYS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 15,428,379 520,431 15,948,810 15,685,432
NET ASSETS 15,428,379 520,431 15,948,810 15,685,432
FUNDS 20
Unrestricted funds 15,428,379 15,455,689
Restricted funds 520,431 229,743
TOTAL FUNDS 15,948,810 15,685,432

The financial statements were approved by the trustees on 26th June 2025 and signed on their behalf by:

il

Stephen R Henly
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

31.12.24 31.12.23
£ £

Cash flows from operating activities CFi
Cash generated from operations (727,602) 545,239
Interest paid {39,251) -
Net cash provided by operating activities {766,853} 545,239
Cash flows from investing activities
purchase of tangible fixed assets (1,067,259} (329,242)
Purchase of fixed asset investments {1,013,432) (1,000,000}
Sale of fixed asset investments 1,991,380 -
Interest received 187,367 -
Movement on cash account 5,379 -
Net cash used in investing activities 103,435 (1,329,242}
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period (663,416) (784,003}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period CF2 1,663,988 2,447,991
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period CF2 1,000,572 1,663,988
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

CF1 RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income for the reporting period {as per the Statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for;

Depreciation charges

Inceme from investments
Investment management fees

Galn on investments

Revaluation of investment property
Interest received

Increase in stocks
(Increase)/decrease in debtors
Increase in creditors

Net cash {consumed) / provided by operations

CF 2 ANALYSIS OF CHANGES iN NET FUNDS

Cash at bank and in hand

Total cash and cash equivafents
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311224 31.12.23
£ £
263,376 44,923
417,325 390,809
(185,928) {188,735)
39,251 37,462
(513,547) {348,383)
- (65,764)
(1,439) :
{300) {5,441}
{780,490) 541,759
34,150 139,109
(727,602) 545,239
At01.01.24 Cash Flow At31.12.24
£ £
£
1,663,988 (663,416 1,000,572
1,563,928 (663.416] 1000572
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Chatity information
Hope House Children’s Hospices 1s a registered charity and private company limited by guarantee incorporated in
England and Wales. The registered office is Nant Lane, Morda, Oswestry SY109BX.

The group consists of Hope House Children's Hospices and all of its subsldiaries.

The charitable company’s financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Charities SORP {FRS 102)
issted 1 January 2015 {update bulletin 2, effective 1 January 2019},

Accounting convention

The flnanclal statements have been prepared In accordance with the charity’s governing document, the Companies
Act 2006 and “Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing thelr accounts ln accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard appiicable in the UK and Republic of
Irefand (FRS 102)” (as amended for accounting periods commencing from 1 January 2018). The charitable company s a
public Benefit Entity as defined by FRS 102, The financlal statements are prepared n sterling, which Is the functional
currency of the charity. Monetary amounts In these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to Include the revaluation
of certaln financial instruments at fair value, The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

The charitable company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102, being a member of a group where the
parent of that group prepares publicly avallzble consolidated financial statements, Including this company, which
are Intended to give a true and falr view of the assets, liabllities, financial position and profit or loss of the group.
The charity has therefore taken advantage of exemptions from the following disclosure requirements for parent
company information presented within the consolidated financial statements:

* Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows': Presentation of a statement of cash flow and related notes and
disclosures;

* Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instrument tssues’: Carrylng amounts,
interest Income/expense and net galns/losses for each category of financial Instrument; basls of determining fair
values; detalls of collateral, loan defaults or breaches, detalls of hedges, hedglag falr value changes recognised in
profit or loss and in other comprehensive income;

* Saction 33 ‘Related Party Disclosures’: Compensation for key management personnel,

Basks of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements Incorporate those of Hope House Children's Hosplces and all of its
subsidiaries (Le. entities that the group controls through its power to govern the financiat and operating policles so
as to obtain economic benefits) an a line-by-line basis. All financial statements are made up to 31 December 2024,

All Intra-group transactions, balances and unvealised galns on transactlons between group companies are
eliminated on consolidation, Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
Impalrment of the asset transferred.

Preparation of the accounts on a golng concern basks
The trustees have considerad the future trading of the charitable company and the group and have prepared cash flow
forecasts for a period of 12 months from the date of these financiat statements.

At the time of approving the financial statements, the trustees have a reasonable expectation that the
charitable corpany and group have adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable

future. Thus the trustees continue to adopt the golng concern basis of accounting In preparing the financial
statements.
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Incoming resources

Income |5 recognised when the charity has entitlement to the funds, any performance conditions attached to the
ltems of Income have been met, it is probable that the income wili be received and the amount can be measured
reflably.

For legacies, entitlernent is taken as the earller of the date on which either: the charity Is aware that probate has been
granted, the estate has been finalised and notification has been made by the executor(s} to the charity that a
distribution will be made, or when a distribution Is recelved from the estate. Recelpt of a legacy, in whole or in part, is
only considered probable when the amount can be measured retlably and the charity has been notified of the
executor’s Intention to make a distribution.

Where legacies have been notified to charitles or the charity is aware of the granting of probate, and the criteria for
intome recognltion have not been met, then the legacy Is treated as a contingent asset and disclosed if material.

Income from charitable activities Is grant income received from statutory bodies, this is recognised when the charity
has entitiement to the funds, any performance conditions have been met and the amount can be rellably measured.

Conated services and facilities

Donated professional services and donated facilities are recognlsed as income when the charity has control over
the item, any conditions assoclated with the donated item have been met, the receipt of economic benefit from
the use by the charity of the item is probable and the economic benefit can be measured reliably.

in accordance with the Charities SORP {FRS102}, the general volunteer time is not recognised, refer to the trustees’
annual report for more information about their contribution.

On receipt, donated professional services and donated facliities are recognised on the basis of the value of the gift
to the charity which Is the amount the charity would have been willing to pay to obtain services or facilities of
equivalent economic benefit on the open market; a corresponding amount is then recognised in expenditure In the
period of receipt.

Interest recatvable
Interest on funds held on deposit Is included when recetvable and the amount can be measured reliably by the
charity; this is normally on notification of the interest pald or payable by the bank.

income tax recoverable in relation to donations received under Gift Ald or deeds of covenant is recognised at the time
of the donatlon. Income tax recoverable in relation to investment income is recognised at the time the investment
income is receivable.

Fund accounting
General funds are unrestricted funds which are available for use at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance of the
general objectives of the charity and which have not been designated for other purposes.

Designated funds are unrestricted funds of the charity that have been set aside by the trustees for specific purposes. The
aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the notes to the financlal statements.

Restricted funds are funds which are used In accerdance with specific restrictions imposed by donors or which have
been raised by the charity for particular purposes. The costs of raising and administering such funds are charged
against the specific fund. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out In the notes to the financial statements.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund when specified by the donor or when
funds are raised for particular restricted purposes.

Expenditure

Expenditure Is recognised once there Is a legal or constructive obligation to make a payment to a third party, itis
probable that settlement wil be required and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure Is
classified under the following activity headings:

* Costs of ralsdng funds comprises fundraising costs Incurred In seeking donations, grants and legacles, costs of
fundratsing activities including the costs of commercial trading, shop trading and the lottery and their associated
support costs.
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s Expenditure on charitable activitles includes the cost of providing care and associated support,

1.9 Allocation of support costs
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Support costs are those functlons that assist the work of the charity but do not directly undertake charitable
activities. Support costs include head office costs, finance, personnel, payroll and governance costs and also
Include project management carried out centrally. Governance costs are those incusred In connection with
administration of the charity and compliance with constitutional and statutory requirements.

QOperating leases
The charity classifies the lease of shop premises and vehicles as operating leases. Rentals under operating leases
are charged on a straight fine basis over the term of the lease.

Tangible fixed assets
Individual fixed assets costing £1,000 or more were capitalised at cost in the year Including any incidental expenses of
acquisition,

Depreclation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets Jess their residual values over their useful
lives on the following bases:

freehold buildings - 40 years straight line
Freehold fand - not provided

Plant and machinery - 4 — 10 years straight line
Motor vehicles - 5 — 10 years straight line

The gain or lass arising an the disposal of an asset Is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset, and Is recognised in net income/{expenditure} for the year.

Investment Property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capltal appreciation, is inttially recognlsed at cost,
which Inciudes the purchase cost and any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequently itis measured at failr value at the
reporting end date. Changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss and transferred to a non-distributable profit reserve,

Fixed asset investments

tixed asset investments are Initially measured at transaction price excluding transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at fair value at each reporting date. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Changes in fair value are
recognised in the statement of financial activities throughout the year.

Investments in subsidiaries are valued at cost tess proviston for impalrment.

Stocks
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for obsolete and slow
moving stocks, Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate proporiton of fixed and variable overheads.

Debtors
Debtors are recognised at the settlement amount due after any trade discounts offered. Prepayments are valued at the
amount prepald net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and cash in hand includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the account.

Creditors and provisions

Creditors and provisions are recognised where the charity has a present obligation resulting fram a past event that will
probably result in the transfer of funds to a third party and the amount due to settle the cbligation can be measured or
estimated refiably. Creditors and provisions are normally recognised at thelr settfement amount after allowling for any trade
discounts due.
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Pensions
The group and charity operates a defined contribution pensicn scheme and the pension charge represents the
amounts payable by the group and charity to the fund in respect of the year,

Financal Instruments
The charitable company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financlal Instruments’ and Section 12
‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to ali of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised In the charitable company’s balance sheet when the charitable company becomes party
ta the contractual provisions of the Instrument. Financlal assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in
the financial statements, when there s a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an Intention
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the llability simultaneousty,

Basic financial ossets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at transaction price Including
transaction costs and are subseguently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method unless the arrangement

canstitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction Is measured at the present value of the future recelpts discounted

at a market rate of interest. Financial assets classified as receivable within one year are not amortised.

Basic finoncial liabilitles

Basic financlal Habllities, including creditors and bank loans are initially recognised at tramsaction price unless the
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument Is measured at the present value of the future
paymenis discounted at a market rate of interest. Financlal liabilities classified as payable within one year are not amortised.
Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Trade creditors are
obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of operations from suppliers.
Amounts payable are classified as current liabllities if payment |s due within one year or fess, If not, they are presented as
noncurrent liabilities. Trade creditors are recogrised Initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of finoncial liobilitles
Financial llabilities are derecognised when the charitable company’s contractual obligations expire or are discharged or
cancelled,

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the charity’s accounting policles, the trustees are required to make Judgement, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and assoclated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underiylng assumptions are reviewed on an
ongeing basis, Revisions {0 accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate Is revised where the
reviston affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future perlods where the revision affects both current
and future perlods.

Determining residual values and useful economic lives of tangible fixed assets
The group depreciates tangible assets over their estimated useful lives based on historic performance. The actual lives can
vary.

Recognition of legacy Income

The group recognises receipt of a legacy when the recelpt is probable, the amount can be measured reliably and the charity
has been notified of the executor's Intention to make a distribution. This can often be several months before the actual
receipt which can vary.

LEGAL STATUS
The charity Is 3 company limited by guarantee, The members of the company are the trustees named on page 1. In the event
of the charity belng would up, the Hability in respect of the guarantee Is limited to £1 per member of the charity.
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3 INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND LEGACIES

2024 2024 2004 2023
Unrestricted Restricted Total funds Total funds
funds funds

£ £ £ £
Other income 59,398 - 59,398 48,828
Donations 2,666,136 490,797 3,156,933 3,071,246
Gift ald 325,478 - 325,478 304,518
Legacies 2,566,771 - 2,566,771 1,734,002

5,617,783 490,797 6,108,580 5,158,594

incoming resources from non-exchange transactions

Donated goods and facifities for which there was no income recorded were recelved to a value of £42,262 (2023: £80,582).
No conditlons were attached to these donations.

in addition to pald staff, the charity was supported by 614 (2023: 614) active volunteers during the year. As a result, in 2024 volunteers
provided 70,164 hours {2023: 84,039 hours) of volunteering worth equivalent of £909,692 (2023: £1,022,393) In salary costs.

4§ INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES
31.12.24 31.12.23
Activity 13 £
Grants Charitable activities 1,803,944 1,648,919

Grants received, included in the above, are as follows:
31.12.24 31.12.23

£ E
English CCG grants 320,181 318,247
NHS England grant 381,353 307,249
Waelsh LHB grants 592,543 214,956
Other 1,209 -
NHS/WHA - Pensians 82,034 80,256
NHS Wales - Hospice funding 426,624 426,624
Southampton Hospital - 301,596

1,803,944 1,648,919

5 INCOME FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES

2024 2024 2024 2023
Unrestricted Restricted Total funds Total funds
funds funds

£ £ £ £
Hope House (Trading} Limited 110,654 - 110,654 85,114
Hope House (Lottery) Limited 2,069,677 - 2,069,677 2,010,753
Hope House Children's Hospices 3,130,363 - 3,130,363 3,172,727

5,310,693 - 5,310,693 5,268,594

The 2024 total income from trading activities was unrestricted. The trade of Hope House (Trading) Limited is derlved from the
purchase and sale of merchandise (new goods). Hope House {Lottery) Limited operates the lottery scheme and raffle. Trading
activities in Hope House Children’s Hosplces represents the sale of donated goods in the charity shops.
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6 INCOME FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVETIES

2024 2024 2024 2023
Unrestricted  Restricted  Totalfunds  Total funds

funds funds
£ £ £ £
Hope House {Lottery} Limited 2 - 2 2
Hope House Children's Hospices 187,365 - 187,365 188,733
187,367 - 187,367 188,735

investrnent income has arisen on the dividends and Interest earned on the charity's Histed investment portfolio. All investment income in
2024 was unrestricted,

7 EXPENDITURE ON RAISING FUNDS WITHIN THE CHARITY
31,12.24 31.12.23

£ £
Staff costs 1,223,020 1,094,502
Insurance 7,054 5,929
Telephone 25,281 14,491
Postage and stationery 29,968 44,529
Promotional expenses 73,297 75,464
Designing and branding 43,844 36,861
Event expenses 123,158 117,183
Travelling expenses 23,588 21,409
Tralning and conferences 7,711 351
General expenses 19,466 11,643
Payment processing fees 25,536 43,899
Investment management cosis 38,251 37,456
Commission paid - 1,042
Innovation fund - 2,726
Premises costs 7,976 -

1,649,157 1,507,485

Attributable to:
Unrestricted funds

1,649,157 1,507,485
Restricted funds

1,649,157 1,507,485

2024 1024 2024 2023
8 EXPENDITURE ON TRADING ACTIVITIES Unrestricted Restricted  Totaifunds  Total funds

funds funds
£ £ £ £
Hope House {Trading) Limited 70,044 - 70,044 56,120
Hope House {Lottery} Limited 651,829 - 651,829 727,055
Hope House Children's Hospices 2,551,314 - 2,551,314 2,171,218
3,273,187 - 3,273,187 2,954,393
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9 EXPENDITURE ON CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Charitable Activities

Wages

Rates and water
Insurance

Light and heat
Telephone

Postage and stationery
Repairs and maintenance
Housekeeping

Food and catering

Motor expenses

Vehicle lease charges
Travelling expenses
Training and conferences
General expenses
Nursing consumables
Medical cover

Care database & software subs
Agency

Rent

Innovation fund
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Support Costs

Printing, postage, stationery and [T
Telephone

Rates and water

Light & heat

Repairs and maintenance
General expenses
Travelling expenses
Training and conferences
Wages and salaries
Agency & recruitment
Apprentice levy

Staff benefit scheme
Bank charges

Insurance

Rent and service charges
Irrecoverable VAT
Innovation fund
Software and licensing

Governance costs

Audit fees - audit services
Finance and legal fees
Trustee expenses

Total charitable expenditure
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31,1224 311223
£ £

5,660,620 5,253,787
12,277 9,357
38,558 34,652
60,527 88,908
54,457 39,829
38,590 52,505
92,482 162,867
101,348 92,626
90,339 94,443
24,509 21,529
7,806 7,755
42,756 31,296
44,818 33,776
79,616 138,908
33,851 33,238
124,832 73,846
86,305 100,077
2,434 3,264
25,000 28,760
5,788 2,481
353,387 342,376
6,080,400 6,646,280
36,476 34,563
22,410 23,565
2,982 1,768
2,100 1,171
16,807 3,660
19,242 124,714
18,328 20,993
25,527 42,736
1,300,774 1,026,464
13,449 21,534
40,178 32,366
50,122 25,832
16,927 17,205
10,321 8,650
17,059 19,062
14,120 5,665
1,874 .
84,336 81,433
1,683,032 1,491,381
18,000 6,000
44,099 24,408
2,880 4,619
64,979 35,027
8,738,411 8,172,687
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10 NET INCOME

This is stated after charging:-

Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets 417,325 380,809
Auditors remuneration - audit of group 15,000 5,000
Auditors remuneration - non-audit services 3,000 2,500

435,325 398,309

11 TRUSTEE'S REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

During the year, no trustees received any remuneration {2023: £Nil}. During the year, no trustees received any benefits in kind
{2023: £Nil}. No trustees were reimbursed expenses {2023: £Nil). Expenses totalling £2,159 (2023: £1,406) for trave| were waived
by trustees during the year. The charity Incurred costs of £2,880 (2023 £4,619} in relation Lo the trustees that are compulsory for
them to conduct their roles. These expenses include indemnity insurance and governance training,

12 STAFF BENEFITS
Group Charity
31.12.24 31.12,23 31.12.24 31.12.23
£ £ £ £
Wages and salaries 8,422,871 7,563,828 8,387,935 7,525,500
Social security costs 750,984 658,901 748,988 656,687
Other pension costs 620,783 559,402 618,853 557,231
9,794,638 8,782,131 9,755,776 8,739,418
The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows:
Group Charity
31.12.24 31.12.23 31.12.24 31.12.23

Hospice services 151 i61 151 161

Fundraising & publicity 31 28 31 28

Support 35 27 35 27

Retail & lottery il 69 69 66

288 285 286 282

The number of employees whose employee benefits {excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

31.12.24 31.12.23 31.12.24 31.12.23
£60,001 - £70,000 1 . 1 -
£70,001 - £80,000 2 2 2 2
£80,001 - £90,000 1 - 1
£90,001 - £100,000 - 1 - i
Over £100,000 1 1 1 1

5 4 5 4

The key management personne! of the group, comprise the Trustees', the Chief Executive Officer, Birector of Income Generation and
Communications, Director of Care, Director of Finance, People and Resources plus the Directors of the wholly owned subsidiaries, The total
employee benefits of the key management personnel were £467,893 {2023: £462,412).
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13 2023 COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds fund funds
£ £ £

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM

Donations and legacies 4,708,362 450,232 5,158,594
Charitable activitles -

Charitable activities 1,648,919 1,648,919

Other trading activities 5,268,594 ) 5,268,594

Investment income 188,735 - 188,735
TOTAL INCOME 10,165,691 2,099,151 12,264,842
EXPENDITURE ON

Raising funds 1,507,485 - 1,507,485

Trading activities 2,954,393 - 2,954,393
Charitable activities

Charitable activities 6,245,135 1,927,553 8,172,688
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 10,707,013 1,927,553 12,634,566

Net gains on investments 414,647 ) 414,647
NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE} {1,631,440) 1,676,363 44,923

Transfers between funds 1,631,582 {1,631,582)

Net movement in funds 142 44,781 44,923
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS

Total funds brought forward 15,461,979 184,962 15,646,941

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD 15,462,121 229,743 15,691,864
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14  TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Freehotd Plant and Motor
property machinery vehleles Totals
£ £ £ £

CosT
At 1 January 2024 6,925,189 2,233,066 176,348 9,334,603
Additions 565,362 501,897 - 1,067,259
At 31 Pecember 2024 7,490,551 2,734,963 176,348 10,401,862
DEPRECIATION
At 1 fanuary 2024 3,145,877 1,254,005 123,495 4,523,377
Charge for year 157,927 246,079 13,319 417,325
At 31 December 2024 3,303,804 1,500,084 136,814 4,940,702
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2024 4,186,747 1,234,879 39,534 5,461,160
At 31 December 2023 3,779,312 979,061 52,853 4,811,226

Freehold property comprises the following: Hope House Hospice building and land, Ty Gobaith building and fand,
Administration Bungalow and the Bangor Shop. The freehold land is held at a cost of £608,106 (2023: £608,106), which
is not depreciated.

During the year, the charity purchased tangible fixed assets totalling £407,185 {2023: £126,817} funded by restricted
donation and grants. As the performance conditions on these assets purchases have been met, the funding has been
transferred to the general fund.

At 31 December 2024 the charity had received £82,000 (2023: £45,600) in restricted funding for the acquisition of
tangible fixed assets which had not been completed at the year end. This Income has been carried forward in the
restricted fund.

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY
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Total
FAIR VALUE £
At 1 January 2024
and 31 December 2024 409,999
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2024 409,999
At 31 December 2023 409,999

The investment properties held by the charity are the buy to let property of, 81 Borfa Green, Welshpool and 2 Parciau
Bach, Criccieth, a property previously bequeathed to the group and the charity.

The properties have been revalued to reflect their fair values in the accounts. The Welshpool property’s fair value is
based on the market value price per a marketing report carried out by Morris Marshalt Poole, independent valuers, who

are not connected to the charity, on 4 April 2024,

The market value of the Criccleth property was arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out by TP & Co Surveying,
independent valuers, who are not connected to the charity, on 5 April 2024,

The trustees consider these valuations to be appropriate as at 31 Pecember 2024, The historic cost of the properties is
£344,235, See movement in funds note for the Impact on the group’s and charity’s reserves,
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Hope House (Trading) Limited
Hope House (Lottery) Limited

02691088 100
05066936 100

Ordinary £1 2
2

Ordinary £1
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Cashand
16 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS Listed settlements
Investments pending Totals
£ £ £

MARKET VALUE

Atl January 2024 7,577,047 142,269 7,719,316
Additicrns 1,013,432 ~ 1,013,432
Disposals {1,991,380) . {1,991,380)
Portfolio movement 513,547 - 513,547
Movement on cash account - 15,379) (5,379)
At 31 December 2024 7,112,646 136,880 7,249,536
NET BOOK VALUE

At 31 December 2024 7,112,646 136,890 7,249,536
At 31 December 2023 7,577,047 142,269 7,719,316
The net book value of investment assets held outside of the UK was £3,673,425 (2023: £3,687,911).

Cash and
Listed settlements  Shares
investments  pending  insubsidiaries Totals
£ £ £ £

MARKET

VALUE

At 1 January 2024 7,577,047 142,269 4 7,719,320

Additions 1,013,432 - - 1,013,432

Disposals {1,991,380}) - (1,991,380)

Revaluations 513,547 - = 513,547
‘Movement on cash account (5,379) (5,379}

At 31 December 2024 7,112,646 136,890 4 7,249,540

NET BOOK VALUE I e,

At 31 December 2024 7,112,646 136,890 4 7,249,540

At 31 December 2023 7,577,047 142,269 4 7,719,320

Charity investrment in subsidiaries comprise:

Subsidiary Conipany Percentage

No. Shareholding  Class of shares Noof shares  Total value
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16 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The wholly owned trading subsidiaries, Hope House (Trading) Limited and Hope House {Lottery) Limited are incorporated in
the United Kingdom. They both have the registered office of Nant Lane, Morda, Oswestry, Shropshire, SY10 9BX. Hope
House {Trading) Limited and Hope House (Lottery) Limited distribute al of their profits to the Charity under Deed of

Covenant.

The assets and liabilitles of the subsidiaries were;

Current assels
Current Habilities
Aggregate share capital and reserves

Net income from trading activities

17 STOCKS

Hope House (Trading) Hope House {Lottery) Limited

Goods for resale

18 DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Amounts owed by group undertakings
VAT

Prepayments and accrued income

19 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade creditors

Social security and other taxes
Other creditors

Amounts owed to group

Accruals and deferred income

Va0 |46

Limited
2024 2023 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
20,330 2,373 154,547 312,704
{18,761} (804) {149,680) .. (307,837}
1,569 4,867 4,867
46,143 33,249 1,417,850 1,283,700
Group Charity
2024 2023 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
19,814 19,514 - 18,274

Group Charity
31,1224 31.12.23 31.12.24 31.12.23
£ £ £ £

57,414 - 57,414 -
2,220,339 1,662,151 2,220,339 1,662,151
N . - 144,651
161,223 - 161,223 -
208,341 204,676 208,341 204,676
:JE i:l!!: iIEEEFBZ: 2,5':‘31: Z)UIIII:E
Group Charity
31.12.24 31,12.23 31.12.24 31.12.23
387,110 186,895 364,116 170,366
173,335 169,046 173,335 169,046
101,766 88,088 101,766 88,088
- - 11,474 .
160,945 354,977 44,259 207,515
833,156 799,006 694,950 635,015
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19 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR (CONTINUED)

tncluded within accruals and deferred income is deferred income totalling £13,797 (2023: £101,156} in the charity. Deferred
lncome in Hope House Childrens Hosplces Is recognised in respect of grants where the performance agreement runs across
multiple periods. The deferred income recognlsed in 2023 has been subsequently recognised as income In 2024 and 2024
income will be recognised in 2025,

Included in deferred Income is £97,708 (2023: £127,705} In relation to Hope House {Lottery) Limited, the deferred income

relates to the collection of funds for future lottery draws. The income Is recognised once a draw period is closed with
future draw income to be recognlsed as draws take place in the future.

20 STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Net
movement At
At1.1.24 in funds 31.12.24
Group £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
Generat funds - all funds 8,220,357 145,688 8,366,045
Business continuity 4,176,000 27,000 4,203,000
Hosplce modernlsation 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Retail growth 500,000 {200,000} 300,000
Purpose Afignment 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Revaluation reserve 65,764 - 65,764
15,462,121 (27,312} 15,434,810
Restricted funds
Restricted funds - alf funds 229,743 290,688 520,431
TOTAL FUNDS 15,691,864 263,376 15,955,242
Net movement In funds, included in the above are as follows:
Incoming Resources Galns and Movement
resources expended losses in funds
£ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General funds - all funds 11,125,300 {11,665,159) 513,547 (27,312)
Restricted funds
Restricted funds - all funds 2,285,284 {1,994,596) - 290,688
TOTAL FUNDS 13,410,584 (13,660,755} 513,547 263,376

B
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20 STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Net
movement At
At 11,24 in funds 31.12.24
Charity £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General funds - all funds 8,213,925 145,688 8,359,615
Business continuity 4,176,000 27,000 4,203,000
Hospice modernisation 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Retail growth 500,000 {200,000} 300,000
Purpose Alignment 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Revaluation reserve 65,764 - 65,764
15,455,689 {27,312) 15,428,379
Restricted funds
Restricted funds - all funds 229,743 290,688 520,431
TOTALFUNDS 15,685,432 263,376 15,848,810
Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:
Incoming Resources Gains and Movement
resgLrces expended losses In funds
£ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General funds - all funds 10,408,961 (10,949,819) 513,547 {27,312}
Restricted funds
Restricted funds - all funds 2,285,284 {1,994,556) - 290,688
TOTAL FUNDS 12,694,245 (12,944,415} 513,547 263,376
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20 STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED}

DESIGNATED FUNDS

Workforce Management Fund

The trustees are consclous that the charity must operate with an appropriately skilled workforce and are very aware of
thelr responsibilities to its employees. Funds are therefore held and designated in a Workforce Management Fund to
accommodate the cost of ensuring sufficient skifled capacity across the organisation.

Changes in service delivery may result In some staff not having the necessary skills to work effectively. If unable to retraln
and gain skills at the required level of competence, then this fund allows the organisation to discharge its obligation to
those staff not able to maintain high standards of delivery due to circumstances beyond their control.

Payment from this fund can only be considered in cases where the benefit to both the employee and the organlsation can
be demonstrated.

Service Development Fund

Fundraising

There is compelling evidence to support the case for Investment In fundraising. Returns are significantly better than bank
investments for slightly higher risk and we can flex investment in fundraising, Increasing it when the returns look good and
decreasing when not.

To achieve the desired levels of growth, it is proposed that the investment In fundraising Is increased to 24% of total
voluntary income by 2024. Funds are designated to support this investment if required.

Care
As the needs and complexity of the children cared for by the organlsation evolves, services must evolve with them. To
ensure that this development Is possible, funds have been designated should they be required.

Business Continuity Fund

To monoge income shortfalls
Analysis has tdentified and assessed the risk to the Income received by the charity from various sources. Reserves are held to ensure
service continuity If this Income falis shart of the forecast, aflowing time to either restore this income or reduce costs accordingly.

To adjust costs
A reserve has been deslgnated for costs associated with restructuring the charity to reduce costs in the event of Ihcome
not meeting forecast. This fund would be used primarily to meet the cost of reducing the workforce.

Catostrophic event

Through a risk maragement process, we seek to ratlonalise, quantify and avoid catastrophic events occurring

and insure against those risks that cannot be removed. However, there Is always the potential of an event oceurring.
Clearly it ks impossible to quantify a catastrophlc event, but it Is prudent to designate a reserve fund to mitigate the Impact
or ta aid recovery should such an event occur. Therefore, designated funds are held for catastrophic events.

Hosplce modernization

A reserve has been designated for Hospice improvements and modernisations, this Is in recognition of the age of the
hosplce buildings and the need to invest in capital projects to ensure that we are providing the *hospice of the future’
environment. There Is an internal plan and expectation that we will be able o gain additional funds for this work through
Grants and Trusts.
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Hope House Children's Hosplces (A company limited by guarantee)

20 STATEMENT OF FUNDS [CONTINUED}

Retail growth

There Is a need in the coming years to invest in the retall shops of the hospice, this s for refurbishment, health and safety
improvements, expanston and business development Initiatives to Increase the contribution to the main charity from the
retall sector. £ach shop will be reviewed on an individual basls and will have It's own business case for using the reserves,

Purpose Aligninent

As the Charity works through thelr new purpose alignment, this fund has been designated to ensure that we can
continue the development of care services, the Increase of the Hosplces reach and sustainable charitable income
growth. This will ensure that the new purpose Is In place through all areas of the charity.
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Hope House Children's Hospices {A company kmited by guarantee}
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ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

f45

Group - 2024

Tangible fixed assets
Investment property

Fixed Asset Investments
Current Assets

Creditors due within one year

Group - 2023

Tangible fixed assets
Investment property

Fixed Asset [nvestments
Current Assets

Creditors due within one year

Charity - 2024

Tangible fixed assets
Investment property

Fixed Asset Investments
Current Assets

Creditors due within one year

Charity - 2023

Tangible fixed assets
Investment property

Fixed Asset fnvestments
Current Assets

Creditors due within one year

Unrestricted
funds Restricted funds Total funds
2024 2024 2024
5,053,975 407,185 5,461,160
409,999 - 409,999
7,249,536 - 7,249,536
3,554,457 113,246 3,667,703
{833,156} - (833,156}
15,434,811 520,431 15,955,242
Unrestricted
funds  Restricted funds Total funds
2023 2023 2023
4,765,626 45,600 4,811,226
409,999 409,995
7,719,316 7,719,316
3,366,186 184,143 3,550,329
{799,006) . {799,006)
15,462,121 229,743 15,691,864
Unrestricted
funds Restricted funds Total funds
2024 2024 2024
5,053,975 407,185 5,461,160
409,999 - 409,999
7,249,540 - 7,249,540
3,408,815 113,246 3,523,061
(694,550) - (694,850}
15,428,379 520,431 15,948,810
Unrestricted
funds Restricted funds Total funds
2023 2023 2023
4,765,626 45,600 4,811,226
409,999 409,999
7,119,320 7,719,320
3,195,760 184,143 3,379,903
{635,016} - {635,016)
15,455,689 228,743 15,685,432
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Hope House Children's Hospices (A company fimited by guarantee)

22 EMPLOYEE BENEFIY OBLIGATIONS

The charity makes contributions to certain pension schemes for its employees. The assets of these schemes are held separately from those
of the charity in independently administered funds, The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the charity to the fund
amounted to £625,244 {2023: £557,231),

23 LEASING AGREEMENTS

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

31.12.24 31.12.23
£ £
Within one year 289,655 387,097
Between one and five years 1,077,357 832,378
tn more than five years 396,233 341,583
1,763,245 1,561,058

During the year operating lease charges were recognised as rent expenses in the following; the cost of operating charity shops £424,454
{2023: £348,406); hospice activities undertaken directly £25,000 {2023: 28,760}; and support costs £17,059 {2023: 19,062).

During the year operating lease charges were recognised as vehicle lease expenses in the following; cost of operating charity shops
£18,723 (2023; £13,352) and hospice activities undertaken directly £7,806 {2023: £7,755).

24 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2024 the group and charity had committed to £Nil {2023: £217,388} in ongoing capital projects in addition to restricted
assets committed to.

25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, group staff made donations to the charity and played the lottery run by Hope House {Lottery} Limited. Transactions
were conducted under normal commercial terms, A policy exists to prohibit the directors of Hope House {Lottery) Limited, trustees of
Hope House Children’s Hospices, and senior managers and employees directly involved in the running of the lottery, from taking part in
the lottery.

Trustees and their related companies made donations to the charity totalling £98,393 {2023: £165,773). Hope House (Trading) Limited
and Hope House {Lottery) Limited are 100% owned subsidiaries of Hope House Children’s Hospices. All the profits of the subsidiaries for
the period have been distributed by Gift Aid to the charity. The profits for the year totalled £46,143 (2023; £33,249) for Hope House
(Trading) Limited and £1,417,850 {2023:£1,283,700} for Hope House {Lottery} Lmited. Hope House (Trading) Limited charged £5,533
(2023: £4,255} to Hope House Children’s Hospices for operating the Gift Aid scheme on the sale of new goods.

At 31st December 2023 the charity was owed £18,761 {2023: £804) by Hope House {Trading) Limited and owed £30,235 {2023: was owed
£143,847) by Hope House (Lottery) Limited,

26 ULYIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
The charity is controlled by the trustees,
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CHARITABLE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE AND NOT HAVING & SHARE CAPITAL
- Articles of Assoiiation of Hope House Children’s Hospileas.

The company’s namé'is Hope House Childrén's Hosplces J:arn:l in this document, s called
the 'charity),

.‘i-} lfﬂerpfr&!:a’tian
in the afticlkes:

addruss rreana & pastal addmss c-r fnr the purpnses m‘ e;er.trml’c r.mru-nunh::aimn a: fau
nimbier. an e-mail or. postal address or a talephere number for receiing text messages in
+ each case registerathwith the: charity:

' 'lhe =arln'~cles‘ n-ueans'tha"::h'amgr‘g -au:ltlnes. af astdciation,

Che n’haéih-? m&anﬁ Hipe Housé Childien’s Hospite s, the coifmpdny inténded fo be regulated
by the anicles:

‘clear days’ En relation to- lhe p&rmd of: a rsntme MEearnts a: pannd éIGEUI:IE'lg
= the day when the nolice Js ghan or deemed ta be given. and
s e day forwhich it is grienor of which i is) 1o lake efféct;

“ihe Commissien’ means the EI‘IE&H’F_.E ﬂc&nin’*ni'séidﬁ"ﬁf Eriglainﬂ"'ahd Wales,

................

. m.: sacton 177 of the {:hamﬁ&sﬁ.ﬂt 1-5]11

‘degument ineludes; unless otherwise specified :any document sent or supplied in electronic

W

..... fAndEhYr.
EOLPARIES HoLES

'elactranic form” has the meaning given in section 1168 of the Compa

+'ihe memerandum’ means the chanity's memorandum of éﬁs’:&i&ﬁi‘ﬁ:é
'officers” includes the directors and the secretary (if any);
“the seal’ means the common seal uft'w charity i it has-one!
“'mecrelary’ means any person appolmed to perform the duties of the secretary of the:charlty;
: 't.he-.t-J.n-Ited ﬁhg&nrﬁ"maeam;:Gﬁ&éi:Ertﬁ.lrraﬁﬁ'ﬁ&rﬂwmlfaﬁan&an&

-and uria:a versa,

‘Unfess the conlext ﬂthﬂmise re-q.i.rlras w:mis or: Expreasmns ctlnialned in thE articles: have
‘the Sante méaning 85 in the Companies Acls but excluding any $tatissry modifisation nat in
Horce Whaj'l this constitution becomes I:ilndlng an the charity.

Apart from the exception mentioned in. the previous paragraph a reference 0. an-Act.of

th;m_umsmm-m "-'E.I"I? ! Hwi-l'.- HULL-.:EENH:EFEEHEIE;E:.H .ﬂ.pp:uwma"l'a"!?'
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-Parament includes dny giatusty misdfication-ar resnactnient of Uior ke time belng n
farca, '

-2y Liahillty of Members

'Every Member of iNg Azsaciation underakes to coninbite 1o the assats of the Assodation
iy the euant of the saime befng wWound up whils hieis a Member or within one year afier he
- caases o be g Member for payment of the depls and lbifties of the Associabon contracted
“before heicpased 1o bea; Member and of thercosts charges and expenses of winding up and
“for.the adjustmient of the rights of the soninbutories among thémselves suth drmolint as Mmay
be required not exdeeding Oma Paand:

3)Objects
Thecharity's objects {'Objectd’ are as-setoutin the Memoraddum of Assoctation,
“The. chenity has pawer 1o do anyihing which is calculated. to further its Objéct(s). or.is

s canducive of incidental fo doing 5o, In particolar the chasity has power as'is set.out in the
Memorandum of Associabon.

- the Objacts.

(@) A direrlor is entitied to be reimbursed from the-property of the charity.or may pay out.of
“duich propery rédsorablaexpenses property Insurred by him or her when:acting on behatf
 af thie charty. :

{3) A dweclor may Benefit from frustea indemnity insuranco cover purchased al the charity's
expinse In accordance with, and sibiect ta the conditions In,:section 180 cf the-Charilies

: ﬁ_;r_:tzuﬂ.

. Y Adirgctar may réceive an indamnity from (his charmy in the circumsiances’ specified i
© articte 34, '

- {5) A ditector may not recelive any othier banalil or payment unless it i authorised by article

B

| [8) Subjeet 1o arficte 6; hone of the income or property: of the charity may be paid or
+ transferred directiy ar indirectty by way of dividend.borus. or otherwise by way of profit to

any. riértier of Gia ‘charity. This dags not prévent-a mermber whois not a0 a director
receiving.

{5)  DiAieht from the chisrity i the capdicity of abanefitlary af tha charity:

j{h}jmﬁsﬁn'a‘nig'_anﬁ proper refnuseration Tor anmygonds or servicas suppied to the
tharity,

............................................

S T —
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£1)'Gendral provisions

:Hu:d'rfiaf:lé:r'-'ni'- connected ééréﬁh:ﬁlﬁri
{3} buy any goods or-sarvices fiem the eharity on teims-preferential to those applicatile
1o memnbers of the public;

(B) el goiis [ Services, or any interesiin and o th eharky:

'[z"::lilie'-'&.-i'iplnyﬁ'" yad l:i«gé, or remnra' £eiV :éw'hﬁm&nh&mm ﬁdri:» tha charity;

unluss the pa'_-,-'menllﬁ m;mutted tgrsubﬁausamnfthls articla, or aumnﬁsed bz.r ih.e -eourt or
the pnm' written consent of the Chanty Commissionhas been nhfh ined.,

In this article, & financial benefit’ means a benefit, diractor indirect, - whu:;h :E cither rmaney or
hasd monetany valos!

{a) A dirgctorar connected person may recaive a banefit from the charity in the capacity
of & beneficiary of the charity provided that a majority of the directors do not benefil In
this way.

{b) ﬂ. diractor.or connected person rrlay anter inta a conlract for the supply of services,
or of gtiods {kalt Ste suppilisd in connecticn vwith the pravision of services, ko the eharity
where that is permitted in-accordance with, and subject to the mnmfmns in; seclions
185 and 185 of tha Chartes ASUZ031.

(€} Subject o sub-efause (3) of this article a director or cannected person rmay.provide
the charity with goods that are not supplied in cennection with services provided o e
charity by the direclor or connecled person.

{dY A direclaor. m‘mnn&cl&d pﬂ‘rsim m‘a‘;rr&q:.en.re- interest oh money ent to the cha nt;r ata
reasdriable and proper igte which mist b ndtimore than the Bank of Ergland barik rate
{alsoknown as the base rats).

{E} A ::El{&r:.'-tcrr mmnn&ctﬂd person may receive rent-for- pfﬂ-mm:&& lat by the: director or
connected person to the charity. The amount of the rent and the other t6mms of the
lease mist béveaddnabla aid proper, The directorconcerried mvsiywithdiaw fiorm sny
meeting al whith such a proposal or the mnt or other terms: of the ease are under
dIEI:HE:EFl}H

{f} A ﬂ&eci.w fir mnhm‘eﬁ peison may‘taha parl ’“n the nc&m‘ﬁa'tﬁ'an[ng ah-d hm;ifa:s.ng

activities of the: charity on the same ferms as members of the public,

| rtictes of Associplion VN7 Hope Hisise CRINEY Hospics REpicied BT
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“Payment for supply of gaods anly = controis

A3 Thie charhy’and its dire<tons may oty refy 'upun the atulhtﬁfiljr nr-e:-ﬂ:saa:r hjr sub«:wuw {2}
L 3 ﬂf"ﬂ'ﬂﬂ artickeif.each of the following Gmd:ﬂnnﬁ is satsed: |
 ta) The amount. or -maximum. amount. of the payment (o2 the goads s sel outin an,
agréemient i writing’ h&ﬁ#EEn the charity or s direchars (a5 the case may be) and tha
. dwector or. connected person supplying the goatds’ (the suppli) under which the
cgupplier is fo supply the goois in question 1o or an-behslfaf the charity.

: 1)) The am-unnmrmammmﬂ amut]nl n! Ihe pa],ﬂ'ﬁEﬂHﬂr lt:a guu-&s daasmterceed whal
s reasonable inthe créumstances fortha supphiofthe gonds in quastion,

(6) The other dirdelded ane: safishigd thatit 50 the Dast intardets nf AAhe: chaity o
mntutl.wﬁtl'r e supplher rather than with somacne whois not a direcior oF connecied
| pErson, in feaching. that. decision | the diteclors: mast batance the .ﬂﬂWﬂlﬂEE of

enntracting with-a- diracior of connectdd person against the d!ﬂﬂdmtagﬂs of daing o,

{d Tre supplier is Absant from the.pan of any miesfing et which thite is discudsion of
- he proposatio enterinto a coniract or arangemant with hirnor et or itwith tegard to
. ine supply of goods to the'chardy,

. [el The sappher doés not vole on anyisich mater and s njt 15 b counted When
- caleulating whether a guoturm of directors:is present.al the meeting,

1) The ieason fof theif docision fa Fecarded By e direciars i ih Windte Book.

(4} A maiarity of the direciors then in effice are not in receiplof remurizration orpayments -
authoraedby priicle B,

i ln%uhudam&r;'ii}.ﬂn& {Elrpﬂhks ;:ﬁ-:raf.
{2} "charty’ includes any comiparny in which the chiatity:

ﬂ]l hﬂ'hﬂS- more than S0% of the shares; of :
Ty eonirbis miote 1an 505 o7 thi gting fights’ atf&ciﬁrl ’H:r 1:l~ne shamr or
‘.ﬂ has the roht lo appoint-ane-or more directors to the board of the company.

’Intemfatalhmf

Tl ﬂrr:laruth:-n of ﬂirar.:tnrs‘ In-tmsu

) A d’re;:ﬂnr musl :Fe::Jare fhe nature and mﬂ'&m of anyinterest -direat or indirec!], which he
of she has in a propbsed Wansaction of rangsment with Tie'chay or ik any tansattion
or arangement emeied into by the charity which has not previolsty teen declared.. A
direchor st absant himsal or. ‘ninrset fiom dny discussions of e chanty dinectors Inwhich
it s possible that-a canliicl whi arise. betweean his or her. duly. lo act solcly in the interests of
e Charity and any personal interest (including but not Emited 1o any personal financial
htﬂmﬂ}.
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ﬂrgﬂnls.ﬂlmn or perser and the mn!’t‘a} is nat: ﬂuﬂwr}sed bgr virtue nf any. ather prmr.sdnn in

1he adicles, the uncanfiicted directars may authdriss stichi a confiict of interasts where: the
Toflowing conditions. apply:

{3} the ‘conficted d-w i ahsem ficn 1h=r.p.r&n.-:=.! the meeting at which thére g
‘discuasion of -any - arrangement or {ransaction: affecting that: elher organisation or

pefson;
{6).the conflicted direcior does not vote ion any such matter and is not fo be counted
'wl'-gn mnsi:hanng whelher a i:[unrum of ﬂa‘[‘.l‘:ln-l".;‘-’ I E-I’ﬂ-‘.:‘.ﬂn‘t at the rneetlng* and '

- éai mmm

; rr'FEfriI:lEI‘Shlp subwrm‘lmn s -ﬂalrg.r pain:l up to-date at the date of ﬂw ar-:h:apmn of lhase Articles
. are the members of the charity.

Z i‘,z"j Membership is open to otfier indwvididls who:

ta} apply-to. the charity in the form raquired by the directors: and

{b] are appmuad b}r the du'aelnrr._

......

13} T‘h& directﬂ;s st mrnrm lh& apphcant in writmg of the: reasons for the refusal
within tw&ntyr one days of the d:E!EHE-IL‘IFI-

(b} The diréctors must consider any wrilen representations the applicant may-make
aboul thie detision, The diréctars’ decision fofiowing any writtén representations most
be nofified 1o the applizant in witing but shall ba final,

 ¢4) Mernbership ks not transfarable

: {5} ‘.J'h&&rll'actnm'musi keep =a:f@gE§tern:f names and =a;;f-:dmsses of l'|'l~ﬂ' mnﬁr“o‘;

Chdkles of Assrelation VIOTT Hope:House Children's Hospices CAnproved 22T
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-|u1 Térmuﬂ&ﬁdh of mgrmbershin
(1) M&mb&mhrp is: !-emrirm:fed f
;{a} the meriber ﬁras

! .f} the l'I‘HE.:‘I‘ﬂ,'I-H resigns by wntten nnﬁt:t tn 'lhe l:hﬂrﬂ'f Unhesﬁ aiter tl".e a'ea-lign-aﬂun
{here would De lpss.than teo members,

{6 any sum die from the member (o the chisfty s nol paid’io full wilbin Six fmgnins of
it fating duer;

'(d) the member & removed from meémbership by a resolutian of the direclors that it s
in the bestiinterasts of the charity that fits-or Hér o fis_ ménibarship is lenvihated. A
“resoiution to-remove a member from: ‘membership may aply be passad i

Y the menber has been oiien at Jeast twenly-one. days' nolice in writing of the
" marelipg & thel direclors at'which thie resobulion will be propoged and the reasens
- winy itis to-be proposed;

Gy - the member or, at the option of the member) the members fepreseniaive (who
Cneet ) m‘f‘ﬁea mermber of thi chanty) has baen allowed: to make represontations
- to ke meeting.

:11:- General meehnga
:{1} An annual gana:al meeﬂng must be held in aach '.-.'EHF EI'HJ' Fgﬂt more than 1 'ﬁft&en menths:

.................................

) Notice -;:rf g.armréﬂ ménhng’s
: {1} The m‘i.nmum p&r[-uﬁs. -e:l mﬁﬁa tla'qull'lEI’d to 'hu’ld E genF.-ral m:e-altng nf lha ﬁuar'rt,- amg-

:a} Men!:p—unp: chear ﬂays for-an annm} qan&ra!rmlhg nr ‘a g&nﬁmal m&el!lng called
. for the passng | of & special rasnliuhun. .
by Founeen clear days for alf alher genaral meétmga
jﬁ.g&nﬂral,mentlng ma',' b&mﬂad bry shorer notice i s s-ﬂagieed b‘jﬂ rrm;unetym
" nuriber of members having 8 right'to atiend and vole ot the mieeting, Being 2 miajatity who
- togethar hold not fess then 30 percent of the total voting rghts:

- ¢3) The notice must speeify the date time-and pfazo of the meeting-and the general nature’
“of e Business o be Wansatied. 1 the fnseting 1690 be a0 annual general meeting, the

mofice must: say 0. Tha notisa. must siso -conlain & statament selling. aut. the rght of
Cindirnberns o appolnts pr-:.xy undarsedtion 324 of the Companies Act 2008 and article 15,

i {1} Tl'ie: n,ﬂ{:-l;'.e-. n‘]q.is‘l B gnrgﬂ toal 'Il'ﬁE. members and tcr*ﬂ'le ﬂfm:iuﬁ and-auditars;

; [5} The prmedmgs ata: meEtIrrg *.-;.r-aﬂ nuﬂﬁ hﬂlhdalﬂd ﬁﬂmu_sg _a p-q;g.un who was entitied

‘o receive notice of the mseting did not receive i becatise of an, amﬂ-&nialnnmﬁlm birthe
- charity.

. Affietas n‘?.ﬁsma{h;n AT Phpa Hiuu:ru mﬂfma Hnaap:-:aa - Bpproved 2T
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13) Ftﬁ'tééhdirﬁg_"‘.—‘r'}a'l'g'ehbfﬁi meetings

{4} A quomnsm is:
{a) Three membars present’ i person or I}y proxy and entitied fo vote um:rl the
‘businéss to be conducted al te meeting, of
(b} one tenth of the: tofal membership at the fime

whichiver i theigieater

(%) It
£a) & quorum 15 not présent within fiftsen  minutes from the hime appointed for the
‘meeting; or i
:[El:duﬁr]g# mﬂﬂﬁr_lg, & GUOTLT ceasésf;ia be present;

' lh?laC ifﬁa':la!iﬁg'sﬁlél:ie'a';ijnumﬁdtb suﬁﬁm&mﬂ ﬁ[a-:&'as'-cha'd-i'reﬂﬁm éh&ll:dﬁmﬁﬁé-

shail constitute the quorum forthat meetu‘ty.

_ (6} Gineral meetings shalibe chaired by the personwho hias been appointed lo chairmestings
- ofthedirectors. i

. (7} I there is;':{u's.' ieh ﬁér&dﬁ"ﬁr'ﬁé’q} she i nol present within fifleen minutes of 'h-,’m

; tﬂ‘.i Hno :i'imda:' ot is present and witling 1o &J'éairlﬁia'nizéaﬂﬁgi'i}iihun'fﬂw"" 2n minutes after the tima
- appointed far holding it, the msmbers present | i persen orby proxy and entitied 1o voke st
- ¢hoose one af their numberto n:-‘raa]rum m&d:mg

i {15} The members pms&nl in -person or by proxy at a rﬂEEﬁﬁg mﬂy mﬁﬂi'u'ﬂ h}r r.':rdrnary-
- resolution thatthe mesting shall be adjourned,

: n'bE-Etrng is 1o bereconvenad unless H‘rﬂ-’ﬂ&ﬂ-&iaih ares-peclf‘red in mesas-nﬁ.mnn

: {12} M:ﬁ hqsineaﬁ Ehah ke wrrtlur:ted ata rewrwened meeli'ng vnkess it muﬁ:: r:ﬁ'opeﬂ;i' it
- been c:nnniucfta-ﬁ at the meat:nu had tha adiuummnt not taken place.

{1311 a m&uahng is acjourned: by # resolution of the members-for mere than seven days al
“ledstseven Sleardays’ notidé shall be givén ofthe rééonvenid midting stating the' date, time
~armnd place afthe meetirg.

- Artictes of Assclation V2T Hopo House Childran's Hospices Approved 212117
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{111] .ﬁ.ng viole a[ o mam:ng shall ha: decﬂaed by a shnw nl‘ hands unrﬂss i:efme nt unr the
ﬁeclamﬂnn of the resit of, the show of hands a poll s demanded;

(@) by the.person chairing the' meeting; or

-(b) by at ieast three members present i pefaon of by proxy and having the nght o
‘voteal the meeting: or

E{-:.] by & n'l-arni:ar nr ITmH'ﬂJ-EI'E pmsunt In p-nrsnh f:ur hy proxy- rapmunhng nc:t 1555 Il'lnan

b mnduawe Unlessa pollis d:qrxanﬂaad

(HE) THe eyl al this witd iustbe feicorded in tha minutes of Ive charity. but the rumber or
pm’pnﬁim of vetes cast need not be recerded:

'mﬁ'tép-ersnn nr'htns ﬁiuﬁrn;l.ﬁa n'“reel'.irig

j\{m} lrﬂm &em.anﬂ Tor e pel is H']ﬂqdf;ﬁm the demand: sha!l nol marpdale 11-:- rﬂsuFi 1:1 a
‘shaw of hands declared before the demand was made.

fﬁa:fml.nuﬁrs. {whn: nead not be :I.'!'IHH'II:IEI‘E]- anl:l whio ma?fut a’hrne aﬂ-d' plEl:E for de.uiahng l:l'IEI
resuis of fhe poll,
A2 The resuoll of thepoll shall bé deemied to bethe restlution or the meeling al which. the
i poll' s demandead.

ga) A p{:ll ‘demanded on the eleefion of & person lo.chaica meeting of.on a question of
~ad{duiniment nuist e @ken ern:aﬁm‘te‘y!

(bl A pall demandw ariany a:.m-pr guestion rnt:!EI bﬂi Luken a!‘lhar rnmmdnaﬁty uratsm:.h
- i and place as the person who is. chairing \ke meeting directs.

................

" {d} i the poil & not taken tmmediiely at lesst seven clear. d&:,rs"' notice $hall [:Egnieen

- specifying the limearid place al which the poll iz 1o be taken.

] {e} Ha 1:H:r1l ks demand-&dtﬁé rneellnﬁ m',r continue 1o deal wilh any other business that
miay be condicted at thenigeling,

e 'E;u' " ?If ;mw.@n E-hpe Hm:rsa m:-}:rmn*s Hespleos - ,p,ppm-mu‘mﬂﬂr
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14} Contant of proxy notices

(a} states the name and aﬁdress-nf-tﬁa manﬂmr-nppﬁhms ihe-.pm:qr;

(b} identifies the person-appointed to be fhat members-proxy and the genersl meeting
in telation to.which that pérson f5 appmmzu’*

'Euc-h manner as the direclors maz.r ﬂ&’&mﬂn& and

;I:ﬁ,:l is d‘eﬁhﬁe ed o ﬂ'fe ;:hﬁrlt:,r i ammﬂanm with lhe nrtn‘::le# an:r any mistrichpns
containgd in the nuuv:.e of the general meeting o which they r&[ﬂ!ﬂ.

{2y The charity m-a}r hequ'ire Pﬂ:“.!:‘_lf notices to be defivered in a paftmulnr fnn-n and- ma';.*
specify differént forms for different purposes.
'gai; Proxy notices may specify how Hxéﬁ*rﬁ;@rféi:ﬁﬁ{ﬁ'&éd underthem is 1o vole (or that the proxy
' is’To abistain from voling) o ofe of nidre resalations
i) Uhié'é‘i 8 érri::iir' rir':i:i:':é i'ndii::ité.% othenwise, it must be t%éai'e'a;és-.

{b) ﬁp’llmnl:n-g that person as a.proxy in refation to any adjiouriment of the genems
meeting to which il relstes as well as the'meeting itseH,

15} Detivary of proxy noticss

2(1) A persom wito is-entitled to'attend, Speak of vole (either o 2 shiow of hands ar on 2 pall)
cata qtnﬁmf H'lﬂﬂtlnﬂ remains so entitied in respect of that meeting or any adjournment of it,

- even thouglia valid pr-nry nofice has been deliverad to the ﬁharﬁy I:r]l or on.behalf of. mat
- PATSON.

i wnl-ng ga‘ven by or :;lrr behalf of the | p&mnn i:r;r whom ‘or on whose behalf the p‘rux;r nEPtin-E
AT Q_IUETI.
Z fﬂ:' A notica révoling 4 pioky apgoinimient only takes éffect i jt i& delveled before the dtan
of ihe meeting or adjourned meésating to which il relates;
: {ﬁj 'if'& prm:y nnlha Is not vexecule:l' bgr l.-he persnn appmnlirrg the pmr_q- lt ‘must bﬂ

- accampanied. hy written evidence of.the authrity. of the parson wha exectted it 1o exscUte
" i on the appointor's behalf.

- Arbiches of Assaciation V217 Hope House Ehildrens Hospices - Approned 24217
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'TE} Wiritten resciuticons

::hk & ﬂmple ma]uﬁty {or inthe case: ofa apﬂé:{ai {esnhnmn a mﬂjuri'ty of naﬂees Hmn
“75%) of members has signified its agréentent 10 the résolinion; and:

AT is! containgd i an aithentidaled! dotiment wT“uEh heis been récai"-réd ar tha
-registerad officewithin the: p&riau of 28 days beéginning with the cleculation date

:[ﬁj'.ﬁ. ms:n{uhnn'hi wriling ma:.r m_mpﬁaa E.e-u'n_mm':iplﬂ Iﬂr.;mTr.ﬂ? cne or mere members have
‘signifiad theif dghéament

7Y Votas c::i'm'ﬁrﬁm
5{1} Evisry n-iember sha!r Fagve drig un:a

5{2'! Ay bbiév:-‘lp:rr‘- miha _q:i.ldlm-l.':iﬂlkﬂ',l. c-.d 3 -.rn:ar st be ramd Ell the ma-&ﬂ.-:g at 'q'l.lhll.ﬂ'rH'm
vala = tandered and the decksion of the person whio s chaling Uie méeting shalle final.

.18) Diractors
{3 A director misi Be a natural person aged 16 yearsof older.

(2) Mo g miaiy b appoinied o direcior if haiar she wislid be disqualified froimacting under
-thie provigions of article-22;

i deia-rmmad by ;:r'd:ﬁary m&umﬁ:rnj
5{4,': Tha; dFﬁE.-l:"il::'rE- shiall: by lhn‘se persons potified to Eﬂmp&n!'-éﬁ House as directors af the
..Gharn:.r and appearing in. me Register of Directors al the'date of adaption of thesaaricles,

5y & director may ol appointan atternate director ofanyens 1o 361 on his or hist Beha at
‘meetings of the directors:

; 'IH] Powars nf directors

{"1'; The d{rﬁclpr;ﬂ. 51‘:&![ I‘I‘L'anage ihE humnes.s oF H‘bE El'IEIn'I;',r EMMH{HEI‘EE& all the pnwnm
"ot ihé charity brkiss they ‘are subjeét 1o any’ redidclions imposad by the Compainies Acts;
- the arlicles or any special resolulion,

{2) Na Bieration of the aflicles or any special resoiufion:shall Fave relraspective bffect to
ihvalidaits aniy piicratt of the dirsctors.
: {EI .ﬂm':,r Fﬁ‘ﬁ&hng lJTiiFEﬂ'[ﬂTE alwhii:-h 2 HuaTam fs prﬂent aHhE t]’me the rele*rant de-chinn

“is made may exercike al the pawers exercisable by the direttors.
“20) Retivement of dirsciors

: .. .ﬂ o Q,.:;_,-ﬁ - Hﬂu“ Ii:]‘;il-lz.lru.:n‘_-sl;. s i. sty
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~m_' a_a_ nwhmle utftl_‘ngjeg _ II:‘u; qprgll:nﬁ_r neatest to-one-third; must relire from office. Hf there is anly
one direcior he or she mirst refine:
{2) The directors to relire by rotation 'shali be these who have been longest in office sSince

teir ldst appainiment. IWany direclors becgrme of weire appainted: c!fr?ﬁtgm on ihe same day
those to retire shall {HHI-ESI_E they otherwise: agree among themsekies) be detarmiined b lat;

3 ifa d{mctﬂr tsreqmred to refire at an-annual geg_‘t&_ral m&gl_ing;hy a provision of the arficles
the refiremant shall take-effect upoh the conclusion of the mesting.

{4 A r&t'irfng directo :' i shalt Eéia'uﬁibﬁa for re-appointment.

{T]l The charity may by war'sar'_.r resoluton:
{2} appoint-a person whe is willing 1o actto be a director; and
t_'I:r]l d?alanmhﬂ Hﬂ& mhﬁm in whieh anrau-u:lifmrial d:racﬂnra dre fo ratfre

| 12} Mo person othier ﬂlﬁn & diractor retiting I:r]' ratanun miay be'appeintéd a direclorat any
- generalreefing unlass:

{a} he arshe Esmmmmendad-‘m’rauemcthn b‘,rﬂ'u: directors; or

{b} not iEE;s than fourteen: n-nr mHore: marrlhlrtf-fwe clear t:lafs bﬂfnm ‘e :La.te of I_E-ie
maeting, ihe charity is given a notice that:

(B issignad bya membereatilied to vole at the meeting!
(B} slates the member's: intention to’ propose the appeintment-of @ person as-a
dirécior;
fif)  cantains the detalis that, i the parsan were 1o b apgointed; the chakity wiould
haveiafile at Companies House; and

' qiuj is. ﬁgnad I:-g.rtha personwhais tu hfpmg:mﬁﬁtashmv hr5 aTherumHngnﬁssmba

apRoin

' (3) All members whe ate entitied ti:u' receive r;nme {aria' gerieral meeling rﬁﬁé’t be ;ji{resn notkess
meeting {o appulnta director l:-thErlhan adne:tm who is 1o refira by ml:aﬁﬂrr,
- ﬁ'#m &;Em:tia?s.-'myfa{p'pérnt?é ;{émn-h u.énu s ﬁ'ﬁ'ﬁg m?aé:t to be 1-1 'u{:eaur

: gﬁmmal m&ahng and must not be’ fahﬂrr inlo account mdntﬂrrrun'ing ﬂ‘-lﬁ.dir&E:tﬂr-'E wha are lo
" retire By retation.

{8} Treappointrient of a dirgétar, whetfier Dy thie charty in genidral meeting érby the ather
d‘tau:tnrs must not; qay;e_ t_t_'ne number of direclars: to-exceed: any number fixed:as the

: .F-.:‘t.;:les, n[ﬁqgauﬂﬂtm 'u"i"ﬁ? 1:1-u-n¢ i-h:lusc Ehlh:lran £ Hnsplus ﬁ;:-pl:c:.ﬁ.ae-:t'ﬂl'iﬁ,l'l Fil
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THytaw from being g director;

G disquatfad rom acing as a sl by i of scions §78 s 179 o ne Charies
sAgt 211 {or any statulory re-enactment or mogification of thode grovisions);

(3 cedses lube a mermber of the charty.

Sy iy thia winfen opinion. gnien o the company; ofal ragistered .ﬂ#ﬂ‘:ﬂ?ﬂi@ﬁﬁf Trizating
-thal-person, has become physiczally of mentally incapable of acling 8s-3 direcior-and may
" rerfiain 8¢ for rvdte than thrée ronibs] '

(B rasigris ai a dirgedar by notivs tathe charily (bubonly f atleast bwo directors will rerain
in' office when thie notice of rasign atior is to lake effect); or

(&Y is absent without the penmission of the direchors from_adl their meetings held within a

: period of s consecutive months:and the directars resolve that kis or heroifice be vacated.

Iy Remuneiation of dirgctors

" Thie diréclors: inbist nol be paid any rr:nhunemm ﬁn;ipsg'ﬁ isnu_tﬁnrﬁéd h‘&r:a;'t'i:qiﬁﬁ;

: ﬁd:}'-ﬁmma;d.irjgs:&rmrm':tam

(1) The dirctors may regulate thelr proceedings as they think itz subject to-the provislons
of the articies.

{2) Any director may caf a méeting of the diréctars.

. direclor,
(4} Questions arising st a meeling .gﬂ:iﬂi:i'i:sé&iﬁﬁﬁ by A majorty of votes,

{5} in‘the case of an equality of voles, the persen wh is chalfing. the meéeting shail Rave &
second dr casting vold.

 (8) Ameeting may be held by'sulistle alectronic:means agreed by the directors In which
. pach participant may communicate with ali the other participants.

. {7y No dgeci=ian may. be made by'a medfing of the diteston unibds a dusiuim i3 predent at
* the time the decision is purported to be-made. ‘Present’ includes being present by suitable
| ghectiomic migans agreed by (he ddestods o which’a panicipant oF participaits niay
+ cominunicate with al the other participants;

R R R e | R
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ll:hr'ar:mm, sirl'ﬂ::hmre; % the greater. or such. larger- ‘number a5 may be :Iemiad from - time-1o
time by 1HE diretiors,

a I'HBHZE-I’ upon which that ﬁ’rﬁc:lnr B niot &n‘r.lljad tn".rute

I‘!ﬂ} Kﬁ&.ﬂﬂﬂﬁ#?.ﬁf'ﬁ'{r&@tﬁfﬁ iﬁﬁ Tﬂlﬁﬁﬁ'tﬁﬁﬁ thie ﬁﬂﬂ'@ﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁ a5 the queram, the contingiig
directors oF director may act only for the-purpose of filing vacancies or of calling a general
meebng.

];Ermd tthEIﬂ to hold: mﬁm
j{a;ﬁ Thie person 50 ﬂ:;:-pﬂinied for me ﬁm& hemgf are me-m s tha: Eham‘nan

Zl:I:r;'l Elu'eptnrs rivdy fiom e t9itime by fesdlifion appoint'a Vice Chairman; any person
‘50 appointed may act in place of the Chainman if there be no Chahman or no-Chaiman

capableof acting.

. ﬂl‘laran minutes of th-z l:irms abwhich tveas tostar; the mm:dpatfng Hireﬂnrs st apmrm
one of themselves to chalrit,

- ap:pnfrttEﬂ fﬂl the rneetlng. the direclurs preatnt mm.r gppoint ona of ﬂ'lE!l number 1o n:h:alr
" {hal meeting.

- {74} The pérsén appointed 1o chair meefings of the directors 'shall have na. funclions or
pnwers except those conferred: I:ry the: articies of delegated 1o him or her by the direclors.

. [15} A ms:ﬂuhnn Tn m'u'it.iﬁg ‘or in eiaﬁ‘trpm: ﬁ:rrn sijreed by a1l al Uﬂe ﬂ:rect;ud's: entitled fo
receive nctice of a meeting of the diraclors and 1o vote upon the resolution shall be-as valid

- and éffectualas 7 it had been passed at a meeting of the direclors -duify convened and hakd.

' resolition in fike !'nrmrta aach ﬂfwh[-:h one of more directors has signified their agraement

A AR R A
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‘?Ej Da?-ﬁ-gh—'liﬁn

u-h t.l-rem vndter thie: afrﬁv:&e:
'{1‘} 1»:i Such pErSON Or ¢ -::mmntee
() bysuch means (including by power of attomay);
) o such an exent

) in relation te such makters ar Aerritories: arr:l
'l:»}:i ﬂ_n auql_l'-;e:n'ns ﬁﬁd'nunuit;:m-ﬁs:
i) as thay fhink fit
‘bt the-tarms dﬁﬁfdﬂlﬁhﬁdh mirst.be Tecorded in the Minite Baok:

m The Hlmcj'.urr- ma-_.,r sivioke: any ::lehgaimn in. whole or parL or alter s ferms and
‘conditions,

; H} The diréctors may impose conditions whian ﬂcul-ega[fng. rnr.'luda‘rug 1-':1& r:mudfrth‘ﬁ' Iha‘t

U(a) this feleiant pwersdnito’ mmrﬁmﬂ n.-:ulu.-lst-ﬂ'ehr br,-'ihnl enmmittes to whom they
dejegata;

“fb) no expendiire may berincired on behal of ihe chadty'except inaccordénce with
~a budge! previcusly agreed with the directors;

..................

{5 Enmmltlats 'l::rwhfch the directors delegale: any of ﬂ“'lar pm-rers st Toliew E'I"ﬂﬂ-ﬂdHFEEl
“which ard based as far as iHey aie dpplicablaon those-provisicnia of the aricks which
- govemn the taking of decsions by dineciors..

-.E_'ﬁ} Tm: diraclors l:nay make- rulat.fn-!' prda&duq& for aif uran'_-,n  commitiees, which prevail over
“rules dérved fram the ariches if thevrare riot consistent with them,

{?1 A]T ‘Feds a-n'ni prciqee.d‘ngs a;_! iy i:.nrrm'rl'leas. must be iu[hr aﬂd prmr.ﬂly m-p-nmd l|:r Ih-!:
-directors.

: Eli';“t-ih’ni:iﬁrﬁ treasurer

...............

- (2} No temunieration (except by way of repayment of reasonable out-of-packet expanses, if
anyh shial be paid 10 the Hondrary Treasurérin respect of their fees;

. Aticles of Basocialon V17, ‘Hidpe House Chikdren's Hospicas Cppriniad ZHEAT
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.27} Secratary
(1} The directors may . appoint.a suitably qalified person whether or nol'a member 1o be

‘Secretary and may deternine for what period thay are to hold office and any. Secretary sa
-appmnrﬂﬂ may be remiovad by I,hurn

{2)-Directors-may from time to time by resolufion appoint an-Assistant or Deputy Secretary;

‘any pérson So dppointed miay act in place of the Secrefary if there Be no $a-:mtary or-no
Secralary capable of acting,

28) Validity of directors’ decisions

ikl ﬁulletF VS a'l’i’rﬂe 2812). all acts ddne by a méeting uf diectarg, of of & commitiee of"
directers, shall be-vatid notwithstanding the participation i any vole of a director:

(@) wharwas disqualified from holding ffice;

{Bywho had previously retired:orwho had been abtiged by the consttution 15 vacate
-office:

(e} who was not entitied 1o 'mtn _an the matter, whether by reazon of a conflict of
nteresis or glienkise;

ifwithigut:
{a) thie vede of that director, and
{b) that disettor being counlad in the guarum;

{&} the decision haﬁ bBeen made by a majorityof the: dlree.te-rs ata qumata rriaehr‘ng

; Am:la ?ﬂif‘!} does- m::lf permil a drrecicrr ur B mnnected panmn ta HB'EP' ﬂn:,r h-enefﬂ 1';ha1-

if butforarticle EE{‘J} the res.urutnnn would have been vaid, orif the director has. not qu;ﬁﬂd
. with arficle 7.

- 28) Seal

- (1) The charitys Seal must only be used by the avthority-of the directors or ef-a ucmn' ittee

- gf diregtors authiised By the difgclors. The dirécidrs friay defemaine who shall sign-any
instrument to which the seal s affided and unless otherwise so-determined it shall be skgnex

......

. ba direcior and: h_!,r the secre’l:arg.r {if any} or by & second diréctar,
30) Minuiss
* The directors must keep minutes.of afl

{ar) appointmenis of officers made by the'directars;

tb) pmcﬂefd:mga al mee ﬂngﬁ of the ehar:nt'_.r

- Articles of Astoction Va7 Hope House Childran's Hosplcos . Approved 21217
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(6 rhsetings of the direttois and commileas of directors Including:
iy thanames 'ﬁ; 'Ii'm Hlmﬂnrs pmﬁ‘aitﬂe meetmg
) " the decisions made-al the mestings: and
fiil) - whers appropniate the reasons for the degisions.
31’} iﬁ;ﬁﬂl:ll.lﬂté

(1] The directors must-prepare for sach: inancial year -accounts ‘as. required by the
“Companies Acls, The dcchunts mivs] B8 prapared 10 sheiv's tueand falr vielw ahd follow
-accounting: standards issued or adopted. by the Accouniing: Standards . Board or #s
sucdesgars and adhieie to the ictommiendations of applicable Statements of Recommended
“Pragiice.

! {’L] The dirécters must comply will the feguireiniits of the Chadites Ber 2011 vath regard
s e

{a) kansmission of a copy-of the statemenls of 2ccount 16 the Commission;

Gommission;
* {¢) prepaation of-an Annual Return and its fransmission o the-Commission.

. {2} The directors must notify the Cominission prompy of any.changst to the:charity's entry
on the Genura{ Kegister of Chantios., -

33y midens of communication to be used

| (1) Sibject _l;n:':_il'_gef-_q.rt_w;rega; ar&mmg sl or Fup ﬁed by ﬁr-‘lu-mé cha';'uhrunder ll'raarl.rcleﬂ

| may be .sent.or supplied in. any way: i which the Comganies Att 2006 provides for

- dyeuments or Information which ‘ase aulhorised of required by, afy provision of that At te
. ba sentor supplied by or fo the charnty.

() Bubiect to. the artclés. Bny nglicel of sheuiment 1o be sent orsupplied tota dirgdtor in
connection with the taking of decisions by directors may also be sent or Supphied by the
frigd ﬂﬁ'ﬁy WhiGh (hat directon hads dsked Eﬂ'h&:'ﬁﬁfl'll:-ﬁr'ﬂiﬂpjﬂi'ﬁﬁ with sachaclices or
duocuments for the time Baing.

MRS O s sskRen VHT  Hine Hosre Childrests Hosatces - Approved 2HN7
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The tﬁérﬁ %nég; ﬂ.-i'.nl'lﬂi any haﬁ#m a rmnﬂer-éﬂh&r:
{8} personiily; or

=-ach:lress m '
:'{n}‘ By !eauhg ﬂ ‘al the address nd‘tl'm- m&mber or
: ﬂ} by gi'ﬂ’i'{'il;"rt' iﬁ'u' ETEE:HurﬂL' !Fﬁrm i thie” r!"-IE'l'l‘[i.‘r'Ei"E addmsa ar

'mmng ar in aiac:tmhin: fom D'f 1hE presence -of the notice on the w&bsil:g,_ The

nistification must state that it conceins a notice of a company Mealing and must speciy
the place dale: and time of the meeting:

1’#} A mernber wfm -_-Euiaa: et mgmtaf ani ﬁdd‘msﬁ '-.rrl:h 1ha ¢har:1:1_.r ar whio_régisiers onty'a
nostal address that is not. within the United ngdum shail-not be entited 1o recaie any
n&tice from the r.‘h’am'j

recaived notice of the meetrg anct aflhe pumposes for whmi'r it was ::a1led

- g&} Prmf that:an: epvelgpe: mniahing & mﬂm wWas pfﬁ}eriy ﬂddmsaed pmpmd and posted

- shall be conclusive evidance that the notice was given

{7} Proof that-an elecironic form of notice was gﬁrﬂn shall be ::nfm!usr.ru where the: mmpamr
| an demionstiale that il was properly dderéssed ang seft, in'actordancs With sactian 1147
of the Cempanies Act 2006.

| Eﬂj In-aiccerdance with section 1147 of the' Companies: Act 2006 notice shall be deemed to
& gien:

{a) 4B Noirs after the.envelope containing i was posted; or :
{b) iri:the caseof an elkcironic farm of eommunication, 48 hours after ﬂ wWagsent

- 34} Indemnity
(1) Thé ‘charity Shall indemnify 'a. refevant. director against any liabilly incurréd . in that
© capacity, to the-exient permitied by seclions 232 1o 234 of the Companies Act 2006

: {2} in lhﬁ atiicle, & rel&u-aﬂl director MEANS ANy d[mn::tur former directorar 5hat|m.r ﬂ‘rﬁ:ﬂm
of tre Charity.

- a} in defending procsedings fwhether civil or criminal) in which judgment is given in his-or
er br s faUGUF OF ha or She ar it scquitiad: or

-{B) in connection with ah application under seclion 1157 of the Companies Act 2008 (power
- of:Court te grant Tefief in case of honest and reasonable conduct) in whith relief i grafited
Ag'him orher or i by the Court
- 358) Rules
Arities 6f s sociation Vait7 Hope House Children's:Hospices, - Approved 2612117
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(4] The ditectars may from fima to ime make Stich reatonatie and proper rilés or biye livs
a5 thel miaj dien Aechssany of expedient for the proper conduct and management af the

“[a) the admission of members of the charly, (inchisding e adinisSion ol drgapisations
“to membershig) and the rights and priviieges of such members, and the entrance: fees,
‘subscriptions-and olher fedsior paymehts 15 te made by members]

(b thid conduct of irembers of tie'chinty in felalion s Sne'anather and tothe charlty’s
‘employees:and volunieers,

(2} the selfing aside of the whole or any-part or parts of the chariy's premises at any
" parlicitartimie of T o for any paiCulr pUrpose Of purposes;] '

() the prosedure af generat maetings and mestings:of the dhactors in s far as: such
- progadure is not regulated by the. Companies Acis or by the arfices;

"{e) generally, alf gich matians 2 afe commonty thé Subject mianerof fompany ries.

{3} The charty in géneral mecling has'the powed 1o altdy, add 1o or repeal the rikas or Die
Tlaws, '

(& The-direclors must adopl such means as they fhink sufficent 18 bR the files and bie
345 10 Hie: notice-of FBmBETE of the Ghrty:
(5 Thie:nulles 6 byre bawes shall be: bindingion all members of the charity: No tule of bye:law

- shafl ba inconsistent with, or shall affect or repeal anylhing conlained in, fhe drlicles.

SEH I dispute ‘Srises Hetwebn merbiers Bf the chiapity about theTvabdiy oe progriaty of

- amything done by the members of the:charlly under these artiglak, and the dizpute: cannol

B rasobied by agréamient. fhi pares 1e the dispute most first try ingoyd faith tosettle the,

- gispule by mediation before resorting o liigation,

. 37) Dissolution

. {1} The members.of the charity may at any time before, and in 2xpectélion of, its dissolution

eesdlue thatany et assels of the charily afler all its debls and fiabilties have been paid, or
provisign has been riade for them, shall on of before the dissotition of the gharity Be'apilied.

vor ransferred in any of the following ways:

fb} ’W !ram!l‘-.'! 1.;|:L_im_'.r E:'l"l'aﬁ'l'h' or charities fof purpumssln‘li‘.farln’lhﬁ ﬂbj-a':‘l'ﬁ.,ul
fc) t any charity-of chariies for use for particular purposad that fall within the Dbjects.
{2 Sisiecyio'any Sush fesslilion of the members of the tharity, the directors of the charity
may at any Yire before and in.expectafion of Wz dissolution resolve that any nel assels of
" the charfty afer all ite debis and lablitiss have been paid, onprovision made for them, shal
Articies of Assosiation V217 . Haopa House Chikiren's Hyepicas - Appianied 227
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on or befme d:sscdunnn nfthe nharity I‘:ra *a;:l-pl’:ad ar h‘ﬂ!‘rsf&n&d
{a]- d‘re::ﬂ:.r Tr:u' ‘tt-ie Elgram ‘of
(b} by transfer 16 any charity of charities Yar plfposes simitar o'the Objacts; or
1€} 1o any.charnity or chanlies for use for particular purposes that fall wilthin the Dbjects.

Lﬂ-} In nn ﬁ:iﬁ:.un'lsta m:ﬂﬁ -shaﬁ thﬂ et . Ehm&ls of thﬂ ::harrty.r b& pa:d 'l:n :t:ll' :‘.fsr!rrh‘l.ited amﬁng

i ﬂnn‘tmmﬁmn

i 351 Iﬂtﬁrprﬂatlnn

HHS
{a) achiid, parent; grandchild, grandparent, brother or sister of the director:
{b‘j mE'EFBIJSE'ﬂT cwH parhe:r u-f‘the dJFEﬂﬂl* nrﬂf am_.- p&r:m,l'i falﬁrrg u.nﬂ"En 'hf.lh nﬁat;:be
{a) above;

{c) a person canning: on business in parnership with the direcior o ar with any person
* faliing within sob-clause {3 oF (b) abole;
+ {d) aa instiution which is conlroHed:

above; or
' iﬂ] By o OF MOre Parsens 'ﬁning within sub—ﬂaqsa;';&}iﬁ. when taker maéiht.tr
' {é} a ﬁéy :&ﬁmamté in‘wihich —

iy the'director or any confccied person faliing within subSclayses (a) o (6) has &
substantial interest; or

() two or mere persons feliing within sub-clause {e) (i) who; when taken logether,
have: & Substantial interest,

" terfivs Dsed in lhis arti‘cFE

Aricles of Azsaciation V217 Hopa Houte Chidre r's Haspla e . Approved 2H3MT
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i The Companies: Act 1085
4 CQompany Limited by Guaranted
.and Mot Having a Share Capital

:MEMDHAHDHM OF ASSOCIATION
ol
'HOPE: HOUSE, CHILDREN'S RESPIT'E HOSFICE

::I'. jﬁm'E.‘l*umphn:i‘s names s Hopa Hm Childrm,ﬂup-lr. Hum

{1y
] . ; piﬂ'
; _Ehmpih:n arid ul;l'anum muhﬂﬂ; of Enslud and’ Wah: - in - pirticutar

' _ (bur without prejudice 1o the gémerality whether gibgraphical or otherviss
- of -such objeet) -

:f-'t‘] hHy estatiiEdiog, pilRinihg uua cmdm.ﬂrqs_ qm_uep:_u.;_ _nu;m:ng -iﬂu:I

. convalesceat homes For the peception . ind cere of young persont of either
"mm‘hmrwmiﬁmuﬂ-ﬂﬂwhﬂnn.ﬂwﬂhmmmm

b mupﬂm and. care: of the - mmburi lﬂrd- ihe - Elrpi.'l:.! of guch ' pardons
" wehethor adult tr olberwiss, and’ so:that ‘any tach ‘home may be restricted
to. patienis (apd the femilies of petidnte) of afider @ coriain dge limit or
of one sex. gnly. or {whethor or not .$o restricted 2t Aforseaid) to patients
L= - suffering from any particulnr type or types of ilinoss, disability,- diseass or
Cinfieiicy, and By providiop medical or othér trénimgebl OC pilenfion for

l!'rl_rlut.'h n.:rl.m.'.' an.-ﬁ thair rnml.tﬂulfmmldmﬂmuﬂﬂhm\m

() 'E‘:"«:{-pnﬁumﬂ. poinbting o - amwmﬂng. tesearch mb: mnre

and. frestment of pumhm soffering | Trom any Szuch illness, disability,
' dissasa o infirmity - ns aforssedd and  particUksry it the care . and
| triatmiend of peisons ‘suffering from terminct ilioess and the care of the
. fomilies of such persons nnd by providieg for "he dipsdmination “of tha
 resilts of such ressarchy

'.:q Tty premoting . Or. ERCOVRIEing ngdisting in the eachiog or
triining. - of - Dootors, . Mucghs, - Eha*!h-ihﬂmplhﬂ Administratons, - Social
%ﬁ, and other persons” Bngeged in sny braneh cof - medizine, - SUNGRTY;
nveting Of allied terviges, and. in the feiching ‘or tipining ‘of ‘students in
any: branch af. modiclde, suegery, nirking - .07 :uw ur-.-m:r.;

(D) . by providing, gr esiliting of encoriging . the) Hﬁ‘ﬂ-ﬂt.lh. gE-spinisisl’
help -and -guidsnce. for. Any. persdns. resident (elther ns Ay
fomities of such persons or; otherwise) ov asochted in any; :&E 3
such home or hodidsiad afotedaid; T
 remug

mﬁr"ﬁnms i3
:I 1"-;‘[.-1..11

-r_---="

-

CHOFEZM 1

—= il J.l_.
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2 Eor e Hi'ﬁuda'tﬁ"fm:'iﬁulus the ‘stiinment &F atl or Sy of ik abovy
- manlivadéd charifable - objeots. Ehamn.ll'm cathed “the -principal objecis of
! Cthe Assceinion™) but pol for aoy oiker parpossscand = fur cas the objeens
:  heivinafier munboted are conducive of onéillicy lo ihe forikecabicd of the
primeipal objects-of the Assosiation (bul not Musther or -otherwisek

(A)  'io purchase, wmke ‘co Mase, or in eichanpe, hire or .orhecwizs,
nequire any real or pemopal propesty -and Any rights or priviloges - which
sy e " dedmied “recesary of ‘comvéniedl foir wny (of the: prposes of ke

Anocianon or Tor the promotion of 3ts ohjects provided . that . jn  case. the
mﬂum:hﬂl:dmha Iuhaldmﬂﬂ:ltnﬂﬂtintﬁ&luw shall: for the time

@) o sy, qepmr, resovate, fumish; eadls, decorts, i,
maintain end manags any bu £roctions or works nececary fm- SR
a5 such home or hemes s -sforessid or for any use o conneation with
the: gstablithimient of any such ‘home or haaxes (itcloding (ve & & "Chudch
or chapel for the uss of eny. percn or parsbne residest or working in my

:l.h:-‘l'. ‘home) ¢r otherwise for the work of the -Assocfation:

()., .t edEbiEh. and | coddigl, elindds [dut | pationt’  departmsnts,
surgeries, dispenwries and coavalescent homes;

(I3, . o apduire, provide, odnjpideie’ sod ‘des] in suth moedicl, Surgical
and. other -supplies; equipment,. applitnges, appariius, comforit and otker
thimgs comduelve  to the ~msterial or ‘spiritual welltre of any  persons
| vesident or working In or Datiending ény Bdme, clihiz,  dispendary of
.nut—mt:enu' dapartoient. a5 nfcfedaid or any persons .being . treatsd or
sttending- in- thafr nwn -komes - B2 the - Agocietion iy Bhrnk Ht and o
provide the sabee whether pratuitdusly or otherwits

{E;'I. o mhh. {ln.gﬂln dand* pay  guch - Bur:l:nﬁ, E‘urgmm Hﬂr:::ug o
'dmmm[c wwll, Lectovers; chaphins, - Phylotharspists,  Ociupatisual

Therapisty, R-da-:tbsku, . entiste, | Chirgpodijts, = Fharmeeists,

A:lm-:iﬂ:mn, Socinl. Workess, Officers,  Superintendents, Managers,

Advisers, - Seorolsrics, Accountinfts, Clarks and -other parigns cor bodies

avlhioge” cervices mrn fenulved or desmed arpediont for éarrying outisny of
ths nh;bcn “of ‘the Association:

'{ﬂ g ek sueh qaa_u_h_ﬁdm_au :n m:.ﬁm-n&uu of oubg pérgong. and
_their fepfiet fo any home, cliffc Or out=patients’ dopariment, estmbiizshed
Cbye or-capducted. uoder. the direction. of the : Assoointion -as- aforasaid, - and
g5t the résidence of Ay persons in any such home ns eforesaid as che
 Asjooiition | may think £, vl so thdt buch | ragulaliond ey provids,
either . gaceraliy or. in. eny pacticulir casze ar casar, for guch . sdmistion. or

‘resigence 10 be either Mres of: charge o subjest 1o sush payment -as -the

T AsknpiAton oiay Tn Aneparticilin chse or citas Uthink Fit:

:{G] -l pmv:&ur or-srrenge -and pay. For such -medical ‘or athar- attention
a3 the Associition may think fir for patients 10 sy sich Fuoimigy i=finic;

- dispansary or cul-pationts’ départdiont fx afdresdid or Tor patients in their
‘own -honts -and - in. mnh cass for the families .of such m::anfs

M) o gstabilsh and éonduct schobls, trainiog collegés mpd oéfer placcy
‘of I-u-u:m!u: and Inhnrn'rﬂriﬁ pod .ather rﬁé"-ﬂ:ﬁ estnblishmontsy |

. o peiovide orarrangs Tor ol Buiing or pridises o be dsed by the
;.mrmnu a5 a church or chapel available For christian. wmmp,




0y, ke ey guﬁ ur property, u-hiuhm ﬂhiﬂlt fo say ‘ED!I."{'J-;I[ trast
or- ‘oot &'ﬂ-r any one. o aore. objecis nl‘ the Annﬁu{mn,

(K)o Tmke 1uSh Sthps by '_piul'sd:n:al oif w:man appily pabm m:h:!,r.
raffles, fhg days, Mower.dnys, galas, _earnivals, concerts, dosces and other

“forms - of " eotertainment, - or - ‘otherwise, a3 may from time 1o tine ‘B
‘deomed cigediEnt F05 the purposd of produring entribbtiond o the Tunds
‘of mhamm in the shape  of denstions, annwal sobscriptiont or
rotherarise

3 . . o print.or. publish any newspapers, peribdicaly, books or. teafien
that th= Anociation may thigk desimable l'ur tia promation m i obients:

(BE) . . te sl mansge,. leasa, . mérigages dispote of or’ gtheiwise i
-ﬁL‘nﬂ' or any part of the property of the Association;

M) . o mdministér any Fonds or propariy [of the Gfie being héld by
‘the Assooktion:

10y . .o Borrow or coie pdoniey o sugh. dvinber and upaa such feTmis ar
‘tha Amockation. shall- think fit and o perdonlsr upon the sactrity by way
‘of ‘mortgsge, charge; debentare 1or -otherwise of ol or any parp of the

‘propicy of e Asscolation;

™ mr iwm the monies of rhu Ammm: P mmeﬁhtﬂj ﬂb.u!rad
FGr it purposes’in or vpin such [ TEvefbtdats, SECUrl'ss 0 pUoparty’ s
‘may from. time. to time be thpught fit, and fo. bold, Fll or otherwiss 'daql
with such dnvostments, subject neveribaless (o such conditions. (it cey) and,
‘stpch congents (i sny) #5° may for the Liems bama. bt ].'III.DD!-IHI or - reguinad

'h;r i and snbjeer elso ms J:amurm nmﬁd‘nﬁ

'{Q} T undartﬂu and - axecnte l.nr h‘mft r nnr an.unr:r business which
m;rhwfumr B uniertakien by | the. Agsociatisi which mwiay seem ditesty
or indirectly condecive to m- of ;m:. .abjects nf‘ the Associaficn;:

(B}, W make died, gridorpe, e.m:m i]id lmll!. chagies; ‘pmmm
‘motes, biHs of at:hanga: “dehenturds and, other prgotiable or iransterablp

InStrEEants;

........

15)
the: M-Idh:g of: u:mih:haﬂa. ‘meetings -and -lectures, nalwhtzd -dirtr-t:rjz.r .or
indirectly 1o further the chjests of the Assoclation or any of them;

1) to ‘epter info -RNY . rYRREOMEnt - With .any . suthority, supeme .
;munjta:ul, focal o - otherwise. which - may o geem - condusive ~fo - the g -
Astociation’s obfects of apy Cof  thém, snd to ‘obfuln from Cdny ok
pothority any - rights,. privilsges and enhmmnus: which it | may, Shem B
daslrabis o obtain, (and W cerry - and ccomply - wHh pny - such
‘pfpdngamisnts, rights, privikeges and: tn-.u.ﬁ-_eahlﬂﬁs

-.::-3] .10, apply for; prowaote and. obtain or join -in applying.for, promoting

of obmainihg soy At or Parifgoient, Drder, Royal charter ol “Llcence - af

any suthority, neccssary’ or desiribie for the fupthsrdince of realimfidn of

any of the: objecis ‘of the Associstion and. to . teke all. such steps. wred
Fﬁ;ﬁdmmmmmmkmmﬂuu.glullhu—lhn!urjﬂnllr -
with others, whether. By, dgposing spplicationy or pracesdings: gr othiefwise

A% may téem Decisary of expafisnt io promobe .or Turther the linteresls

and ebjest of the ‘Assorhation;




A¥] m ;Eh;mbe- o0y hauﬂ o o mrﬂ:tﬂ; and 107 Erinl dofativds
Jor. any | chacitable: puhlin gnf-mn., md W grant. pensians .er goniuitics.
BAy emMpYeES - Or -EA-2Ep ol the  Assnciatlen,  of {bul - oy in CAEEY
wf neid) 15 the reliive or eqaenmnu o such pérsons, 10 esiablsh or
SULport Ay charisble sfocistion,. insttutions; clubs, building and bousieg
‘srhemen, fupds ®nd Lusts which mybumurd-:md to :bapefit any swch
ﬂd‘ﬂiﬂ' v gtheredss sdvinos e laleresic snd ﬂﬂﬁﬂ# of rhe Assochition;

['!i'!'} , ty establish - and mppmi. and Hl id- ir the rsmhl&hmc-nt aﬂp“

wppa:lrt of, Ay oibey aSociations Torowed loe bl or any 'of tha obfeéis o
Thl:ﬁ-ﬁln#uﬁnn;

m mmlguﬂu 'l.ﬁlil any :':Mriuhtn companias, iBStHIons,
mgﬂ-ﬂ. o . astotiatichs. having objects ﬂ‘t-ns,l:ﬂie: in part .similne 1o
those - of this Association;

(Y) |  to pucchais or otherwite sefuire And wrndertaie 21 -:r any part of
- the :H‘unﬂ'l‘f. Assaks, - lEbilities and mmr-u of Epy: pns:or - morm -of
- the - compenies, in—:ﬂmmm gocioties or essoclitions with  which iy
© Adescintion i3 Nithcrised 16 amflgainats

{Ea H: u'lnsl‘ar |u| i.'h' nny mrl n-f lha D‘lﬂpl.'-ﬂ}' usm, ]!:Ih.:‘l:l'-:-.'j mu

Ruthorised IEI- lmlg:.mal-l::

............................

:l.'iEIﬂ]I. . fa da #fl or any of .the-:huw_ things A% bi'}:'r:i‘phﬁf..ig‘ih%h, TrusTass
- or otharwis and uitilﬂ_ alone or in- conjunciion with others;

) . Te 4o Al puch dther Mwful things ok niad Hd considéred incidedial
to o conducive o the attninmext of the pbova .objocts or muy of them:

FROVIDED THAT:

-l:i] -mmulhsmm::huﬂnﬂmlluhnrhﬂd any p;apart;.r wlﬂ-thmn]rhu_

‘stlfect to) dny tristy, the Assodiicion shell only deal with of invést the

same in sifh manner &5 eliswed by Tavr; h.u.'nug mga.rd :u. sich 'r:ugm,

o iy i:hjuu af tlu: .P.:an::‘famn shall ~not -::::-and i !ﬁﬁ _ijllfgﬂ}iunn of

'n.rgm:ﬂmm af- smployers,

&

() dn cese thel Association shall take oo hold  me¥ pripogly nw ta . the.

Jurkdicton .of . the charlng mmhmm Tér En;h.nﬂ and ¥Wales, - tha
Eﬂﬂdlr{m :h:lll Bt .uil. EOTRaRe, :Mtgs ar mﬂ the csame witheul

m:rd: Eny ;such pwm:la the Coaseil or . nnthur .gwmm hndy o the

shall La chiftinble- Eul- sueh propesTy a5 Ay corme inio ;m

hm sy shall bo anywhcable  sod aecongisble far thair  oem - decl,

recelpts, ‘peglects and Cdefaults, pad, for the die admifGicetion of such

propecty o the gape nanner pod to i.'@.n SAe GRTARL - “pa-gech - epgnell or

T govarting body would have beaw I no imcoepomabion had been effected and

. the incofporitien . 8T the . Arsachtion’ $hall pot diminidh. pr Ampair, Ay

. conwol <or - authority - ofsrcisnbie | by tha Chamcery Division, o n:hm'ly
- commistionkrs over “siech Council o Qovernidg Body, bot they shall, s

cepards :nr-:|.r soch  proper outhodfity = as af the CAsgpchtion. Wwerd ngt




+

4, .. Tee. ngome and prapery. n-f b Astpoidtion | ghal) (e ppplléd  Csbidiy
-mwud:r the promotioa- &f s objesls ag ml forth. jn. this Memomodum . of
i g 4N fo poctipn “theresl shall Be peld or' tremsfucred, diresily | oo
; Fndh-mﬂv Wy way.of dividend, beaus a: otherwine bowsdever by way of poofif, 19
members of (the Associgiion (and no -Member of it Council or Geoverning Body
S ghall ‘b sppoinied o ‘mny office of (he Adsociation pald by salary or fess or
Associatidn).

D Provided”
faith hr the M.rmtlﬁn'
Cfm) | COF wssGouvHE Hal grgper inunErEtion to any member, | u-!ﬁ:i:r o
. sgrvant. of the Aswocimton ({oot. being. & member  of ity Council dor
* Governing -Body) Tor any serviees modered. 10t -ﬂuuchdﬂn,,

. i} .. . of ‘intceest on. moony Jent by any. member Gf the Associadon for

of i Coeneil or Governing -Body) 2t & mbe por anngn txcceding 3 .pes 7

bt leda” then tha Unlted Kingdod: ﬂtﬂmm«s Berka ‘base - fending vele (as
- adveriised in' ¢ha Financisl Tirtes) pr 5 per cent whichider j5 the grodter,

=) ﬂmyﬁememnlfa;inﬂmdmhddﬁrMh}-mr
. mémber of b ﬁﬁmum {qrnl' B4 Covhell” ér Crovaraing Bodyy,

-{d} cals l‘uu. mnnmﬁnn ucr wurhur hnunﬂr:s i:n- 'l:rmm:.r BE FOoReyy. wﬂh
Cfo'w cefobmny of which a Ndribec of the Codneil of-Ghveining Body miay
be B member hoiding net mare than 17000tk part of (the capital of |that

- company:-snd

) . . 16 ‘amy Msmbeiof iy Coureil r Governiig Doy ef reisonablo
- put-of-pockel: expanses. :

VIS LT bty of i’ Menbérs s limiced.

t 'E.wr:.r Huml:t.r nj' l:'ua Msmnhnn *unrdrutn.ku '-u mmn‘hh iu uu I'I.':I‘:FHF
Caf e Asoriadon in the cVent of Wielsars beiag wousd up cwhild he 3 a
| Mumber, or within.one year after he cfeses. fo be a. ‘Metaber Tor paymént of
“the debis-and Babilitier of the Assostition cortracied - befoge Eo censed to Ba m

Meémiber, ‘and of ‘the basks, ciarpés amd cxprndes of | winding up, num:i for ihe

wdjustrmant of the rights of the contcituiorios gmong therassivés, foch prgooe Bs
- myay B required fot sxcseding One Pound,

JW. . N wpon the 'winding ep or ditsplptiop of | (hé  Astonialion Uidrg rérdains,
-gfrep fhe satifaction of all. Hs dsbes . aod Aabiiities, . a0y . proparry . whatsoever, .
e same sball beopald Jhlo Cer d::aml.wtr.d AMONgY tl-n Members of the
. Association, | but shall ‘be. given ‘or | yrimafeded o Fooina |ogher T chRrrtible
Cinstitution  or iﬂmunm, “having . objects . similar . tﬂ- the . ohiects "of" . the
! a.ﬂmhiunr wrid” which shall prohibit the - distribution ol It or thelr income and
pEEparly mrnongst itsell gr. thél Mefbais to i “gatent &t ledst A5 gErest as
Impased on . the . Amochation. under or by wirtue .of . Clis 4 hereof, such
ingtitution or institutions: to b8 determined by :the Members of the Assgoiation
At oy Belgré thi tove of disolution, aod i 'and 50 far B effect cakidot b pivén
-y -guch - nrw.islum. ihen to some other charltable object.

HOPEZM -5



WE, the Sutepribars w ;Eu’.r Mtn!riﬂhﬂum ~:-r annnlm:n. wish 10 bt formed intn
o -Company pursusns to. this ‘Memofandvm
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WHEELER ROAD RECREATION AREA




Henley Hall
Henley
Ludlow

Shropshire
SY8 3HD

6th November 2025

Dear Gina,

Wheeler Road Recreation Area, Ludlow

Thank you for your email on 5" November 2025 regarding the covenant covering the Wheeler Road
Recreation Area in Ludlow.

I have visited the site on several occasions and have spoken to families using the space to try to understand any
1ssues which may assist in the safe and enjoyable use of the area. The key points raised are as follows:
e 1. The security camera on the corner of the site would provide better deterrence of illegal behaviours
(specifically drug taking) if it was pointed at the playground and skater park and not towards the shop.
e 2. If the grass was cut more regularly, parents and children would be more able to see needles and
other paraphernalia where small children are playing.
e 3. Greater Police presence would also act as a deterrence and could be linked to a local Facebook
page to more closely engage with the community.

You have confirmed that the grass cutting will increase which 1s good news.

I have spoken to the president of the Rugby Club: Andy Wright. He has confirmed the following:
e 1. The training potentially planned by the club will be specifically for the junior boys and girls.
e 2. There are no plans for the erection of posts.
e 3. There 1s no intention to spend any sums on maintenance.
e 4. The intention would be to use the grass area away from the regular dog walking area.
It 1s worth noting that the club historically used the site for matches in the 1960’s and 1970’s.

On the basis that the planned use 1s for the junior boys and girls from Ludlow Rugby Club, there 1s no issue
with the covenant and I am very happy to grant permission. This permission will be for an initial duration of
five years from today’s date, 6" November 2025.

Yours sincerely
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COUNCILLOR DISPENSATION




Ludlow

Town Council

UG

DISPENSATION
Report No. FC/25/29

Full Council
1st December 2025

1.1

INTRODUCTION

This report explains the circumstances for a dispensation and the specific
circumstance of this request.

2.

2.1

RECOMMENDATION

That under the Localism Act 2011, para. 33 (1), Ludlow Town

Council grant a dispensation to Councillor Waite for remainder of four
year term of office that commence in May 2025 to participate and vote in
all matters relating to the devolution of powers to Ludlow Town Council
when they are considered at meetings of Ludlow Town Council including
any committees, of which she is a member, on the grounds that’s as a
member also of the Town Council with detailed knowledge of its working
practices and capabilities. Her participation in such matters would be in
the interests of persons living in the area covered by Shropshire Council.

3.1

BACKGROUND

Section 33(1) of the Localism Act 2011 allows a local authority to grant a
dispensation from the restrictions in section 31(4) on a member's
participation or voting due to a pecuniary interest.

This is done upon a written request from the member to the proper officer
of the authority. A relevant authority can only grant this dispensation if it
meets certain criteria, such as:

e considering that without it, business would be impeded or political
balance would be upset,
e and that granting it is in the interests of the local area.




The maximum period for which the dispensation may be granted is four
years.

4, CURRENT SITUATION

4.1  Councillor Waite has been granted dispensation with regard to the matters
of devolution by Shropshire Council and has been advised by Graham
White that she now needs to contact the Town Clerk with regard to making
the following application for dispensation with regard to the Town Council.

Councillor Waite has stated that ‘in accordance with Paragraph 33(1) of
the Localism Act 2011, | would be grateful if | could be granted a
dispensation to participate and vote in all matters relating to the devolution
of powers to Ludlow Town Council when they are considered at meetings
of Ludlow Town Council including any committees on the grounds that’s
as a member also of the Town Council with detailed knowledge of its
working practices and capabilities. My patrticipation in such matters would
be in the interest of persons living in the area covered by Shropshire
Council.’

‘As a member of Ludlow Town Council, | have an “Other Registrable
Interest” in matters relating to the Town Council of Ludlow when they are
discussed at meetings of Shropshire Council. As part of the commitment

for the devolution of powers from Shropshire Council to Town Councils. It
is important that | can be involved with decisions taken.’

Town Clerk
November 2025

Implications

Wards Affected (All)
Financial (Unstated)
Health & Safety (Unstated)
Law & Order (Unstated)

Environmental Implications (Unstated)
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e Pikeside
RO Bull Lane
g i f’ LO ng y n d Hope Bowdler, Church Stretton
iy C o n S u ta nts Shropshire, SY6 7EU
N Mobile: 07531 518611 (Josh)
S~ Consulting Structural and Civil Engineers Mobile: 07970 704112 (Andrew)
Email: info@longmyndconsultants.co.uk

File Ref: LC.5981.01
05 November 2025
Ludlow Town Council FAO Gina Wilding

The Guildhall
Mill St

Ludlow
SY8 |AZ

To whom it may concern,

Scaffolding at the Town Wall to the north of St Lawrence’s Church, SY8 I1AN - Site
visit and report

Further to our visit to inspect the scaffolding on 14 October 2025, and numerous previous visits to the section of
wall in question, our report follows.

The brief was to examine and report on the scaffolding currently in place at the partially collapsed section of the
Ludlow Town Wall, located to the north of St Lawrence’s Church. Specifically, the objective was to determine
whether the scaffolding offers any structural support to the wall. We understand that the scaffolding was erected
in response to the partial collapse of the wall and has remained in place since.

I Introduction
l.1 Location

The scaffolding spans the easternmost, brick-built, garage-type building that abuts the town wall on Upper Linney,
which is understood to be a National Grid substation (see Photograph I). The approximate what3words location
reference is ///lyricist.jeep.revisit.

The wall/scaffolding was accessed from Upper Linney, and also from the church yard (through the Heras fencing)
with the agreement of St Laurence’s Church. We did not access the scaffolding directly, as it was not clear if the
scaffolding has been recently inspected.

1.2 Configuration
The scaffolding comprises a single lift positioned just above ridge level of the substation. The scaffolding is anchored

to the walls of the substation but does not appear to have any physical connection to the town wall (see Photograph

2).

Principal: Eur. Ing. Andrew Long CEng MICE MIStructE
Registered Office: Pikeside, Bull Lane, Hope Bowdler, Church Stretton, SY6é6 7EU



1.3 Function

The primary function of the scaffolding appears to be the protection of the substation from falling debris. During
our visit, we observed stones on the scaffold boards that appear to have fallen from the wall (see Photograph 3),
though it is not clear how often the scaffold is accessed/cleaned.

The scaffolding does not appear to offer any buttressing or structural support to the town wall, as evidenced by
both the lack of physical connection to the wall, and the orientation of the scaffold bracing.

2 Conclusion and Recommendations

The scaffolding appears to provide protection only from falling debris and does not appear to offer any support to
the wall. Therefore, if the loose stonework at the top of the wall (see Photograph 4) is removed or an alternative
method of debris containment is installed (e.g., debris netting), we consider that the scaffolding may be removed,
subject to agreement with all relevant stakeholders.

Should you have any queries on the contents of this report, please do not hesitate to contact us.

You may forward this to interested parties.

Josh Sansom IEng MICE
Longmynd Consultants Ltd



Appendix A - Photographs

e g&f g

o

Photograph 2 — View down the wall — no physical connectio

n
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COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS




% Ludlow

Town Council

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM POLICY AND FINANCE
COMMITTEE 24™ NOVEMBER 20255 TO FULL COUNCIL
1ST DECEMBER 2025

PF/148 POLICY REVIEW - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY

RECOMMENDED RO/KC (Unanimous)

That the review of the Corporate Governance Policy be deferred to the next
meeting.

PF/150 b) Recommendations

RECOMMENDED RO/KC (Unanimous)

That the recommendations of the Climate Action Task and Finish Group
meeting held on the 13" November 2025 be approved:-

Changes/actions relating to the CAP.
To consider the following statement to be forwarded to prospective
contractors when obtaining quotes:

It is important to Ludlow Town Council that prospective contractors consider

the following aspects of their work to be efficient and less harmful to the

environment.

e Conserve natural resources through careful planning, and efficient use
of resources, water and raw materials.

e Minimisation of waste through source reduction, reuse and recycling.

e Handling and disposal of waste through safe and environmentally
sustainable methods.

We would like contactors to have an aspirational ‘zero to landfill’ policy to
ensure as much waste as possible is diverted from landfill. With the ultimate
goal of achieving Zero Waste to Landfill through prevention, reduction,
reuse and recycling.

PF/152 b) Recommendations

RECOMMENDED RO/MT (7:0:1)

That the recommendation of the Climate Action Task and Finish Group
meeting held on the 30" October 2025 be approved:-



PF/156

PF/157

a)

b)

g)

h)
i)

Purchase of a plastic planter in black to trial on Bromfield slip road at a
cost of £399 + £72 delivery (from Amberol — self watering planter PRM-
0P)

Removal of 29 boxes from various locations in Ludlow (as detailed: 19
Old Street, 4 Corve Street, 2 Broad Street, 2 Bromfield slip road, two
Mill Street). This is to remove boxes which are in poor condition, are
not being maintained or that there are simply too many planters in a
single location. Local residents will be notified of the changes.

All plants that can be saved will be used in other LTC locations.
Planters that can be salvaged will be repaired for use elsewhere and
also made more ‘sustainable’ with liners etc.

Purchase tags to number/identify remaining planters £31.64 (including
delivery and tax)

Agree with the suggestion of a single business sponsorship category
that will be within the £20-£30 per annum cost bracket — no income for
LTC, simply to cover costs of a plaque etc.

Approve that cordaline plants are removed from planters and offered to
local residents free of charge.

To approve the purchase of a box ball shrub

To approve the purchase of 6 lavendar plants, 6 hebe plants, weed
suppressing matting and bark for the Old Street flower beds — work to
be undertaken over winter.

INTERNAL AUDIT

a) Internal Auditor’s Observations Recommendations

RECOMMENDED RO/MT (Unanimous)

That the Internal Auditor’s observations and proposed actions be approved.

b) Internal Auditor’s Letter and Summary of Tests

RECOMMENDED RO/MT (Unanimous)

That the Internal Auditor’s cover letter and summary of test, be noted.



Gina Wilding

Town Clerk

Ludlow Town Council
The Guildhall

Mill Street

Ludlow

Shropshire

SY8 1AZ

11th November 2025

Dear Gina,

Interim Internal Audit Report

An audit was carried out by Kevin Rose on Wednesday 5 November 2025. This was the interim
internal audit, part of the annual internal audit coverage of the Council. Prior to the audit a 'Pre-Audit’
was carried out remotely which tested items which are required to be published on the Council's
website.

The audit was undertaken using the standard IAC Audit Checklist, that we use for all Local Councils,
which has 206 items. A total of 103 items were tested during this audit, including items that were
examined and tested as part of the pre-audit process. A balance of 103 items remain to be tested.

The following 'Internal Control Objectives' of the Annual Internal Audit Report (part of the AGAR) were
checked and confirmed as being Not Applicable to your Council for this financial year.

-Exemption from External Audit (Box K)
-the Transparency Code (for Smaller Authorities) (Box L)
-Trust Funds (Box O)

Areas subject to audit were;

-the Accounting system and records (Box A)

-the Payment system (Box B)

-Risk and insurance (Box C)

-Budget and precept setting and monitoring (Box D)
-Income billing, collection and VAT (Box E)

-Petty cash (Box F)

-Bank reconciliations (Box 1)

-Accounting Statements (Box J)

Of the 100 applicable items tested a Positive response was obtained in respect of 96 tests. There
were 4 Negative responses identified and 6 Observations were made, details of which are set out in
the attached Interim Internal Audit Observations.

IAC Audit & Consultancy Ltd.
Registered in England No 09753929 VAT Reg No 220 6715 38
23 Westbury Road , Yarnbrook, Wiltshire, BA14 6 AG

Email: admin@audit-iac.com Tel:01225 775511



mailto:admin@audit-iac.com

Summary of tests undertaken during this audit

Positive response 96
Negative response 4
Not Applicable to your Council 3
Total tests carried out 103

| am pleased to advise that no 'Non-Compliances' were identified at this stage that would give rise to
a negative response on the statutory Annual Internal Audit Report.

I would like to express my thanks for the assistance provided to me during my audit.

Yours sincerely,

Kevin Rose ACMA
Director



Ludlow Town Council
Financial Year 2025-26

Visit 1 Internal Audit Observations

Date considered by Council

Minute Reference

This authority complied with its financial regulations, payments were supported by invoices, all expenditure was approved and VAT was appropriately

IACv

IAC Audit and Consultancy Ltd

Audit date: 5 November 2025

B accounted for.
No. Audit Test Response Observation Recommendation Priority Comments
- ) It was noted that the tender level stated The Council to review the tender level
Is the tender level in Financial - . . A . .
R R in Financial Regulations was £60,000 set in its Financial Regulations and .
1 Regulations and Standing Orders set at No . . L . Medium
and in Standing Orders it is set at Standing Orders and ensure that they are
the same level?
£25,000. set at the same level.
This ia an oversight and will be amended for FC approval on 1st December 2025.
The precept or rates requirement resulted from an adeq budg y process; progress against the budget was regularly monitored; and reserves
D were appropriate.
No. Audit Test Response Observation Recommendation Priority Comments
It was noted that the budget was set . .
. L g. When setting the budget the Council
When preparing the budget, and with income exactly equalling o .
X ) o . should specifically consider the level of
subsequent precept demand, did the expenditure, which implies there is no X .
A - . . ) its General Reserve. The Council should
Council specifically consider the level of planned addition or reduction of the K L .
1 X Yes R set the level of its General Reserve in line High
its General Reserve and whether the General Reserve. It is not clear when R ) .
X i with the guidance set out in the
level of the General Reserve was setting the precept that the Council L. . .
. I . . Practitioner's Guide paragraphs 5.33 -
adequate and not excessive? specifically considered the level of its . icul h
General Reserve. 5.35 (in particular paragraph 5.35). The council agreed reserve levels at its meeting on 9th December 2024 in FG/245
and these decisions were reiterated in the final budget report to FC in Janaury 2025.
The Council to establish a formal method
for the recording of Capital Receipts
The Council has established Reserves (or The Council has a Capital Receipt in . J . P p .
. . K i . income and expenditure and monitoring .
2 some other suitable measure) to monitor| Yes nominal 321 which has not been applied R . Medium
X R . . of any balance outstanding. This should
the usage of Capital Receipts to fund capital expenditure. . .
be subject to annual review as part of the
budget setting process.
The Budget Task & Finish Group is currently reviewing EMR - and | am
recommending that EMR 321 is allocated to CIL Expendoiture Projects.
Council has returned to IAC completed The Council has not provided its response . L
R i . i Council to provide its comments on the .
3 Internal Audit Observations spreadsheets| No to the Internal Audit Observations from X . X Medium
i i X . i previous Internal Audit Observations.
from prior audit(s) the previous audit and returned it to IAC.
Full Council approved the observations and proposed action on 23rd June 2025.
Minute and document attached to this response.




Council has reviewed independence of

It was noted that the Council has not
formally considered the independence of

The Council to ensure that, on an annual
basis, it formally considers the
independence of the Internal Auditor. It

4 the Internal Auditor No the Internal Auditor as set out in the may be appropriate for this to be done at Medium
Practitioner's Guide paragraph 4.11 the same time as the Council considers
the Annual Internal Audit Report.
The Annual Internal Audit Report is due to be considered 22nd June 2026, an item to
consider the independance of the internal auditor will be added.
The authority published the required information on a website/webpage up to date at the time of the internal audit in accordance with the relevant
L legislation.
No. Audit Test Response Observation Recommendation Priority Comments
It was also noted that the Council does The Council should ensure that it
not publish a listing of payments over publishes the payment information
£100 as required by the ICO Model required by the ICO Model Publication
The Council has complied with the Publication Scheme, what is published is Scheme (version 3) and that it ensures
publication requirements of the ICO a list of invoices over £100. This will not that any links to published information
Model Publication Scheme for Parish include any items of expenditure - such are valid. .
1 No Advisory

Councils. (This includes a requirement to
publish the Annual Internal Audit
Report).

as payroll costs - which are not recorded
through the purchase ledger.

It was noted that a number of links on
the Councils Publications Scheme do not
appear to work

Although this is not a requirement under
the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015, the Council should note thatitis a
statutory requirement under the
Freedom of Information Act.

The process for gathering the payment information will be changed from the
purchase ledger report to a cash book listing report, although there does no appear
to be a filter option, so it will include all payments. The Model Publication Scheme
document will be checked and the links reinstated




Interim audit summary Ludlow Town Council

(shaded Internal Control Objectives are not applicable to your Council)

Internal Control Objective

Box A

Appropriate accounting records have been properly kept throughout the
financial year.

N/A

Audit 1 Date

Tested

6

Positive

6

IAC

5 November 2025

Negative

Observations

Box B

This authority complied with its financial regulations, payments were
supported by invoices, all expenditure was approved and VAT was
appropriately accounted for.

34

31

Box C

This authority assessed the significant risks to achieving its objectives and
reviewed the adequacy of arrangements to manage these.

Box D

The precept or rates requirement resulted from an adequate budgetary
process; progress against the budget was regularly monitored; and
reserves were appropriate.

17

Box E

Expected income was fully received, based on correct prices, properly
recorded and promptly banked; and VAT was appropriately accounted

for.

Box F

Petty cash payments were properly supported by receipts, all petty cash
expenditure was approved and VAT appropriately accounted for.

Box G

Salaries to employees and allowances to members were paid in
accordance with this authority’s approvals, and PAYE and NI
requirements were properly applied.

Box H

Asset and investments registers were complete and accurate and properly
maintained.

Box |

Periodic bank account reconciliations were properly carried out during the
year.

BoxJ

Accounting statements prepared during the year were prepared on the
correct accounting basis (receipts and payments or income and
expenditure), agreed to the cash book, supported by an adequate audit
trail from underlying records and where appropriate debtors and creditors
were properly recorded.

Box K

If the authority certified itself as exempt from a limited assurance review
in 2024/25, it met the exemption criteria and correctly declared itself
exempt. (If the authority had a limited assurance review of its 2024/25
AGAR tick “not covered”

Box L

The authority published the required information on a website/webpage
up to date at the time of the internal audit in accordance with the
relevant legislation.

Box M

The authority, during the previous year (2024/25) correctly provided for
the period for the exercise of public rights as required by the Accounts and
Audit Regulations (evidenced by the notice published on the website
and/or authority approved minutes confirming the dates set).

Box N

The authority has complied with the publication requirements for 2024/25
AGAR (see AGAR Page 1 Guidance Notes).

Box O

(For local councils only)
Trust funds (including charitable) — The council met its responsibilities as a
trustee

Non Com

Totals

11/11/2025 09:25:45

103

96
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Ly —LCQ_OE S 03.09.2025

Y Town Council

MINUTES

Minutes of a meeting of the SERVICES COMMITTEE held in the Guildhall, Mill Street,
Ludlow on WEDNESDAY 3RP SEPTEMBER 2025 on the rising of Full Council at 7.45PM

S$25/044

S$25/045

S$25/046

S$25/047

S$25/048

$25/049

PRESENT
Chair: Councillor Cowell

Councillors: Addis, Childs (Vice), Gill, Harris, Lyle, Maxwell-Muller,
Parry, Tapley and Taylor.

Officers: Gina Wilding, Town Clerk
Helen Jones, Senior Admin Assistant

ABSENT

Councillors Ginger and Hepworth were absent.

WELCOME AND ESSENTIAL HOUSEKEEPING INFORMATION

The Chair, Councillor K Cowell, welcomed everyone to the Services Committee
meeting at the Guildhall and explained housekeeping information.

RECORDING OF MEETINGS

The Chair notified those present that under the Openness of Local Government
Regulations 2014, recording and broadcasting is permitted during public
session of Council Meetings.

APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillor Ginger and Councillor Hepworth.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
None declared

Conflicts of Interest
None declared




S$25/050

S$25/051

$25/052

S$25/053

S$25/054

S 03.09.2025

Personal Interests
None declared

PUBLIC OPEN SESSION (15 minutes)

There were no members of the public present.

LUDLOW UNITARY COUNCILLORS SESSION

Councillor Parry (Ludlow South) updated the Council on the new bus service
with Minsterley Motors, due to commence on 27th October 2025. She also
reported that she is now a member of a Shropshire Council Task and Finish
Group reviewing all aspects of parish councils.

MINUTES

RESOLVED KC/DC (unanimous)

That the minutes of the Services Committee meeting held on Wednesday 23

July 2025 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

ITEMS TO ACTION

RESOLVED KC/DL (unanimous)

That the Items to Action from the Services Committee on Wednesday 23" July
2025 be noted.

LINNEY PLAY AREA ACCESS QUERY

RESOLVED MT/IMM (unanimous)

Fencing was deemed inappropriate due to cost and the site's susceptibility to
frequent flooding. It was agreed that no public consultation will be undertaken
at this time. However, the option of installing permanent signage regarding dog
fouling will be investigated, and costings will be brought back to the committee
for consideration.

Councillor Gill left the meeting at 8pm.

S$25/055

RESOLVED IMM/MT (unanimous)

That social media be utilised to remind the public about keeping dogs under
control and cleaning up after them.



S 03.09.2025

S$25/056 LUDLOW MARKET UPDATE

RESOLVED KC/MT (7:0:2)

That the update from the Market Officer be noted.

S$25/057 LUDLOW MARKET WEBSITE

RESOLVED KC/MT (7:0:2)

That the update regarding the new website be noted.

S25/058 NABMA ANNUAL REVIEW

RESOLVED KC/DL (unanimous)

That the NABMA annual review document be noted.

Councillor Harris left the meeting at 8.03pm

S25/059 SEVERN TRENT — BATHING WATER QUALITY INVESTIGATIONS

RESOLVED PA/KC (7:0:1)

To approve the request from Severn Trent to install a temporary auto-sampler
kiosk at the same bankside location as in 2022.

S$25/060 CHRISTMAS LIGHTS IN CORVE STREET

RESOLVED KC/IMM (unanimous)

That the update on adaptations required for Christmas lights on Corve Street
be noted.

S$25/061 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC: PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO
MEETINGS) ACT 1960

RESOLVED KC/DL (unanimous)

The Chair will move that the public be excluded from the meeting for the
following item(s) of business pursuant to section 1 of the Public Bodies
(Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, on the grounds that publicity would be



S 03.09.2025

prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the
business to be transacted.

The meeting closed at 8.16pm.

Chair Date

Closed session minutes WILL be issued for this meeting.



S 03.09.2025

Town Council

Ludlow

CLOSED SESSION MINUTES

Closed session Minutes of a meeting of the SERVICES COMMITTEE held in the
Guildhall, Mill Street, Ludlow on WEDNESDAY 3RP SEPTEMBER 2025 on the rising of
Full Council at 7.45PM

S$25/062 QUOTATIONS FOR TREE WORKS

RESOLVED IMM/KC (unanimous)

That the third quote received from Derek Bufton Tree Services be considered.
$25/063 RESOLVED PA/IMM (7:0:1)

That the quotation of £2,390.00 + VAT from Benbow Brothers Ltd be

accepted.

The meeting closed at 8.16pm.

Chair Date



LUleU) S 15.10.2025

Town Council

MINUTES

Minutes of a meeting of the SERVICES COMMITTEE held in the Guildhall, Mill Street,
Ludlow on WEDNESDAY 15t OCTOBER 2025 at 7PM

S$25/064 PRESENT
Chair: Councillor Cowell
Councillors: Addis, Childs (Vice), Lyle, Parry, Tapley and Taylor.
Officers: Gina Wilding, Town Clerk
Kate Adams, Deputy Town Clerk
Julie Cox, Finance Assistant

S$25/065 ABSENT

Councillors Gill, Ginger, Harris, Hepworth and Maxwell-Muller were absent.

S25/066 WELCOME AND ESSENTIAL HOUSEKEEPING INFORMATION

The Chair, Councillor K Cowell, welcomed everyone to the Services Committee
meeting at the Guildhall and explained housekeeping information.

S25/67 RECORDING OF MEETINGS

The Chair notified those present that under the Openness of Local Government
Regulations 2014, recording and broadcasting is permitted during public
session of Council Meetings.

$25/068 APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillor Ginger, Councillor Hepworth and
Councillor Maxwell-Muller.

S25/069 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
None declared




S$25/070

S$25/071

S$25/072

S$25/073

S$25/074

$25/075

S 15.10.2025

Conflicts of Interest
None declared

Personal Interests

Councillor Lyle Knows M Beasley (Pride of Place)
Councillor Cowell Knows M Beasley (Pride of Place)
Councillor Tapley Knows M Beasley (Pride of Place)

PUBLIC OPEN SESSION (15 minutes)

There were no members of the public present.

LUDLOW UNITARY COUNCILLORS SESSION

Councillor Parry (Ludlow South) updated the Council on the progress of the
demolition of the old Budgens building. Also that a revised date of 20" October
2025 has been given for the closure of Temeside.

MINUTES

RESOLVED KC/PA (unanimous)

That the minutes of the Services Committee meeting held on Wednesday 3™

September 2025 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

ITEMS TO ACTION

RESOLVED KC/DL (6:0:1)

That the Items to Action from the Services Committee on Wednesday 3™
September 2025 be noted.

PRIDE OF PLACE LITTERPICKING

RESOLVED PA/DL (6:0:1)
That Ludlow Town Council support the co-ordination of the Saturday Ludlow

Pride of Place litter picks from January 2026. The Deputy Town Clerk will take
on the role of co-ordinator with assistance from Councillor Lyle.

ST JOHNS GUARDIANS

RESOLVED KC/DL (unanimous)

That the success of the first event held on 17t September 2025 be noted.



S$25/076

S$25/077

$25/078

S$25/079

S$25/080

S 15.10.2025

RESOLVED KC/DL (5:0:2)
That the terms of reference for St Johns Guardians be accepted.

RESOLVED PA/MT (6:0:1)

That a report containing a costed bulb and perennial planting scheme for al the
beds in St Johns Gardens be bought back to Services Committee for
consideration.

PLANTING TASK AND FINISH GROUP

RESOLVED DC/DL (5:0:2)
That the notes from the first meeting of the Planting task and finish group held
on 18" September 2025 be received.

RESOLVED KC/PA (5:0:2)
To approve the following recommendations from the Planting task and finish
group:

>

>

>

>
>

An updated list of planters to be completed by LTC staff (following work and
rationalisation already completed this summer by DLF).

An assessment of each planter to be undertaken and a list made of those to
be removed.

Create a database of planters which highlights who is responsible for
planting/watering/sponsorship.

Hanging baskets to be restricted to Castle Street toilets.

Install ‘summer’ bunting around the market square to brighten it up each year
between May-September.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC: PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO

MEETINGS) ACT 1960

RESOLVED KC/DL (unanimous)

The Chair will move that the public be excluded from the meeting for the
following item(s) of business pursuant to section 1 of the Public Bodies
(Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, on the grounds that publicity would be
prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the
business to be transacted.

The meeting closed at 8.08pm.

Chair

Date

Closed session minutes will be issued for this meeting.
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CLOSED SESSION MINUTES

Closed session Minutes of a meeting of the SERVICES COMMITTEE held in the Guildhall,
Mill Street, Ludlow on WEDNESDAY 15" OCTOBER 2025 at 7PM.

S$25/081

$25/082

S25/83

HENLEY ROAD CEMETERY BABIES AREA

RESOLVED PA/AT (4:1:2)

That the quotation from Tarmacadam Driveways Ltd for £5,500.00 to remove
existing path to the Babies area and replace with a tarmac finish, edged with
concrete set kerbs be accepted.

RESOLVED KC/DL (unanimous)

That a report be bought back to next services committee with more detail,
including the internal width of the arch and diameter of the uprights for the
proposed memorial arch.

RESOLVED PA/DC (6:1:0)

That the proposed improved access plan of the layout of the baby area be

approved. That the hedge adjacent to grave GBM C 14 to be pruned back if
possible.

The meeting closed at 8.08pm.

Chair

Date
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MINUTES

Minutes of a meeting of the REPRESENTATIONAL COMMITTEE held at the
Guildhall, Mill Street, Ludlow on TUESDAY 7t October 2025 at 7pm.

R/136 PRESENT

Chair: Councillor Harris

Councillors: Councillors Addis, Cowell, Ginger, Hepworth
Tapley, and Scott-Bell

Officers: Gina Wilding Town Clerk
Charlotte Ambrazas, Committee Officer

R/137 ABSENCES
Councillors Gill, Parry, Tapley were absent.

R/138 HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Chairman informed Councillors, and everyone present, of the fire exits,
fire assembly point and asked that everyone sign the attendance log.

R/139 RECORDING OF MEETINGS

The Chairman notified those present that under the Openness of Local
Government Regulations 2014, recording and broadcasting is permitted
during public session of Council Meetings.

R/140 APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillors Gill, Parry & Tapley.

R/141 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
None.

Conflicts of Interest
None

Personal Interest
None
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R/145

R/146

R/147

R/148
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PUBLIC OPEN SESSION (15 minutes)

There were no members of the public present.

LUDLOW’S UNITA/RY COUNCILLORS QUESTION AND ANSWER
SESSION

Councillor Boddington was present via zoom and firstly stated the
importance of a Neighbourhood Plan for Ludlow as a guide for Shropshire
Council on how to steer development. He stated that parish boundary
changes were not expected to start this year, and his view that development
should include all of Ludlow without arbitrary boundaries.

He explained that consideration of the re-development of the former
Budgens site has been ongoing for 8 years, and now the building will be
demolished in two weeks, although at present there is no viable
development plan for the site. Demolition work and subsequent landscaping
of the site is expected to take up to a year. Discussions with the owner of
Morris properties are ongoing, options might include:

Well-designed landscaped area with planting and benches

self-cleaning public toilets

provision for young people

As soon as more detailed information is available, it will be shared with
the Town Council.

MINUTES

RESOLVED SH/PA (unanimous)
To approve the minutes of 9" September 2025 as a correct record for the
Chairman to sign.

ITEMS TO ACTION

RESOLVED SH/PA (unanimous)
To note the items to action of 9" September 2025.

SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL DECISIONS PENDING

RESOLVED SH/ISB (unanimous)
That the decisions pending by Shropshire Council be noted.

SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL DECISIONS

RESOLVED SH/PA (unanimous)
That the decisions by Shropshire Council be noted.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

25/02967/TCA Dinham Lodge , Dinham, Ludlow, SY8 1EH
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RESOLVED SH/KC (5:0:2)

To Object to reducing the height of a group of Yews within Ludlow
Conservation Area by approx. 60% to 2m above ground level and

maintain at height through annual pruning for duration of five years
for the following reason:

i) The works would create an unbalanced shape that would have a detrimental
impact on public amenity of the Yew trees.

R/149 25/03404/LBC Dinham Hall, Dinham, Ludlow, SY8 1EJ.

RESOLVED ISB/JH (5:1:1)
No objection to new handrails to the principal entrance

R/150 25/03353/FUL Thistledown , St Johns Lane, Ludlow, SY8 1PF

RESOLVED KC/PA (unanimous)
No objection to the alterations and extensions to existing bungalow.

R/151 25/03451/FUL OXFAM, 45 Bull Ring, Ludlow, SY8 1AB.

RESOLVED KA/PA (unanimous)
No objection to internal and external alterations

R/152 25/03452/LBC OXFAM, 45 Bull Ring, Ludlow, SY8 1AB.

RESOLVED KC/PA (unanimous)
No objection to internal and external alterations

R/153 25/03453/ADV OXFAM, 45 Bull Ring, Ludiow, SY8 1AB.

RESOLVED KC/PA (unanimous)
To object to the proposed window signage for the following reasons;

i) The signage is visually overbearing and intrusive and not suitable for a
conservation area, and not in keeping with the existing street scene.

R/154 25/03613/LBC Usher House, 30 Mill Street, Ludlow, SY8 1BG

RESOLVED KC/GG (unanimous)

No objection to enlarge existing opening within chimney breast to form
counter height opening, relocation of cooker and new extraction through
existing chimney; and re-reinstatement of window.

R/155 25/03574/FUL Castle House, Castle Square, Ludlow, SY8 1AY
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RESOLVED SH/ISB (unanimous)

To Object to the Proposed Removal of Turf and Installation of Permeable
Hardstanding to Enlarge Existing Parking Area for the following reasons:

i) Highway and Pedestrian Safety:

The proposed enlargement of the hardstanding area would increase
vehicular activity and create additional hazards for pedestrians. This is of
particular concern given the limited visibility and already constrained
access in this location. The development would therefore have an adverse
impact on pedestrian safety and the safe operation of the surrounding
area.

Impact on Local Character:

The introduction of further hard surfacing would be out of keeping with the
established character of this predominantly pedestrian environment. The
existing green space contributes positively to the appearance and amenity
of the area, and its removal would detract from the visual quality and
overall character of the locality.

R/156 ROAD CLOSURE/TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT

RESOLVED KC/PA (unanimous)
To note all road closures and clarify the closure times and that the road
closure at St Marys Lane will allow access for residents and deliveries.

R/157 BUILDINGS, BUILDING LAND AND TREES

RESOLVED PA/KC (unanimous)
To update the spreadsheet

R/158 BUILDING DEMOLITION

R/159

RESOLVED KC/SH (unanimous)
To welcome the concept of the creation of a green landscaped space and
await a planning application.

NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

RESOLVED GG/KC (unanimous)
To arrange a visit from Shropshire Council planning policy officers to
discuss the potential scope for a Neighbourhood Plan for Ludlow.

Meeting closed at 8:30 pm

Chairman Date
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MINUTES

Minutes of a meeting of the REPRESENTATIONAL COMMITTEE held at the
Guildhall, Mill Street, Ludlow on TUESDAY 4t November 2025 at 7pm.

R/160 PRESENT

Chair: Councillor Harris

Councillors: Councillors Addis, Cowell, Gill (7.03pm), Ginger,
and Tapley.

Officers: Gina Wilding Town Clerk

Kate Adams, Deputy Town Clerk

R/161 ABSENCES
Councillors Hepworth, Owen, Parry, Scott Bell were absent.

R/162 HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Chairman informed Councillors, and everyone present, of the fire exits,
fire assembly point and asked that everyone sign the attendance log.

R/163 RECORDING OF MEETINGS

The Chairman notified those present that under the Openness of Local
Government Regulations 2014, recording and broadcasting is permitted
during public session of Council Meetings.

R/164 APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillors Hepworth, Owen & Scott Bell.

R/165 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
None.

Conflicts of Interest
None
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Personal Interest
Clir G Ginger 25/03892/TCA Knows the resident

R/166 PUBLIC OPEN SESSION (15 minutes)

There was one member of the public present.

A resident raised concerns regarding planning application 25/03749/FUL at
Holmlands, 26 Dinham.

There are concerns that vital information has been missed within the
application and there is no reference to a 200-year-old 8ft high retaining wall
that will be affected by the works. The works proposed would change the
historic appearance of the lane which is highly valued by neighbouring
properties.

7.03pm ClIr Gill joined the meeting.
R/167 LUDLOW’S UNITA/RY COUNCILLORS QUESTION AND ANSWER

SESSION
No Unitary Councillors were present.

R/168 MINUTES
RESOLVED KC/GG (unanimous)

To approve the minutes of 7t October 2025 as a correct record for the
Chairman to sign.

R/169 ITEMS TO ACTION

RESOLVED GG/TG (unanimous)
To note the items to action of 7" October 2025.

R/170 SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL DECISIONS PENDING

RESOLVED GG/KC (unanimous)
That the decisions pending by Shropshire Council be noted.

R/171 SHROPSHIRE COUNCIL DECISIONS

RESOLVED KC/PA (unanimous)
That the decisions by Shropshire Council be noted.
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PLANNING APPLICATIONS

25/03667/FUL 3 Lower Galdeford, Ludlow, SY8 1RN

RESOLVED GG/TG (unanimous)
No objection to the alterations to the front elevation.

25/03732/TCA Walcote House, 17 Broad Street, Ludlow, SY8 1NG

RESOLVED GG/PA (unanimous)
No objection to the tree works to 1no Walnut within Ludlow Conservation
Area.

25/03077/FUL Tarwin, The Old Orchard, Ludlow, SY8 1JW

RESOLVED GG/AT (unanimous)
To Object to the demolition of existing dwelling and erection of eco home
for the following reasons:
a) No eco credentials including, but not limited to, solar panels or heat
pumps are apparent in the application.
b) The proposed property would be out of character with the existing
properties. The roof line is higher than the surrounding properties
making it unduly imposing in the area.

25/03749/FUL Holmlands, 26 Dinham, Ludlow, SY8 1GF

RESOLVED GG/KC (unanimous)
To Object to the demolition of existing garage and partial removal
of boundary wall for the following reasons:

«  The removal of the traditional local stone boundary wall would erode
the historic enclosure and character of the lane. The wall, although
partly realigned, contributes positively to the street scene. Its loss is
unjustified and detrimental.

« The replacement of traditionally detailed, side-hung painted timber
garage doors and gate with a non-traditional aluminium sliding gate
would introduce a visually intrusive and inappropriate feature.

The proposals clearly conflict with the Ludlow Conservation Area
requirements as stated below, and should therefore be refused:

7.4 Quality and appropriateness of design, materials and use is required for
all proposals in Conservation Areas:
e Materials should match those traditionally used in the Conservation Area.
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e Proposals should retain or restore traditional stone or brick boundary
walls.

The Conservation Area Appraisal also notes:

e 4.11 A large amount of garden space survives in this residential town
centre, and policy seeks to keep it that way.

The creation of extensive hardstanding for vehicle parking and turning
presents a serious concern. This area extends to the existing hedge, which
sits above a significant historic retaining wall of local stone rubble. There has
been no professional assessment regarding the potential structural risk to this
wall.

In principle, we do not object to replacing the existing garage/shed, but only if
access remains from the south and traditional timber side-hung doors or gates
are retained, to preserve the character of the lane.

Gates in this part of the Conservation Area are consistently side-hung (single
or double leaf). The proposed large sliding gate is alien in scale and type and
would appear intrusive and over-dominant in the streetscape.

The submission lacks essential information:
¢ No existing or proposed east elevation of the garage/shed or the new
lean-to store
¢ No clear indication of existing and proposed external wall and roof
materials
Without this information, the impact of the proposed new building cannot be
properly assessed.

25/03839/TCA Fairwater, Linney, Ludlow, SY8 1EG

RESOLVED KC/GG (unanimous)
No objection to the tree works to 1no Sycamore and 1no Willow within
Ludlow Conservation Area.

25/03892/TCA Castle Weir House, Linney, Ludlow, SY8 1EG

RESOLVED SH/TG (5:0:1)
No objection to the tree works to 1no Silver birch within Ludlow
Conservation Area.

25/03967/TCA Ludlow Castle Tennis & Bowling Club, Linney, Ludlow,
SY8 1EE

RESOLVED SH/PA (unanimous)
No objection to tree works to 3no Willow, subject to the agreement of
Ludlow Rugby Club.
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25/03789/FUL Bowling Green, Ludlow Castle Tennis & Bowling Club,
Linney, Ludlow, SY8 1EE

RESOLVED PA/SH (unanimous)

To Object to the installation of floodlighting to court 1 for the following

reasons:

a) The lights would be very tall and would be an obtrusive feature in a
sensitive area in the escarpment of the castle.

b) The lights would create unacceptable light pollution detrimentally
affecting residents and wildlife, potentially up until 10pm seven nights a
week.

R/180 ROAD CLOSURE/TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT

R/181

R/182

R/183

RESOLVED GG/KC (unanimous)

To note the road closures and to bring an item to the next Representational
Committee to discuss road repairs/ closures in Ludlow, and the possibility
of using traffic management to ensure that roads can remain open.

BUILDINGS, BUILDING LAND AND TREES

RESOLVED KC/SH (unanimous)
To report to Shropshire Council that the repairs to Ludford Bridge do not
seem robust and a better repair is needed.

PLANNING RESPONSES BRIEFING NOTE

RESOLVED GG/TG (unanimous)

To note the Shropshire Council guidance note to assist Parish & Town
Councils to respond to planning applications following changes to the NPPF
and withdrawal of the previous draft local plan.

FUTURE LOCAL RAILWAY CONNECTIVITY

RESOLVED GG/PA (unanimous)
To note both sides of the conversation regarding Ludlow station and to
have a watching brief on the situation.

Meeting closed at 7:33 pm

Chairman Date
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MINUTES

Minutes of a Staffing Committee Meeting held in the Guildhall, Mill Street, Ludlow on
FRIDAY 10™ OCTOBER 2025 at 10:00 am.

ST/45

ST/46

ST/A7

ST/48

ST/49

ST/50

PRESENT
Chair: Councillor Scott-Bell
Councillors: Cowell, Lyle and Owen.
Officers: Gina Wilding, Town Clerk
Kate Adams, Deputy Town Clerk
Helen Jones, Senior Administrative Assistant

ABSENT

Councillors Gill, Harris, Hepworth and Maxwell-Muller.

HEALTH & SAFETY

The Chair informed Councillors of the fire exits, fire assembly point and asked
that everyone sign the attendance log.

RECORDING OF MEETINGS

The Chair notified those present that under the Openness of Local Government
Regulations 2014, recording and broadcasting is permitted during public session
of Council Meetings.

APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillor Maxwell-Muller.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
None declared.

Conflict of Interest
None declared.
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Personal Interests
None declared.

ST/51 PUBLIC OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public or press present.

ST/52 MINUTES
RESOLVED ISB/KC (unanimous)
That the open and closed session minutes of the Staffing Committee meeting

held on the 18" September 2025 be approved as a true record and signed by
the Chair.

ST/53 ITEMS TO ACTION

RESOLVED ISB/KC (unanimous)

That the items to action of the Staffing Committee meeting held on the 18t
September 2025 be noted.

ST/54 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC: PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO
MEETINGS) ACT 1960

RESOLVED ISB/RO (unanimous)

That that the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) of
business pursuant to section 1 of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act
1960, on the grounds that publicity would be prejudicial to the public interest by
reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted, the public be
excluded and the meeting continue in closed session.

The meeting closed at 11:05 am.

Chair Date

Closed Session minutes will be issued.
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CLOSED SESSION MINUTES

Minutes of a Staffing Committee Meeting held in the Guildhall, Mill Street, Ludlow on
FRIDAY 10™ OCTOBER 2025 at 10:00 am.

ST/55

ST/56

ST/57

ST/58

RECRUITMENT — ASSISTANT GROUNDS PERSON X 2

RESOLVED KC/DL (3:0:1)

That recruitment of two Assistant Grounds Person positions be approved.
RESOLVED ISB/KC (unanimous)

That the Job Description be approved subject to the inclusion of ‘maintaining’

vehicles and machinery, and that the Person Specification be approved subject
to agreed amendments to the Essential, General and Desirable criteria.

RESOLVED ISB/KC (unanimous)
That the recruitment schedule be approved.
RESOLVED ISB/KC (unanimous)

That the Job Advert, Application Form (with ‘Referee’s contacted prior to
interview’ removed), Shortlisting Criteria / Scoresheet, Interview Questions
(subject to additional question and amendments as agreed), and Interview
Scoresheet be approved.

That an interview panel including staff members and Clirs Scott-Bell, Owen and
Lyle (with Clir Cowell as reserve member) be approved.

The meeting closed at 11:05 am.

Chair

Date
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MINUTES

Minutes of a meeting of the POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE held in the Guildhall, Mill
Street, Ludlow on MONDAY 13t OCTOBER 2025 at 7.00PM

PF/102

PF/103

PF/104

PF/105

PF/106

PRESENT
Chair: Councillor R. Owen
Councillors: Childs; Cowell; Hepworth; Parry; Scott Bell; Taylor.
Officers: Gina Wilding, Town Clerk
Lucy Jones, Senior Finance Assistant
ABSENT

Councillors Gill, Ginger, Lyle and Scott-Bell were absent.

WELCOME

The Chair, Councillor Owen, welcomed everyone to the Policy and Finance
Committee meeting and advised on essential housekeeping information.

RECORDING OF MEETINGS

The Chair notified those present that under the Openness of Local Government
Regulations 2014, recording and broadcasting is permitted during public session
of Council Meetings.

MEETING PROTOCOL

The Chair reminded Members of the vital importance of mutual respect,
professionalism, and full adherence to the Council’'s Code of Conduct, Standing
Orders, and Meeting Protocol.

Councillors and officers have distinct yet complementary roles and work
collaboratively in the best interests of the community. Councillors are responsible
for setting policy and representing the public, while officers provide impartial
advice and are tasked with implementing Council decisions.

During meetings, Members must conduct themselves with decorum, follow the
established rules of debate, and respect the authority of the Chair. Disruptive
behaviour, undue pressure on officers, or prioritising personal interests above
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Council objectives undermines good governance and is contrary to the standards
of conduct expected in Council proceedings.

Maintaining integrity, accountability, and a respectful environment is essential to
ensuring effective and transparent decision-making.

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Gill, Ginger, Lyle and
Maxwell-Muller.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
None declared.

Declaration of Conflicts of Interest
None declared.

Declarations of Personal Interest
None declared.

PUBLIC OPEN SESSION (15 minutes)

There were two members of the public present at the meeting.

UNITARY COUNCILLORS’ SESSION

Unitary Councillor Parry, Ludlow South informed the Committee about the
Shropshire Council Town and Parish Task Group which was set up to make
recommendations on devolution to town and parish Councils. She stated that
Church Stretton and Shrewsbury Town Council’s have made representations to
the group and that Ludlow needs to make it voice heard on what they want for
the future of the town.

MINUTES
RESOLVED RO/MT (Unanimous)

That the minutes of the Policy and Finance Committee meeting held on the 1st
September 2025, be approved as a correct record, and signed by the Chair.

ITEMS TO ACTION

Following a request from the Chair, the Town Clerk gave an update on the town
CCTV. She stated that the electrical works in the church tower were completed
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on the 6™ October 2025 and that the full installation and connection of the CCTV
phase 2 cameras would be completed on the 22" and 23 October 2025,
increasing the town CCTV coverage by 13 cameras.

RESOLVED RO/KC (Unanimous)

That a report be presented to Full Council on the history of the CCTV project, to
include details of the selection of the contractor, costings, payment schedule,
Police contribution and accounting and any other important correspondence.

RESOLVED KC/VP (Unanimous)

That a report be presented to Full Council upon receipt of the surveyor’s report
relating to the sub-station scaffolding next to the churchyard wall.

RESOLVED RO/KC (Unanimous)
That the items to action from the Policy and Finance Committee meeting held on

the 15t September 2025, be noted.

FINANCE INFORMATION

RESOLVED RO/KC (Unanimous)

That the Cash Book Payments, Income and Reconciliation, Barclaycard
Payments, Income and Reconciliation, PayPal Payments, Income and
Reconciliation, Petty Cash Payments, Income and Reconciliation, Public Sector
Deposit Fund Payments, Income and Reconciliation, Income Cash Book
Payments, Income and Reconciliation and Electric Vehicle Charging Payments,
Income and Reconciliation for August 2025; and Mayor’s Charity Account
Payments, Income and Reconciliation and Mayor's Charity Account Income
Payments, Income and Reconciliation for July and August 2025; be received.

AGED DEBTORS

RESOLVED RO/KC (Unanimous)

That the Debtors report be received.

AGED DEBTORS

RESOLVED RO/KC (Unanimous)

That the Debtors Explanation Report be received.
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POLICY REVIEW

a) Recruitment and Selection Policy

RECOMMENDED RO/ISB (6:0:1)

That the Recruitment and Selection Policy, be adopted.

b) Sexual Harassment Policy, Risk Assessment and Action Plan

RESOLVED ISB/RO (Unanimous)

That the Sexual Harassment Risk Assessment be referred to Staffing Committee
to be reviewed and updated.

RECOMMENDED RO/MT (Unanimous)

That the Sexual Harassment Policy and Action Plan, be re-adopted.

c) Hedgerow Policy

RECOMMENDED RO/ISB (Unanimous)

That Hedgerow Policy, be adopted.

CLIMATE ACTION TASK AND FINISH GROUP

a) Minutes — 2"d October 2025

RESOLVED RP/MT (6:0:1)

That the minutes of the Climate Action Task and Finish Group meeting held on
the 2" October 2025 be received.

b) Recommendations — 2"Y October 2025

Councillor Cowell advised that the Local Nature Recovery Strategy was to aid
Shropshire Council in identifying green spaces in Ludlow and that the Climate
Action Task and Finish Group aim to hold a public meeting to consult the public
on how green spaces are managed and utilised.

RESOLVED RP/MT (5:0:2)

That the recommendation of the Climate Action Task and Finish Group meeting
held on the 2" October 2025 be approved:-



O O O O O O

PF 13.10.25

Local Nature Recovery Strategy (LNRS)

To note the purpose of the LNRS which is to identify opportunities for
creating and restoring habitats beyond existing hotspots, and look at how the
county can be best connected for nature.

To note the three responsibilities for Town & Parish Councils: 1) Consider
biodiversity in their area, 2) Agree policies and objectives to support them, 3)
Act to deliver the objectives

To agree that Town Councils are ideally placed to identify local biodiversity
opportunities and threats, mobilise community action, and act as a trusted
intermediary between residents and higher tier authorities.

Actions we are building on include Restoring Shropshire Verges Project and
CPRE’s hedgerow heroes.

Ludlow Town Council is taking lots of proactive action to improve habitats
and hotspots within its area, along with promoting actions that residents /
businesses can undertake themselves.

To respond to the consultation as above and to comment on the interactive
mapping with the addition/enlarging of the following sites:

Castle Gardens

Wigley Field allotments

Garden of Rest, St Laurences

Fishmore View amenity area

Gallows Bank

Housman amenity area

Steventon play area

Sheet Road verges

Sidney Road town green

Eco Park

Ballard Close amenity area

Wheeler Road recreation area

School playing fields

Weyman Road community orchard site

Dodmore Lane bridleway

Hopton Close amenity area

Parys Road play/amenity area

Climate Action Plan (CAP)

Changes/actions relating to the CAP.

Action 4 - To check whether this has been completed.

Action 6 - To check whether this has been completed.

Action 10 - To check on progress.

Action 11 - To prepare for P & F meeting in November.

Action 20 - To chase Shropshire Council for a response

Action 23 - To chase Shropshire Council for a response in preparation for
the 2026 grass cutting season.

Action 26 - To begin plans for a public meeting following the completion of a
green Parish map.

Action 29 - Feedback regarding the St Johns Gardeners to go to Services.
Action 30 - To set a schedule in place with the Communications & Marketing
Officer.
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o Action 32 - This is being done as and when appropriate by the Town Clerk &
Deputy Town Clerk.

o Action 34 - Not yet begun but will look at this for next Spring.

o Action 35 - Will generate a list of warm hubs (by confirming with community
groups) and will publicise on our website and social media.

BUDGET TASK AND FINISH GROUP

RESOLVED RO/MT (Unanimous)

That the minutes of the Budget Task and Finish Group meetings held on the 7t
and 14" August 2025, be received.

STAFFING EFFICIENCY REVIEW

RESOLVED RO/MT (6:0:1)

That the draft Term of Reference for the Efficiency Review recommended to Full
Council by Staffing Committee, be noted.

EXTERNAL AUDIT

RESOLVED RO/MT (Unanimous)
That it be noted that the audit is unconcluded subject to a review and that the

information provided by the External Auditor has been published on the Council’s
website as required.

CCLA PUBLIC SECTOR DEPOSIT FUND INVESTMENT

a) Cash Flow Management Procedure

Councillor Parry left the meeting at 8.25pm

PF/128

RESOLVED RO/KC (Unanimous)

That the Cash Flow Management Procedure be approved.

b) Statements
RESOLVED RO/MT (Unanimous)

That the CCLA Public Sector Deposit Fund Investment statements for August
and September 2025, be noted.



PF/129

PF/130

PF/131

PF 13.10.25

c) Subscription Contract Note

RESOLVED RO/MT (Unanimous)

That the CCLA Public Sector Deposit Fund Investment Subscription Contract
Note, be noted.

d) Redemption Contract Note

RESOLVED RO/KC (Unanimous)

That the CCLA Public Sector Deposit Fund Investment Redemption Contract
Note, be noted.

e) Interest Rates

RESOLVED RO/KC (Unanimous)

That the CCLA Public Sector Deposit Fund and Barclays Bank interest rates, be
noted.

The meeting closed at 8.32pm

Chair

Date

N.B. Closed Session Minutes will NOT be issued for this meeting.
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